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Introduction

BlueNord is providing
Europe with the energy

It needs today, tomorrow,
and in the net-zero future

BlueNord is a strategically important European oil and gas
company, specialising in the production and development
of resources that support the energy transition towards
net zero.

While creating value for stakeholders, BlueNord helps to
deliver the energy security that millions of people depend
onintoday’s changing world.
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Highlights of the Year

2023 has positioned us well
to deliver on our plans for

2024 and beyond, bringing

broader value for all our

stakeholders

$795m $421m

$250m

(CASH AND UNDRAWN FACILITIES)

$317m

Read more on page 23 and 24
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> The new Tyra facilities were
safely restarted on the
21st March 2024 with
ramp-up to maximum
capacity under way.

Read more onpage 4

> Excellent results from well
optimisation activities has
decreased the production
decline inthe DUC fields.

Read more onpage 16

Strategic Report

> Reserves replacement of
135% year end 2023.

Read more onpage 7

> Elimination of routine flaring.

Read more onpage 18

> Excellent safety
performance, with second
lowest incident frequency
since 2009 despite very
high activity level.

Read more onpage 5
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Chair’s Statement

Solid foundations for
shareholder value creation

BlueNord is well on its way to delivering its ambition of becoming aleading
independent European energy producer. This is on the back of a further
successful year in 2023 and the restart of Tyrain March 2024.

Riulf Rustad
Executive Chair

BlueNord continues to prove its ability to deliver its
ambition of becoming a leading independent
European energy producer. Thisis on the back

of a further successful yearin 2023 and with the
recently announced first gas from Tyralll. This
places BlueNordinaanincreasingly strong
position, as a significant contributor to regional EU
energy security and amajor supplier of gas, being
the fuel of choice for transition, as the world pivots
toagreener future.

3 BlueNord

This position has been achieved through a strong
and consistent focus on capital discipline, based
around maximising the DUC opportunity. With
production set to more than double, and with Tyra ll
having been brought back on stream, our
approach to enhance value for our stakeholders
remains firm. The Company has set out a clear
path to continue to deliver from the DUC assets,
thereby maximising capital efficiency and allowing
it to become a significant dividend paying
company for its shareholders.

Energy security and access to economically
competitive sources of gas remains of key
importance in Europe. It comes on the back of
continued uncertainty across many parts of the
world, impacting trade and regional economic
performance, whichis set to continue in 2024.

The needto have access to secure, safe and
cost-effective sources of energy is central to
economic success and the standard of living across
theregion. ltunderpins business, transport and the
region'seconomic competitiveness, inanerawhere
supply lines are being disrupted, interest rates
remain high and economic performance impacted.

BlueNord continued to performin 2023,
representing another year of delivering against
results. Thisisreflected inits production and
financial performance, which was again at the top
end of estimations, with EBITDA for the year of
USD 421 million and production of 24.9 mboepd.

Strategic Report

BlueNord intends to commence
distributions in 2024, delivering on one of
our core commitments to shareholders.

As aresult of its now growing track record,
BlueNordisinan enviable position, with strong
foundations to continue to deliver in the year ahead
and beyond. Capital discipline and the ongoing
efficient use of capital remains the basis on which
the Company willbe managed. Every decision will
be assessed against this basis, which has served
us wellin getting us to where we are today.

Today, with Tyrall back on stream, BlueNord is set
tobe able to start paying dividends in Q3 2024.
The Company's assets, combined with the clear
plans set out for the future of the business, means it
is well placed to offer shareholders meaningful
returns, and BlueNord intends to distribute 50 —
70% of its net operational cashflow in the period
2024 -2026.

That position also means the Company remains
well placed to meet its responsibilities to the
environment and the success of the regionin
which it operates. With the ongoing increase ingas
production from Tyra, Denmark will be energy
self-sufficient and a net exporter of gasto the
wider EU region. This represents a milestone for
the country; helping people’s needs and
supporting the ongoing growth of the economy.
Afurtherlocal, reliable source of gas for the regionis
alsoinline with the EU’'s ambition to reach net-zero.
Inaddition to being a source of transitional energy,
localised gas offers amuch lower relative carbon
footprint to the alternatives, such asimported LNG,

which hasincreased in Europe, post sanctions
beingimposed on Russian supplies.

Thereweighting of the Company’s production
from liquids to gas, will also greatly reduce
BlueNord's own emissions intensity, inline with its
ambitions. This is alongside continuing to evaluate
the opportunity for carbon storage throughits
CCS subsidiary, CarbonCuts, which recently
submitted its license application for its onshore
CO, storage projectin Denmark, Project Ruby.

Once again, on behalf of the Board and
shareholders, | would like to take the opportunity to
thank the operational and management teams for
their hard work and commitment to the success of
the business. Itis through their dedication to the
Company and the skill they bring to the business
that we are in such a strong position today.

As the Board looks ahead to the rest of the year
and beyond, we do so again with greater
confidence. BlueNordis set to continue to
outperformand ook forward to supporting the
teaminthe year ahead as further progressis
made and milestones delivered.

Riulf Rustad
Executive Chair

Annual Report and Accounts 2023

yoday oibajens

1100y 80UBLISAOL)

|
)
[N}
=)
Q.
o)
my
()
i®)
o
=



Inthisreport

Strategic Report
1-52

Highlights of the Year

Chair’s Statement

Completion of Tyrall

Our Business ata Glance

Chief Executive Officer Statement

Business Model

Our Strategy

Distribution Policy

Strategyin Action

Operational Review

Financial Review

Sustainability Report

Risk Management

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Governance Report
53-71

Financial Report
72-154

Completionof Tyrall

A landmark

achievement as
Tyra ll comes online

Ensuring sustainable energy security with
the redevelopment of Tyra.

On the 21st of March 2024, the first gas was
processed and exported to Nybro in Denmark from
the brand-new Tyralll facilities. This remarkable feat
of engineering is Denmark’s largest infrastructure
project to date and represents a gross investment of
around 27 billion Danish Kroner, or close to 4 billion
USD spent since the field development studies
commencedin 2013.

BlueNord is proud to have participated in the delivery
of Tyrall,and we congratulate everyone involvedin
this landmark achievement, in particular the Operator
TotalEnergies and our partner Nordsgfonden.

Tyrall will be a vital part of Europe’s energy supply for
many years to come, providing much-needed energy
towards a net-zero future.

See Our Strategy on page 17 to find out more.

% Strategic Pillar
= Deliver Tyrall

4 BlueNord

\ LY

h"l ( Strateqné Bep?{.b':{

2P basedon YE23 ERCE Weight of 8 new topsides Offshore staff contributed
during construction

distance from the Danish
Jutland Coast

Emissionreduction
compared with the
former facility

Recycling and reuse of the
old Tyrafacilities

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Completion of Tyrall continued

A significant investment

BlueNord has invested over one billion USD in the Tyra
redevelopment project, which will produce enough energy to
power the equivalent of 1.5 million homes, making Tyra, and
Denmark, akey gas producer for the EU.

Thenew Tyrafacilities are expected to produce at 30% lower
emissions compared with the former facilities. With Tyra on
stream, our focus on maturation of new opportunities will
enable us to develop existing DUC discoveries and infill well
targetsto ensure that the Tyrafacilities are efficiently utilised
formany years to come. The DUC is set to deliver gas witha
significantly lower CO, footprint than what LNG import can
offer until Denmark and Europe can secure its energy supply
fromrenewable sources.

The Tyrall timeline

Dawn Jamieson
Lead Operations Engineer, BlueNord

platform decks. The decisionwas
made torebuildand modernise to
ensure safe continued operations
foryearstocome.

Due to the natural subsidence after The DUC approvedthe
29 years of production, the seabed fullredevelopment of
below the Tyra platformhad sunk Tyra, thelargest

more than 5 metres, reducing the investment ever takenin
distance betweenthe seaandthe the Danish North Sea.

October 2018 marked the
kick-off for onshore construction
around the world, including the
fabrication of jacketsin Spain,an
accommodationunitin ltaly,a
processingmodule inIndonesia,
andsix wellhead andriser
modules in Singapore.

Strategic Report

Delivering
success for Tyrall

Dawn has been instrumentalin the success of the Tyra

redevelopment project. Originally recruited as Operations Engineer,

then moving into the role of Tyra Project Manager, she has been
dedicated to the project since she joined BlueNord in 2022.

Her role involved contributing to Safety awareness among the
BlueNord team, based on her own expertise and frequent offshore
visits. Her work to nominate the Tyra health, safety and environment
(‘HSE’) team for the Danske Offshore Safety award resulted in the
Tyrateam being shortlisted.

As aresult of her work on Tyra, Dawn has become a Fellow in
Engineering with the Society of Operations Engineers. Thisis the
highest honour which can be bestowed upon an engineer andis
recognition for her contributions and accomplishments in the field
of start-up of new process plants.

Duringthe summer,the old Overmorethanthree On21March2024,the
Tyrafacilities were removed. years, more than 35,000 firstgas was processed
More than 50,000 tons of tons of materialslocated 54 andexported to Nybro
materials were moved onshore metres above the seabed inDenmark.

fordismantling and recycling.

InSeptember, the foundations
for Tyrallwereinstalled.

created Tyrall, Denmark’s
new high-tech hub for
natural gas productionin
the DanishNorth Sea.

5 BlueNord

2021-2023

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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In this report Our Business at a Glance
o Oil pipeline to Fredericia

. Gas pipeline to Nybro
BlueNord operates in the Danish North Sea with a . SN

1-52 36.8 percent non-operated working interest in the DUC.
Highlights of the Year

A Gas cross-border points

Chairis Statement The DUC comprises of 15 fields, four export pipelines and significant

1
3

Completion of Tyrall 4 infrastructure. Oiland gas is being produced from four operational hubs.
6
9

It accounts for nearly 90 percent of the oiland gas that is produced in the area.
The four export pipelines secure exports from the hubs to the Danish mainland

Our Business at a Glance

Chief Executive Officer Statement

and the international market.

Business Model 12
Our Strate: 13 ) . o
—— i . You can find out more about the history of the DUC by visiting
e tRtonocY 14 bluenord.com/ourassets
Strategyin Action 15
Operational Review 21
Financial Review 23
Sustainability Report 25 -
Risk Management 44 DUC ownershlp
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 45 Oiland gas producer
in Denmark
53-71
72-154

Successful restart of
productionon Tyra

B TotalEnergies (Operator) 43.2%
BlueNord (Partner) 36.8%
® Nordsafonden (Partner) 20% The DUC, which started production
in1972,is locatedin the Central
Graben sector of the North Sea.

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023
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Our Business at a Glance continued

DUC represents ¢.90 percent of Danish oil and gas
production with alow decline-rate on base production

and significant near-term growth.

185.6mmboe

2Preserves

24.9mboepd

2023 production

>55mboepd

2025 production

7 BlueNord

135%

2023 reserves replacement

3.9%

2021-23 annual decline

>120%

2023-25 growth

Strategic Report
Net production mboepd
m Actuals Estimates >95
>40

269 26.7 24.9

2021 2022 2024 2024 2025
2P development from YE22 to YE23, net

182.3 -91 125 185.6

I |
Year End Produced Reserves Year End
2022 2023 Additions 2023
2023

H Decrease Increase u Total

2Preserves and 2Cresources, net

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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In this report Our Business at a Glance continued

Our assets

Highlights of the Year

O ®DL

1
Chair's Statement S Dan Hub Halfdan Hub Gorm Hub TyraHub
Completion of Tyrall 4 Discoveredin 1971and brought on productionin Halfdanis currently the largest producing field in The Gorm Hub was also discoveredin 1971 Tyrais the largest gas fieldin the DUC. The
Our Business ata Glance 6 1972, Dan was the first DUC field in production. Denmark and the mostimportant DUC assetin and brought on productionin1981. Gorm redevelopment will extend the field's life to
Chief Executive Officer Statement 9 Close to 26 percent of total Danish ol terms of both value and resources is the export hub for most of the oil produced continue producing until the concession
Business Model 12 production has been extracted from this field. inDenmark. expiryin2042.
Our Strategy 13
Distribution Policy 14
Strategyin Action 15 TR —_
Operational Review 21 HALFDAN NORTH FREIA HARALD EAST
Financial Review 23 FALFDANNORTHEAST s T
Sustainability Report 25
Risk Management 44
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 45

53-71
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Producing field
No production

m Discovery

94%

Oil share of
2P reserves

26.5

Net 2P reserves

mmboe

8 BlueNord

REGNAR

79

Net production

2023

83%

Operational
efficiency

HALFDANMAIN

Producing field
m Discovery

69%

Oil share of
2P reserves

44.6

Net 2P reserves

mmboe

12.7

Net production

mboepd

91%

Operational
efficiency

DAGMAR

Producing field
No production

97%

Oil share of
2Preserves

14.9

Net 2P reserves

mmboe

SKJOLD

4.3

Net production

mboepd

80%

Operational
efficiency

VALDEMAR

Producing field
m Discovery
No production

42% 27-29

Expected Q4 2024
net production rate
mboepd

Oil share of
2P reserves

99.5 30%

Net2Preserves  Lessemissions
mmboe compared to the
previous facilities

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023
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Euan Shirlaw
Chief Executive Officer

9 BlueNord

In 2023, BlueNord delivered operationally and financially.
The Company’s growing track record of achieving the
ambitious targets it has set will continue into 2024 with
the start of distributions to shareholders.

Our achievements are the result of careful
planning, consistent execution, disciplined capital
allocation and by being adaptable. It has been
made possible by the strength of the team and
DUC partnership, the quality of the DUC assets
and the support of the Danish Government,
which has created an environment for
long-terminvestment.

Thelast year also saw the foundations being
successfully laid that will support long-termreturns
tothe Company’s shareholders. Thisincluded the
restart of production fromthe Tyraredevelopment,
commencing a programme of infill drilling and
beginning the process of adapting the capital
structure of the business to be appropriate for

our current position.

Looking back to where the Company has come
fromsince acquiring its interestin the DUC in 2019,
today’s positionis aremarkable achievement. We
are, however, only at the start of the next chapter
inthis story as we progress towards our ambition
of both becoming a significant, independent EU
energy producer and fully delivering the value

of BlueNord to our stakeholders.

Production and operations

Production for the year came in at the top end of
guidance at 24.9 mboed. This performance
predominantly reflects higher well potential and
less disruption than anticipated due to the reroute
work on Halfdan.

Better well potential is the result of well
maintenance activity undertakenin 2022 and
during 2023 across all three of our operational
hubs. Thisincluded a scale squeeze and
restimulationintervention on Gormin 2022 and
atotal of 3wellinterventions and 13 restimulations
in2023.

The rerouting of Halfdan oil stabilisation to Dan
took place in the second quarter of the year. The
work was completed ahead of schedule, resulting
in higher than anticipated production during that
period. The re-routing work eliminates routine
flaring within the DUC, which is a milestone for the
Company, andisin line with our commitmentstoa
sustainable energy future.

Tyrall

The successful completion of the Tyralll
redevelopment s the standout achievement of the
year. Thisrepresents a significant moment for the
Company, moving us to be a significant playerin
the European energy supply landscape. Putting
this achievementin context, Tyrallis the largest
project carried out on the Danish continental shelf,
providing Denmark and Europe with 2.8 billion
cubic meter of gas per year. Itis a strategically
important gas field, supporting European energy
security and economic development, while
reducing emissions intensity. The successful
completion of the Tyrall project also unlocks
200mmboe of reserves and extends potential field
life by c.25 years.

Strategic Report

This achievement reflects the thorough planning
process, the effort, commitment, and quality of the
team on the ground and the broader management
of the project. | would like to thank all those involved.

Atthe start of 2023, Tyra was in final form, so the
work for the year centred on testing and
commissioning and the tie-in of facilities. This
included testing the gas turbine generators,
reconnecting the export pipeline to Denmark,
completion of subsea work, reconnecting all
satellite fields and completion of leak testing.
Delivery of these and other workstreams during
2023 was supported by furtherimprovements to
productivity and a strong culture of safety.

With Tyra first gas achieved in Q12024, stable
productionis now expected to be reached quicker,
with maximum technical capacity now due within
four months of first gas export resulting in Tyrall
making a greater contribution to 2024 production
than previously anticipated.This decision remains
inline with achieving production of more than

55 mboepd by 2025 and average production of
more than 40 mboepd during 2024.

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Chief Executive Officer Statement continued

The additional production from Tyra Il will
significantly reweight overall production from
liquids to gas, while also reducing emissions

per barrel by 30 percent. Inaddition to the
environmental benefit, it will also greatly reduce the
Company'slifting cost per barrel, to below USD13,
improving returns and cash flow generationinthe
current year and beyond.

Maximising the production opportunity

The strategy to maximise returns fromthe DUC is
based onaprogramme of infill drilling and well
maintenance. This programme is expected to
keep production at over 40 mboepd to 2030, with
out- of-plan projects utilising existing infrastructure
currently being matured to further support the
development of additional volumes.

10 BlueNord

Plans for infill drilling involve a seven-well
programme. The Final Investment Decision (‘FID’)
was taken on two infill wells drilled from Halfdan in
December 2022. These wells are expected to
increase gas production from the Halfdan field,
withanet gain of ¢.2.9 million mboe to BlueNord, of
which 50 percentis gas. Total net cost at FID was
expected to be USD39m, implying a total unit
development cost of c.USD13/boe. The first wellin
the sequence, HBA-27B commenced production
26 March and the initial production rate wasinline
with the expectation of net 3 kboe/day.

FID onHarald East Middle Jurassic was takenin Q1
2024, and this wellis expected to be spudded during
the summer of 2024. If successtul, this well could be
onproduction throughthe new Tyrafacilities by the
end of the year. Itis targeting up to 8mmboe, net to
BlueNord, of which 80 percentis gas.

Tomaintain the high production level the DUC
partnership has committed to continue the well
intervention programme, with current plans for 19
‘WROM activities (Welland Reservoir Optimisation
Management), Skjold gas acceleration, HCA gas ift
installation and yearly stimulation campaigns. This
work willbe undertaken by the Noble Reacher,
whichis currently contracted to mid-2025. Looking
further ahead to 2030 it has been estimated that
additional WROM and restimulation opportunities
targeting ca. 8mmboe (net BlueNord) at a unit
technical cost of ca. 14 $/boe can be identified.

This programme also involves three
developments: Valdemar Bo South, Adda and
Halfdan North. FID on these developmentsis
expectedto be taken between 2025 and 2027,
with production scheduled to start between 2027
and 2029.

Strategic Report

INQ12023, the Company formed a strategic
partnership with Semco Marine, to help maximise
the DUC opportunity and access new opportunities.
Semco Marine is a Danish engineeringand
contracting company with more than 40 years of
experience inthe offshore industry.

Reserves

BlueNord, along withits partnersin the DUC, has
been able to maintain a strong reserves position,
which will serve the Company well as it looks to
deliver consistent ongoing production and returns
toinvestors.

BlueNord's annual reserves audit was undertaken
by ERCE and resultedin net 2P reserves of
186mmboe at the end of 2023. This compares to
183mmboe at the end of 2022, and represents a
reserves replacement ratio of over 130 percentin
2023. This extremely strong performanceisa
testament to the quality of our portfolio, reflecting
not only the strong production performancein
2023 but also the progress that has beenmade in
advancing BlueNord's portfolio of medium-term
development projects. Beyond our 2P reserves
base, BlueNord's portfolio also holds more than
200mmboe of 2C contingent resources, of which
27mmboeis attributable to projects that are
expected to be onstream by 2030.

Sustainability

Sustainability is a theme that runs throughout the
Company. Itisreflectedin our focus on health and
safety; our goal of being a significant andlocal
independent supplier of gas to Europe; and our
strategy of investing in minimising the Company’s
footprint, through its operations and two material
CCSprojects.

The BlueNord team works very closely with the
DUC Operator and other partners to ensure a safe
operating environment. This work is based on
investment and developing a positive work and

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Chief Executive Officer Statement continued

management culture. The BlueNord team has
the operational skills and experience to play an
activerole and lam pleased to report a positive
culture across all DUC operations, including the
Tyrallredevelopment.

During the year, the consortium eliminated
routine flaring from the DUC, through investing
inrerouting work on Halfdan. This represents
amilestone for the Company, reflecting its
commitment to minimising emissions from
operations. Furthermore, the Company is
continually assessing other additional emissions
reductioninitiatives for its producing assets and
future activities.

Therestart of gas production from Tyra also
delivers material benefit. Thisincludes a 30
percent reductionin emissions per barrel from the
DUC andalocal, secure supply of energy to the
region, whichis key to reducing emissions and
supporting economic development.

BlueNord continues to invest, financially and
through technical and commercial support, inits
two CCS projects, Bifrost and CarbonCuts. These
represent opportunities to remove and safely store
material quantities of carbon from the atmosphere:
improving quality of life locally and supporting
Europe’s ambition of reaching net zero.

Team

The strength of the BlueNord team comes from
therange of skills and experience it offers. It allows
the Company to contribute operationally, to the
DUC, to the development of the two CCS projects
and to consider other opportunities, while also
maximising capital efficiency. This affords the
Board and senior management the comfort and
flexibility needed to continue to deliver for
shareholders and other stakeholders.

11 BlueNord

The culture of the team is incredibly positive,
reflecting individual commitments to the success
of the business. Itis through that, and the skills
people bring to the Company, that we have been
so successfulin delivering against multiple
milestones. | would like to take the opportunity to
thank each person for their support, without which
we would not be where we are today.

Financials

Revenue for the year was USD795m
(2022:USD967m). This reflects a strong
production performance, at the top end of
guidance, and anincreased weighting to gas,
offset by lower overall commmaodity pricing,
mitigated by an active hedging policy.

EBITDA for the year to 31 December 2023 was
USD421m (2022: USD611m). This decrease
reflects the Company’s revenue performance,
combined with expenditure during the year to
support production.

The Company’s balance sheet remains strong,
with net debt at the year-end of USD1,088m,
reflecting a further year of strong cash flow
generation. At the year end the Company had total
liquidity of USD317m.

As production from Tyrall feeds through to cash
flows, the Company can expect its balance sheet
strength toimprove further, placing BlueNord ina
good position to become a material, long term
dividend-paying company for its shareholders.

The hedging policy in 2023 supported access to
greater spot pricing, post-amending the hedging
policy requirements under the reserve-based
lending facility (RBL) in 2022. Looking ahead to
2024, the hedging strategy will continue to allow
further exposure to commodity price changes,
while recognising the benefit of adding certainty
around future cash flow when the outlook for
commodity prices allows.

Outlook

We entered 2024 with a strong portfolio,
supported by the near-term addition of volumes
from Tyra. This means BlueNord is now able to put
inplace adistribution policy that we believe fully
delivers the value of BlueNord's portfolio to all
our stakeholders; we will prioritise near-term
distributions during 2024 to 2026, while at the
same time maintaining a conservative balance
sheet and undertaking measured reinvestment
where attractive opportunities to do so exist.

Despite the impact of Tyra on productionin the
current year and beyond, we do not envisage any
change tothe Company'’s approach. Each
decision will continue to be assessed against the
most efficient use of capital and the Company’s
ability to drive higher distributions for investors and
other stakeholders for the long term. Nonetheless,
with production set to double, BlueNord finds itself
inafortunate position, affording it a strong base
and flexibility, supporting its future.

As the year develops, I look forward to updating
investors on further milestones as they are met and
our plans for distribution. Despite the impact of an
increasingly volatile world, | also look forward to the
future of the Company with continued confidence.

Euan Shirlaw
Chief Executive Officer
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Business Model

Our purpose is to provide Europe with
the energy for today, tomorrow, and in
the net-zero future to come

BlueNord has a differentiated business model,
which prioritises distributions to shareholders,
while at the same time maintaining a conservative
balance and allocating capital as needed to
secure the long-term contribution of our
operational portfolio.

Framework for Disciplined Capital Allocation, Prioritising Near-Term Distributions
while maintaining a conservative balance sheet and securing the long-term contribution
of BlueNord's portfolio.

High-return, quick payback investments.
Maximise contribution from base assets.

Organic Growth:
Delivering our business model starts with Short-Cycle
maximising the value of our underlying business.
We do this by taking an active approach, focused
oninfluencing and exercising control. Thisis
further supported by measured reinvestment

where attractive.

Measure investments where attractive.

Organic Growth: Must be accretive to equity returns profile.

Long-Cycle

Maintain conservative balance sheet.
As anengaged DUC partner, we play a meaningful
rolein direction and activity, ensuring a well-
managed portfolio that fully delivers onits potential.

Capital Structure

Maximise near-term distributions.

Distributions Maintain long-termreturns profile.

(®» Maximise value of

Maximise access to secured debt capacity.

+(©® ouroperational
portfolio

12 BlueNord

>

Strategic Report

Infill Well Programme

Valdemar Bo South
Halfdan North

RBL refinancing

- =
ig::t::: :::::1 flow . :":“
to be returned during <
2024-26

Allocate capital
U perdisciplined
framework
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Our Strategy

Our core objective is to ensure we
maximise the long-term value we
deliver for our broad stakeholder
group. We believe we do this best by
balancing the demands of energy
security against the needs of the
energy transition, and our strategy
is set to enable this.

We willmake further measured investments where
economically attractive to do so, which willin turn
help ensure energy prices are affordable to
consumers, both residentialand industrial.

We will seek to lower overall emissions by producing
more gas which will offset higher carbonintensive
sources of energy like coal, investing inemissions
reductioninitiatives for existing producing
assets,andinvestingin activities that support
anet-zerosociety.

BlueNord

D
°2 | Deliver operationally

Strong production performance, driven by an
active approach to asset management that will
see BlueNord continue to seek opportunities to
enhance near-term volumes.

Tyra secures energy supply by producing 2.8
billion cubic meters of gas per year to Denmark
and Europe, while at the same time reducing
emissions intensity by 30%.

03

Deliver our potential

Maximise value of BlueNord, with near-term
shareholder returns prioritised, while also
maintaining a conservative balance sheet
and reinvesting where attractive to do so.

Delivery in 2023

Strong productionin upper end of
annual guidance.

Mitigation of natural decline and
delivery at or above guidance for

12 consecutive quarters.

Active management by the
operator with delivery of the
WROM programme.

Attractive Short-Cycle Investments
being pursued with the firstinfill well
spuddedinJune.

Strategic Report

Focus for 2024

WROM to continue with activities
approved to 2025+

Focus onidentifying further
opportunities for enhancementin
fields that have not been subject to
WROM to date.

Further maturation of infill
opportunities, including for the newly
onstream Tyra hub.

First gasachievedin March 2024.
Shorter ramp-up to maximum
technical capacity supported by

additional work done prior to first gas.

Activities support net BlueNord
production expectations of over 55
mboepd in 2025 and substantial free
cash flow generation.

Ensure ramp-up to maximum
technical capacity delivered

within four months per current
Operator guidance.

Deliver unplugging and reactivation
of Tyrawells according to

schedule to supportjourney to

peak production.

Seek to debottleneck facilities to the
maximum extent possible, potentially
unlocking scope beyond 300
mmscfpd nameplate capacity.

Distribution policy announced, which
will prioritise near-termreturns to
shareholders, while maintaining a
conservative balance sheet.
Progress made with project portfolio,
with maturationreflected in >130%
2P reservesreplacement for 2023.

Deliver distribution profile with
50-70% of net operating cash flow
distributed to shareholders from
202410 2026.

Complete refinancing of BlueNord
balance sheet with conservative
capital position maintained
throughout.

Progress opportunities to invest
where accretive to long-term
distribution profile.

Continue to assess opportunities
for short and long-term emissions
reductions.
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14 BlueNord

Strategic Report

Distribution Policy

Distribution policy set to deliver material
near-term capital returns to shareholders

Ability to return capital supported by substantial free cash flow generation with Tyra onstream,
which will enable the prioritisation of near-term returns to shareholders, while also allowing
measured reinvestment and for a conservative balance sheet to be maintained through cycle.

Cashflow Generation Supports all Stakeholders Shareholder Returns Policy Focused on 2024-26

« 2024 to 26: Distribution policy of 50-70% of Net Operating Cash flow.
- 2027+: Desire to maintain a meaningful returns profile percentage of Net Operating Cash flow:

Prioritisation of shareholder
returns in the near-term

Shareholder distributions based on Net Operating Cashflow

Distribution policy for 2024-26: % of Net Operating Cashflow

70% 70% 70%

Measured re-investment to maintain
strong operational portfolio

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
L

Preservation of strong balance

h h h-cycl
sheet through-cycle > Desireto

maintaina

meaningful
returns
profile

2025 2027+
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L]
Strategic Report

Strategy in Action

Acceleration of gas production from the

Strategic Pillar O1 ) ) . o )
Skjold field by reduction of water injection

Deliver operationally

[ i

Exciting Gas Acceleration Project Pilot initiated end 2023

‘ : . j The change from water injection to depletion drive
j‘ ~=- SN k| i in parts of the Skjold field was started at the end of
= 8 . : { 2023. Thisis acommon way of maximising
recovery from late-life fields and has the additional
benefit of enabling gas export from Gorm; this will
further maximise the economic benefit from Grom
hub production with sale of excess gas production
rather thaninjection back into the reservoir. This
project will potentially increase production by
1.3mmboe, net BlueNord by end 2027,and
increase the gas to oil ratio from the Skjold field.

B North area full waterflood
m Eastareafulldepletion
West area partial waterflood

Thereis some reservoir uncertainty associated
with this project. This is mitigated by conductinga
pilot project over one to two years, with the option
of reversing the processiif the pilot is not
successful. Produced water from Skjold is
reinjected viarestored water injectors in the Gorm
field and other parts of the Skjold field. This project
is also expectedtolead toareductioninfuel gas
consumed in pumps for water injection, if
produced water is reduced as expected.

‘ The Gas Acceleration Pilot is expected to
increase the gas production from the Skjold
field by changing from water injection to
depletion drive. The project may benefit from
reducing the fuel consumption leading to

reduced emissions.
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Optimisation mitigates decline for the
producing DUC fields

Alow overall decline has been observed inthe export executed and planned work, the first infill well since the
volumes from the producing DUC fields since 2021. This is HBB10 well was deliveredin 2017, HBA-27B has come
mainly due to a high level of well activities and increased on production end March 2024. The gas acceleration

focus on delivering a high operational efficiency. Insummer  project pilot on Skjold is also expected to accelerate gas
2022,the DUC optimisation journey commenced by productionand reduce water injection and associated fuel
successful restimulation of eight wells in the Halfdan North consumption by shutting in one water injector pump on
East field. This was followed by the WROM project on Dan Gorm. Thereis a continued high focus on keeping the

with a duration of 18 months, and is now continuing on unplanned shortfalls low, and combining planned work in
Halfdan. In parallel, restimulations are carried out with the best possible way to maintain the operational efficiency
regular intervals on both the Dan, Halfdan and Gorm fields. target above 90 percent.

Further to the increased production, following already

Plot of actual export volumes from 2019 to 2023 from producing DUC fields (excluding Tyra) and the expected guidance
for2024.

DUC excluding Tyra hub — Actual production and decline net BlueNord
334

Total export (kboepd)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Guidance 2024
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Strategy in Action continued

Strategic Pillar 02
L= Deliver Tyrall

With the safe restart of Tyra productionin
March 2024, focus is now on bringing the
Tyra West and East fields as well as satellites
Valdemar, Roar, Harald and Lulita on production
as soon as possible to maximize the utilisation
of one of the most advanced and efficient
offshore gas installations in the world.

emissions reduction
compared to old facilities

Ensuring sustainable energy
security with the Tyralll field

)

Tyrallataglance

Energy Security

Annual sale from Tyra when on plateau
is estimated to 2.8 billion cubic meters
of gas. This gas will satisfy the need for
natural gasin Denmark as wellas
replacing LNG and coal generated
energy in Europe.

The new Tyragas processing facilities
are one of the most technologically
advanced offshore gasinstallationsin
the world. The new Tyraleverages
state-of-the-art digital solutions and
technologicalinnovations to produce
more efficiently and with 30% lower
greenhouse gas emissions than the
former facilities.

The onshore control room willbe
continuously manned and can be used
to fully remotely control the Tyrahub
offshore operations. This set-up will
improve collaboration between the

Strategic Report

onshore and offshore teams, reduce
the need for unscheduled offshore
visits, reducing the overall risk of the
Tyraproduction operations.

The new Tyrafacilities offshore are
equipped witharound 100,000 data
points retrieved from sensors on
critical equipment, which will
continuously be monitored and
analysed by the onshore control room
team. A technology called advanced
predictive monitoring will be used to
ensure that potential repairs or
adjustments required are executed
before the processing equipment
stops working which will significantly
reduce unplanned shutdowns.

This new way of working willincrease
the Tyra hub operational efficiency and
reduce cost and energy required for
the Tyra hub production operations.

A :
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Strategy in Action continued

Strategic Pillar 03
Deliver our potential

)

AN

1173

18  BlueNord:

L]
Strategic Report

Routine flaring eliminated from July 2023,
and further flare reduction initiatives to be
implemented in 2024

Completed and ongoing flaring reduction projects on Gorm

Routine flaring has been eliminated in DUC as of

6 July 2023. The routine flaring was caused by
flaring of excess gas from the final stabilisation of
Halfdan oilon Gorm as there was no available
export route. This routine flaring was eliminated
through the Halfdan reroute project, where the oil
from Halfdan is now being routed to Dan for final
stabilisation. The estimated reduction in emissions
is 20 ktonCO e/y.

Flaring—Gorm

24

During 2023, afeasibility study onflare gas
recovery from Gorm processing has been
completed, the projectis expected to be
implemented by the end of 2024. The estimated
reductioninemissions is estimated to 9
ktonCO,e/y.Incombination, the recently enabled
gas export from Gormand the flare recovery has
the potential of reducing flaring on the Gorm facility
upto50%in2025.

High focus on
reducing flaring on
producing facilities.
Gormis the first hub
on the emissions
journey.

2021 2022 2023
GORM

m Actuals Estimate 2024 m Estimate 2025
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Strategy in Action continued

é) Strategic Pillar 03
Deliver our potential

The Long-Term Plan outlines development
activities up to 2030, based on the current
technical and economic landscape of the
Danish Underground Consortium (DUC).
Projects will be revised and optimised in
light of findings from technical studies,
production, and changing
macroeconomic conditions.

The planincludes the drilling of seven infill wells between
2023 and 2026. Of these, up to four oil wells will be drilled
from Halfdan, one gas near-field exploration well from Harald,
with two more still under consideration. The 4D seismic
acquiredin 2023 is key to identifying pockets of undepleted
reservoir in the Halfdan field; interpretation of this datais
ongoing and willguide the infill programme.

Following delivery of these infill wells, three further
developments will be executed: five wells on Valdemar Bo
South, seven wells on Adda, and then nine Halfdan North
wells. BlueNordis conducting independent technical work to
investigate opportunities for acceleration, to enable timely
delivery of affordable energy.

Inaddition, we are working to mature additional infill wells in
the Tyraarea. Work is ongoing to increase production and
reach design capacity during the summer of 2024, which will
unlock significant volumes from Tyra and satellites with our
modern and efficient processing facilities.

19 BlueNord
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to be drilled between 2023 and 2026 on Valdemar Bo South
onAdda on Halfdan North
Estimated rig activity schedule
2023 2024 2025 2027 2030

Q@2 Q3 o4 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q Q2 Q3 Q4
Halfdan TNE Infills HEmJ Halfdan EKO Infills VeldemEr e, DERENeIi ReErEns
Tyra South East under maturation

H Drilling of new wells  m Workovers or plugging and abandonment  m Development projects

Expected Long-Term Plan production profile

60

. | I
40 . I I
20 mDan, Halfdan, Gorm
Tyra
mIn-Planprojects
0 mAbove plan

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
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Key BlueNord Long-Term Plan projects for 2024-30

Halfdan infill

The Halfdaninfill wells are planned as a continuation of the Halfdan field development. A FID was made in 2022 for two infill
wells, planned to be drilled in the Halfdan Upper Cretaceous Tor formation. The first well commenced productionin April
2024. If supported by positive indications from the 4D seismic study, the Halfdan Ekofisk well will be drilled after the Harald
East Middle Jurassic well.

Harald East
Middle Jurassic

Thisisagas well drilled from the Harald platform into a Jurassic reservoir which has significantly better production potential
thanthe chalk reservoirs presentin the Dan, Halfdan and Gorm hubs. The wellis classified as a near field step-out welland
has alarge range of subsurface outcomes. FID was takenin January 2024, with first production expected in late-2024.

HCA gas lift

The HCA gaslift project is planned for 2025. The gas liftis required to support well production and thereby increase
production potential. Project scope comprises modifications to Halfdan B topside facilities, as well as a gas lift manifold to
beinstalled at Halfdan C. Construction of the main module is complete.

Halfdan North

The Halfdan North Upper Cretaceous discovery is a northern extension of the producing Halfdan field. Halfdan North was
confirmed by the well HDN-2X and later in 2016 by the Tyra SE, TSB-3A well. The discovery will be tied back to the Halfdan
B (‘HBD’) processing platform with a seven kilometre pipeline from a newly-built wellhead platform with nine horizontal
wells, five producers and four water injectors. Field Development Plan submitted to Danish Energy Agency (DEA) in 2020.

Valdemar Bo
South

This discovery is a southern extension of the producing Valdemar field. Valdemar Bo South has been confirmed by the
Bo-3X and Jude-1X exploration well and further by the VBA-6E horizontal well drilled in 2012. The discovery will be tied
back to Tyra E via the Valdemar BA platform with a 2.5km pipeline from a newly-built wellhead platform with five horizontal
wells. Field Development Plan submitted to DEA in 2020.

Adda

The Adda discovery was made in 1977 by the Adda-1well. The discovery well found gas condensate in the lower
Cretaceous Tuxen Formation and oilin the overlying Upper Cretaceous Hod Formation. The discovery will be tied back to
TyraEast with an 11km pipeline from a newly-built wellhead platform with seven horizontal producer wells. Field
Development Plan submitted to DEAIn 2021.

Svend

Production from the Svend field ceased in 2016 due to well integrity issues. Due to dependencies on the production life of
the Harald hub, Svend s currently categorised as a potential addition to the Long-Term Plan, subject to HEMJ success.

20 BlueNord
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Operational Review

Net cash flow from operating activity

$250m

Effective oil price

$67.8

USD/bbl

BlueNord

BlueNord performance in 2023

was strong

The Company delivered five percent above budget despite production from the first Halfdan well being

delivered in 2024 (rather than 2023). Production during the year benefitted from an increased level of well-
optimisation activity and higher uptime than planned due to the reduced duration of planned shutdowns.

However, the safe delivery of the Tyrarestart
and Tyraramp-up is the most significant
ongoing development.

Following constructionin Singapore, Indonesia, ltaly
and Denmark, the world's largest ever lift froma
floating crane —of 17,000 tonnes —took placein
QOctober 2022. The subsequent offshore hook-up
and commissioning period involved more than 1500
offshore and 250 onshore workers.

During 2023 and the first quarter of 2024, a huge
scope of offshore work has been completed
enabling the Tyrafacilities to process and export
gastoDenmark.

During the middle of the year, the commissioning
strategy was optimised and entailed extensive use

of Nitrogenrather than natural gas. This change of
strategy offered the benefits of less construction
work after the commencement of gas production
andalso asignificantly reduced fuel consumption
during start-up. This new strategy for start-up caused
aslightly delay of gasinandrestart of Tyrabut could
offer asignificantly quicker ramp-up to full processing
capacity. The new commissioning strategy was
enabled by generation of Nitrogen on Tyraand this
Nitrogen generationhas alsoincreased efficiency

for reinstaterment of wells.

The TyraEastand Tyra West wells reinstatement has
progressed wellwith the phase 1scope of installing
refurbished Xmas trees have beeninstalled onall
TyraEastand West wells. The phase 2 scope of
removing temporary plugs have been completed for
allwells onthe Tyra West Binstallationand work is
commencing wellon Tyra West C with18 out of 23
TyraWest wells re-instated as of end March. A
Wireline unitis being mobilised on TyraEast B.

The onshore controlroom has been operational
since June 2023 and has beenactively used for
collaboration between the onshore and offshore
teams during commissioning. In parallel with the
hook-up and commissioning activities on Tyra East
and West, the Tyra Satellite fields that have also been
shutinsince 2019 are being prepared for start-up.

Tyraproduction willbe ramped up according to the
following sequence
Gasinfrom Dan (achieved 16 March 2024).
GasexporttoNybro (achieved 21 March 2024).
GasinfromHarald (achieved 25 March 2024).
Openingonvalvesin Nybroand export of gasto
the Danishmarket.
Gasinfrom TyraSouth East.
Start-up of gaslift system.
Twogasexport trainsin operation.
Gasinfrom Valdemar.
GasinfromRoar.
TyraWest commencement of production.
TyraEast commencement of production.

With production from the Harald field, a significant
step hasbeen taken towards reaching the full
processing capacity at Tyra. To find out more about
the landmark Tyrastory, see page 4 of thisreport.

The outlook for 2024 is extremely strong withan
expected doubling of the BlueNord production
throughout the year.

Fromthe base assets, the production fromthe
Halfdan Tor North Eastinfillwellcommenced late
March 2024 while Final Investment Decisions on the
Halfdan Ekofisk wellsis expected during the years
while WROM on Halfdan will continue throughout
theyear.

Theinvestmentinthe Harald East Middle Jurassic
well was approvedin January 2024 andinasuccess
case, this well could provide a production upsidein
thelast quarter of 2024.

Workis ongoing to mature the major projects towards
Investment Decisions in 2025 which will contribute to
maintaining the BlueNord productionaround 50 000
mboepd. BlueNord has built a stable business thatis
underpinned by our positionand expertise onthe
DUC Assetsandreservoirs.

Marianne Eide
Chief Operating Officer
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Operational Review continued

2023 - Annual performance

The production performance in 2023 was
excellentandresulted in the upper production
guidance given at the beginning being
exceeded. It should also be noted that the 2023
production performance was achieved without
the start-up of new wells. The Halfdan North Tor
North East infill well commenced productionin
late March 2024. This excellent performance
was caused by a high level of wellintervention
and restimulation activities, as wellas a high
operational efficiency. In particular, the
production benefited from the optimisation
campaign on the Dan field which started in
mid-2022 and continued throughout 2023.1n
this campaign, a total of 50 well interventions
were carried out on Dan with the rig Noble
Reacher, and resulted in the 2023 production
from the Dan Hub being two percent higher
thanthe 2022 production. In 2024, Noble
Reacher willmove to Halfdan, where 17 well
interventions are planned to be carried out.

The delivered operational efficiency was

86 percent, which was in line with BlueNord's
expectation for 2023. The forecasted high
operational efficiency was delivered despite
two productionlossincidents at the beginning
of the year. Ingeneral the Company has seen
excellent operational performance by the
operator and quick response to these loss
events. With respect to brown-field modification
execution, the Dan-Halfdan re-route work
was completed ahead of schedule with

lower than expected impact on Danand
Halfdan production.

As aresponse to the strong production
performance of the Gorm Hub, life extension
activities were initiated by the partnershipin
2023 to ensure longer-term integrity of the
installation to ensure maximum recovery

of reserves.

22 BlueNord

PRODUCTION PERFORMANCE 2023

Strategic Report

PRODUCTION OUTLOOK 2024

Dan
Hub

Production performance was highin 2023 mainly attributed to:
18 wellinterventions carried out with the rig Noble Reacher.
Six restimulations carried out in March and eight restimulations
inMay.
Stable well-count throughout the year.

Tokeep production highin 2024 the planis to:

Carry out two proactive workovers by rig Shelf Drilling Winner.
Maintain the high operational efficiency to benefit from the
increased production potential resulting from the 2022/23
optimisation campaign.

Carry out restimulation campaign during the summer months.

Gorm
Hub

Production performance was highin 2023 mainly attributed to:
Restimulation of 13 wells carried out in the Gorm field.
Available gas production capacity has beenincreased through
gasreinjectioninto the Rolf field and also by storing excess gas
inthe Gorm Halfdan pipeline. In late 2023, gas export from
Gorm was established which will also increase gas production
capacity and reduce flaring.

Tokeep production highin 2024 the planis to:

Fullyimplement the Skjold Gas Acceleration Project Pilot, where the

recovery mechanismis changed from water injection to depletionin

parts of the Skjold field, which is expected to increase the production
gastooilratio, as well as accelarate reserves. Start water injectionin

the two newly reinstated water injectors in the Gorm field.

Perform restimulation campaign during the summer months.

Utilise the gas export that was established late 2023.

Halfdan
Hub

Production performance was highin 2023 mainly attributed to:
Arrest of the production decline of the Halfdan field by keeping
the well-count high and stable.

Exceptionally high operating efficiency of 90.7 percent.
Continued high gas production as a result of the restimulation
of eight HCA wellsin2022.

Tokeep production highin 2024 the planis to:

Carry out 17 wellinterventions with the rig Noble Reacher. The
interventions include water shut-off treatments, as well as zone
shifting of the wells for optimisation of the water flood efficiency.
Carry out restimulations on nine wells.

The Halfdan Tor NE infill well HBA-27B commenced productionin
April 2024.

Maintain the high operational efficiency at this hub.

Tyra
Hub

To ensure safe and efficient start-up:

ensure tailored re-start and ramp-up for each individual well to
protect the productivity of each well.

analyse pressure buildup during production shut-in to understand
more about the potential of each reservoir.

commence studies for identification of well optimisation
opportunities.

: 5
g
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Financial Review

Effective oil price

$67.8

USD/bbl

Net cash flow from operating activity

$250m

Effective gas price

135.7

EUR/MWh

Cost per boe

$32.5

Total revenue

$795m

23 BlueNord

“We have had a strong year driven
by excellent underlying operating
performance which exceeded
expectations and led to a strong
and stable financial resultin 2023.
When comparing with 2022, the
commodity price environment in
2023 was less volatile and on
average lower overall pricing

was realised.

With revenues of USD 795 million and EBITDA of
USD 421 million for the full year, this has resultedin

significant cash generation from operating activities
of USD 250 million, ending the year with total liquidity

of USD 317 million, comprising of cash on balance

sheet of USD 167 million and undrawn RBL capacity

of USD 150 million.

Our capital structure remains robust supported by
our liquidity position and net debt, with no principal
maturities prior to Tyrafirst gas. The RBL facility
has successfully remained at the same level of

USD 11 billion, with maximum cash drawing capacity

of USD1.0billion.

We also continue to maintain ahedging policy that
provides visibility over future cash flow, adding
volumes where it makes sense to do so, thereby
supporting our balance sheet and capital structure

through this continued uncertain price environment.

Jacqueline Lindmark Boye
Chief Financial Officer

The Company had revenues of USD 795.0
millionin 2023 (2022: USD 966.9 million) mainly
related to oiland gas sales from the DUC fields.
The decreaseisrelated to lower realised
commodity prices, with a decrease of

23.2 percentongasand10.2 percent on oll,
respectively, net of hedging effects, in addition
t0 2.9 percent lower oil volumes, offset by

1.2 percent higher gas volumes.

Production expenses of USD 295.9 million

in 2023 (2022: 308.5 million) were directly
attributable to the lifting and transport of the
Company's oiland gas production, which
equates to USD 32.5 per boe (2022: USD 31.6
per boe). Adjusted forinsurance and changesin
stock and inventory, total production expenses
amounted to USD 340.1 millionin 2023 (2022:
USD 3283.4 million). Current year is influenced by
the production enhancing WROM and the
Integrity Recovery Project (IRP’) project which
startedin2022.

Personnel expenses were USD 18.0 millionin
2023 (2022: USD 12.5 million). The increase is
mainly due to the increased number of FTE’s
andimplementationin 2022 of the share-based
long-termincentive ('LTI') programme; the LTI

is valued and accounted for according to
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS™) 2. For more information related to the
LTI, see page 64 inthe Remuneration
Committee Report.

Other operating expenses amounted to
USD 14.1 millionin 2023 (2022: USD 19.1 million).
The decreaseis due tolower consultant and
legal fees.

Operatingresult (EBITDA) for 2023 was a
profit of USD 421.4 million (2022: USD 611.2
million). This decrease is mainly attributable
tolower revenue.

Strategic Report

EBITDA

$421m

Total liquidity

$317m
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Financial Review continued

Net financial items amounted to an expense of
USD 75.2 millionin 2023 (2022 restated: USD
168.7 million). This is primarily driven by the
decrease inthe negative fair value adjustment
onNOR13's embedded derivative in 2023
compared to 2022, the value of whichis influenced
by changesin BlueNord's share price, and the
unwinding and fair-value adjustment of the interest
swap. In addition, 2022 was influenced by a
positive effect from the extinguishment of the
NOR13 bondloan, that was partly offset by higher
interestincome related to restricted cash. The net
financial items for 2022 have beenrestated due

to capitalisation of borrowing cost on qualifying
assets under construction, for more details see
note 10 on page 92.

Income Tax for the Group amounted to a current
tax cost of USD 145.5 million and deferred tax
movements amounted to USD 11.8 million
(income), which corresponds to a statutory tax rate
of 64 percent on result before tax on hydrocarbon
income, adjusted with the effects of investment
uplift, foreign exchange adjustment of tax losses
and interest limitation. Current tax isimpacted by
the temporary EU-solidarity tax charge; however,
thisis offset by an equivalent reductionin
hydrocarbon tax deferred tax charge, hence not
increasing the effective tax rate from the statutory
64 percent. Effective tax is O percent on result
before taxin Norway and UK and 22 percent

tax onresult before tax on ordinary income
inDenmark.

Reference is made to note 14 in the consolidated
financial statements for further details to the taxes
this period.

The Group’s net result for the year of USD 109.8
million (2022 restated:loss of USD 8.8 million).

Total non-current assets amounted to USD 3.0
billion at the end of 2023, of which USD 2.4 billion
related to property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets of USD 151.6 million, deferred tax assets of
USD 218.5 million, derivatives related to the RBL
interest swap and gas hedges of USD 14.0 million
and USD 213.9 millioninrestricted cash, relating to
security for DUC cash-call obligations pledged to
TotalEnergies, and security against Nini/Cecilie
abandonment costs.

Total current assets amounted to USD 381.9 million
atthe end of 2023.USD 59.9 millionin trade
receivables and accrued revenue, mainly related
to oiland gas revenue, USD 24.8 millionin
prepayments primarily offshore and non-payment
insurance premiums, USD 166.7 million of cash
and USD 54.7 million of inventory.

Equity amounted to USD 813.6 million at the
end of 2023 (2022 restated: 664.2 million).
Theincrease in equity is mainly related to the
net result of the year and the positive fair value
adjustment of hedges.

Interest-bearing debt amounted to USD 1.2 billion
atthe end of 2023 (2022: USD 1.1 billion). The
increase mainly relates to the draw-down of USD
50 million on the RBL facility. Most of the BNOR13
convertible bondloan was converted to BNOR15
inthe beginning of 2023; the remaining value was
converted to shares by end of 2023. BNOR15
convertible bondloan had a book value of USD
202.0 million at the end of 2023. The bond loans
are valued at amortised cost and the embedded
derivatives are accounted for as a derivative liability
at fair value through profit and loss. BlueNord’s
USD 1.1billion RBL facility, drawn at USD 850.0
million on 31 December 2023 and with maximum
cashdrawing capacity of USD 1.0 billion, had a
book-value of USD 820.8 million at the end of
2023, of which USD 125.0 millioniis classified as
current liability asitis due for paymentinthe

second half of 2024. The senior unsecured bond
loan BNOR14 had abook value of USD 169.1 million
atthe end of 2023. The RBL facility and the
unsecured bond loan are valued at amortised cost.

Asset retirement obligations amounted to USD
1,049 million at the end of 2023 (2022: USD
955.8 million). The increase is driven primarily by
accretion of the provision during 2023, updated
exchange rates and some minor changes in cut-off
years.USD 981.4 millionis related to the DUC
assets, USD 64.3 million to Nini/Cecilie, USD
1.5millionto Lulitaand USD 1.9 millionto the Tyra
F-3 pipeline. The Nini/Cecilie asset retirement
obligationis secured through a cash escrow
account of USD 64.3 million.

Net cash flow from operating activities amounted
to USD 249.9 million at the end of 2023 (2022:
USD 561.3 million). The decrease is mainly driven
by higher tax paymentsin 2023 of USD 229.8
millionthat relate in large part to the 2022 taxable
income, as well as lower revenue mainly from
lower commaodity prices net of hedging. Cash flow
from operations excluding changes in taxes paid
amounted to USD 479.7 millionin 2023 compared
toUSD 572.9 millionin 2022.

Cash flow used ininvesting activities amounted to
an outflow of USD 347.6 million at the end of 2023
(2022:USD 259.0 million). The cash flow usedin
investing activities related to DUC investments

of USD 311.0 million, of which USD 254.7 million
was spent on Tyra redevelopment (including
preparation work related to Tyra satellites and
excluding capitalised interest). USD 31.2 million
was spent on drilling the infill well on Halfdan; in
addition, USD 25.0 million was spent on projects
such as Gorm lifetime extension, gas acceleration
project, 4D seismic survey and other minor
projects. USD 25.0 millionin deferred
consideration, USD 8.7 millionin paid
decommissioning, issue of along-termloan of

Strategic Report

USD 2.8 millionand USD O.1 million in exploration
and evaluation assets.

Cash flow from financing activities amounted to
anoutflow of USD 3.9 million at the end of the year
(2022: USD 156.5 million). The cash outflow in the
current year is mainly related to USD 53.6 million
inpaidinterest net of interest swap and financing
costs, offset by USD 50.0 million drawdown on

the RBL facility, compared to last year's voluntary
repayment of USD 100.0 million on the RBL facility.

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
amounted to a cash outflow of USD 101.6 million
in2023 (2022: positive cashflow of USD 145.8
million). Cash and cash equivalents were in total
USD 166.7 million at the end of 2023.

/
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Sustainability Report

Delivering secure, affordable
and locally produced energy
to Denmark and EU

We recognise climate change and support
Denmark and EU net zero goals by working
to reduce our carbon footprint.

-1/

B —

25 BlueNord

BlueNord continues to
identify our solutions to
contribute to the UN SDGs

as we aim to address various
environmental, social and
economic challenges facing
our world today. Examples of
our actions, programmes and
the SDGs to which they relate
are demonstrated throughout
this report and are summarised
in Appendix 2.

Our goals

We recognise climate change science as set out
by the United Nations Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change (IPCC’) and support the global
climate change goals outlined in the United
Nations Framework Convention on Climate
Change (UNFCCC’) and the Paris Agreement.
We also recognise that hydrocarbons are
expected to remain animportant part of the energy
mix for the foreseeable future, and that we have a
responsibility to play an active role in the energy
transition. Our strategy is to produce affordable
andreliable energy for Denmark and the wider EU,
whilst managing climate-related risks and
opportunities, by assessing operational emissions
reduction activities in conjunction with the
Operator and partners.

Whilst our overall emissions willincrease in 2024
as Tyrais brought back on-stream, emissions will
be lower thanin 2018 during Tyra's last full year of
production prior to shut down. Tyra's new modern
and efficient facilities will result in a 30 percent
emissions reduction compared to the old facilities.
Tyrasignals the start of a new era, minimising
emissions in the most efficient way possible while
contributing positively to the growing demand for
energy. Tyraenables us to produce locally sourced
hydrocarbons, displacing imported hydrocarbons
which have higher emissions intensities.

Investment in CarbonCuts is another commitment
from BlueNord to take an active role in the energy
transitionand support Denmark and EU ambitions for
Carbon Storage deployment and contribute to the
Paris Agreement’s goal of arresting global warming.

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Sustainability Report continued

Commitments, stakeholder engagement and materiality

We are commiitted to the following:

As aresponsible partner in the DUC, BlueNord

is committed along with the operator

TotalEnergies to:

— Ensuring people’s safety and upholding
Human Rights in our operations and those
of our suppliers.

— Reducing scope 1and scope 2 emissions by

40 percent from DUC assets by 2030
compared to 2015 levels. Taking an active
rolein Denmark’s target to reduce its

emissions by 70 percent by 2030 compared

to 1990 levels, as part of Denmark’s
commitment to the Paris Agreement.

— Helping EUreduce emissions by at least 55
percent by 2030 compared to 1990 levels,
as part of the European Green Deal.

— Reducing methane emissions by using
state-of-the-art technology to detect leaks
and subsequently repair them.

— Beingaplayerinthe circular economy.

— Preserving biodiversity.

— Sharing the economic value we create.

We willdo this by:

— Reducing DUC GHG emissions intensity by
bringing Tyrallon stream.

— Investinginmethane detectionand
reduction, and flare reduction initiatives.

— Evaluating and executing further Carbon
Footprint Reduction (CFR’) opportunities.
Electrification of the DUC operationsis
currently being studied.

— Supporting DUC tolocally recycle obsolete
infrastructure, such as Tyra,and plan for
further recycling during future
decommissioning activities.

26 BlueNord

— Investinginthe CCS value chain with
CarbonCuts.

— Conducting transparent Environmental
Impact Assessments.

—  Complying with EU reporting standards and
regulatory requirements during operations,
by adopting Corporate Sustainability
Reporting Directive (CSRD’) by 2025.

— Maintaining our social licence to operate by
engaging with stakeholders, including local
communities, regulatory authorities,and
industry partners.

— Returning value through taxation to the
Danish government to enable further state
investment in the Energy Transition.

Theimpacts of which will drive:

— Secure access to affordable and locally
produced energy.

— Economic growthand job opportunities
for Denmark.

— Delivery of environmental, social and
governance (ESG') considerations
into financial decision making with the
aim of promoting long-term sustainable
development.

— Continuous improvement of DUC
environmental footprint.

During 2023, BlueNord aligned with the
Norwegian Transparency Act and the Equality
and Anti-Discrimination Act. We developed a
separate report from each committee (ESG,
Remuneration, Audit,and Nomination), conducted
amateriality assessment, and established
reporting against the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD’). BlueNord
also established arisk register and has requested
monthly emissions data from the Operator.

In2022, the EU Council gave final approval to the
CSRD, to which BlueNordis required to reportin
accordance with the new standards, ESRS, from
next year (2025). The Company has therefore
taken steps to prepare for this.

Reduction in scope 1and scope 2 emissions by 40% from

DUC assets by 2030 compared to 2015 levels

Strategic Report

TCFD and CSRD reporting standards integration
is areflection of the changing landscape and the
expectations of investors, governments and
external stakeholders. We rely on their guidance
to continually evaluate and improve our
governance and working practices.

BlueNord engages both directly and indirectly
withinternal and external stakeholdersina
continuous dialogue throughout the year to
obtain their feedback on ‘our energy-efficient
emission reduction activities to reduce the
footprint from our value chain’. Key stakeholders
are employees, investors, lenders, business
partners, government agencies, local
communities, and suppliers. Inthe context of
the RBL facility redetermination process,
ESG performance is regularly monitored by
BlueNordlenders.
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Sustainability Report continued

Environment

Emissions

Emissions to the environmentincludes
atmospheric emissions and discharge to seaas
aresult of the company’s activities. Greenhouse
and non-greenhouse gases (GHG and non-GHG)
are emitted to the atmosphere as a result of fuel
combustion, flaring and fugitive emissions.

BlueNord scope 1emissions arise fromits
partnershipinthe DUC, mostly linked to fuel
combustion for powering the offshore installations.
Flaring of natural gas occurs on all DUC hubs to
allow for safe operations during production
upsets and non-routine activities.

Routine flaring has been eliminated in 2023
following the re-route of Halfdan production.
Fugitive emissions can occur via venting for safety
reasons, partial combustion or leaks and are
surveyed regularly. Scope 2 emissions are linked
to energy consumption at BlueNord offices.

7 BlueNord

As anon-operator BlueNord works to protect the
environment where possible, bothinits own
operations and through the Company’s
partnership with the DUC. We support the goals
of the Paris Agreement by reducing the carbon
footprint of our operations, for example by
improving energy efficiency, reducing venting,
and eliminating the routine flaring of gas.

We are committed to provide transparency on
greenhouse gas emissions across all scopes, our
emission reduction activities, and climate-related
risks and opportunities. In 2023 we initiated a
double materiality assessment of impacts, risks
and opportunitiesin line with EFRAG guidelines,
and we are continuously working alongside the
Operator to provide transparent emissions data.
Whilst currently the key framework which guides
our reportingis the TCFD (Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures, now IFRS S2), we
shallbe moving towards CSRD disclosure
compliance by reporting year 2025.

In 2023 we worked alongside the Operator to
provide a transparent set of metrics covering
atmospheric emissions, chemical usage, and
discharges to seaand spills. CO, emissions have
increased slightly (+3%) from 2022 to 2023 mainly
due to higher activity on Dan and commissioning
activities at Tyra, and partially offset by CO,
emissions decrease linked to CFR activities on
Halfdan and Gorm. Methane (CH4) emissions
have reduced because of the drone campaign and
the subsequent reconciliation of reported versus
measured emissions. The GHG emissions
intensity increase is linked to natural production
decline from 2022 to 2023 (-6%) and the increase
inCO, emissions.

BlueNord recognises that air quality can affect
public health and the environment. Traditional air
pollutantsinthe oiland gas E&P industry can
include ammonia, carbon monoxide, sulphur
oxides, nitrous oxides, non-methane volatile
organic compounds and particulate matter.

Strategic Report

As part of our environmental management, we
work alongside the Operator to continuously
monitor our non-GHG air emissions and put
measures in place to reduce the impact of

our activities.

Emissions, chemical usage, and discharge to
the sea are regulated with permitsissued by the
regulatory body.

Routine flaring has
been eliminated in
2023 following the
re-route of Halfdan
production.

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023
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Sustainability Report continued

Strategic Report

Performance status 2023: Atmospheric emissions®

KEY @ Higher

Unchanged

Ospar reporting perimeter (includes drilling and logistics)’

TOPIC 2022 PERFORMANCE 2023 PERFORMANCE?

TOPIC 2022 PERFORMANCE

2023 PERFORMANCE

Co, Total CO, emissions Total CO, emissions

emissions 290 kt 303 kt

CH, Total CH, emissions Total CH, emissions

emissions 703 tonnes 434 tonnes

nmVOC 555 tonnes 215 tonnes

NOx and SOx NOx NOXx

emissions 1,515 tonnes 1,156 tonnes
SOx SOx
17 tonnes 31tonnes

Numbers have been verified and submitted by the DUC operator to DEA for OSPAR reporting. Awaiting Approval from OSPAR
Numbers have been submitted by the DUC operator to External Auditors for verification
. Numbersare net to BlueNord unless stated otherwise

Contribution Fuel consumption -
to total GHG Fuel Gas

emissions 760/0
Fuel consumption - Diesel
10%
Flare
10%

Fugitive emissions

4%

Fuel consumption -
Fuel Gas

75%

Fuel consumption -Diesel
14%

Flare

9%

Fugitive emissions

2%

GHG intensity
(CO,eq/boe) 296

32.2

ETS reporting perimeter?

TOPIC 2022 PERFORMANCE

2023 PERFORMANCE

EUETSCO, Total CO, emissions

emissions 263 kt

Total CO, emissions

271kt

EUETSCO, 24.8

intensity
(CO,/boe)

273
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Sustainability Report continued

Strategic Report

Performance status 2023: Discharge to sea®

KEY @ Higher Unchanged

Ospar reporting perimeter’

TOPIC 2022 PERFORMANCE

2023 PERFORMANCE

CHANGE TOPIC

2022 PERFORMANCE

2023 PERFORMANCE

Discharge Discharged produced water
tosea 6.5mmm3
Volume of oil discharged
44.6 tonnes

Oil concentration in water

6.9mg/L

Discharged produced water
6.8 mmm?3

Volume of oil discharged
48.0 tonnes

Oil concentration in water

7.0mg/L

° l(j::aes;\;ical
[
[

Number of oil and diesel spills?
Oil and diesel spills

0.25 tonnes

Number of chemical spills?

Chemical spills

3.33tonnes

Number of oil and diesel spills?

15

Oil and diesel spills
0.02 tonnes
Number of chemical spills?
20

Chemical spills

0.05tonnes

Green chemicals
1,496 tonnes
Yellow chemicals

2,812tonnes

Red chemicals
26 tonnes
Black chemicals

Otonnes

Total chemicals

4,333 tonnes

Green chemicals
1,904 tonnes
Yellow chemicals

3,082 tonnes

Red chemicals
27 tonnes
Black chemicals

Otonnes

Total chemicals

5,014 tonnes

Chemical
discharge

1. Numbers have been verified and submitted by the DUC operator to DEA for OSPAR reporting. Awaiting Approval from OSPAR

2. Number of spillsis 100% DUC.
3. Numbersare netto BlueNord unless stated otherwise

29 BlueNord

Green chemicals
296 tonnes
Yellow chemicals

1,575 tonnes

Red chemicals
5tonnes
Black chemicals

O tonnes

Total chemicals

1,876 tonnes

Green chemicals
1,119 tonnes

Yellow chemicals
1,848 tonnes

Red chemicals
6 tonnes
Black chemicals

O tonnes

Total chemicals

1,876 tonnes
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Sustainability Report continued

Emissions reduction initiatives

In 2023 BlueNord initiated an inventory of its
Scope 1,2,and 3emissions, and is working
alongside the Operator to set out an emissions
reduction roadmap with GHG emissions reduction
targets founded upon cost-effective CFRinitiatives
onanasset-by-asset basis.

We acknowledge that we have indirect emissions
related to upstream and downstream activities.
Under Scope 3, Category 11 of the GHG Protocol
(‘Use of sold product’) constitutes the bulk of
BlueNord scope 3 emissions. We are working to
define the boundaries of our scope 3 emissions
andto collect the data.

Carbon Capture and Storage

To support climate targets and reduce carbon
emissions globally,'CCS’ technologies will have to
be deployed at scale. CCSis ameans by which
hard-to-abate industries can mitigate climate
change, by reducing/avoiding carbon emissions
and even reducing atmospheric CO,
concentration, when linked to energy production
frombiomass or CO, capture fromthe air.

Itinvolves the separation, treatment and
transportation of CO, from industrial sources to
along-term storage location. As notedin the
International Energy Agency (IEA)'s report Net
Zero by 2050: A Roadmap for the Global Energy
Sector, CCS can facilitate the transition to net zero
by tackling emissions from existing assets and
providing a way to address emissions from
challenging sectors. BlueNordisinvolved in two
CCS projects: Bifrost and Ruby.

Carbon Cuts

BlueNord has made a strategic investmentin
CarbonCuts A/S, intending to establish an onshore
CO, storage locationin Denmark and address
Denmark’s ambitions for onshore storage of CO,,

30 BlueNord

Timeframe until the beginning of CCS operations for the Ruby project.

EE it

oo ol |

Award of 3D Seismic Drilling Fabricationand D co,
storage-licence Work and listing construction drilling storage
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

The Company will contribute to the Paris
Agreement’s goal of arresting global warming,
withits core business to build, own and operate
permanent geological sites for CO, storage.

The target for the first storage of CO, is 2029.
CarbonCuts'first project in the Radby area has
received local support and has attracted national
andinternational political interest.

CarbonCuts A/S was registered as alegal entity in
August 2022, specifically to explore the
opportunity of CO, storage inthe Redby area.
CarbonCuts A/Sis awholly owned subsidiary of
the BlueNord Group, which has funded its activities
since October 2022.

CarbonCuts and the municipality of Lolland have
collaborated since early 2022 to mature the CO,
storage site. The Ruby Project covers CO,
receiving facilities, intermediate storage, pumping
and injection facilities as well as a number of wells
forinjectionand observation. Several CO, import
options are being investigated to allow flexibility
and optionality in terms of pace, customer
requirements and volume. A phased development
approachis being considered with CO,, injection
anticipated to commence by 2029.

CarbonCuts has gained solid political support
via weekly contact with the local business
association, Business Lolland-Falster. Obtaining
public acceptanceis of the highest priority, and
CarbonCuts continues to actively engage with
stakeholders, including local communities,
regulatory authorities, and industry partners,

seeking input and feedback to inform our strategic
decisions, and to ensure our social licence
to operate.

CarbonCutsis preparing for the next phases of
‘Ruby’,including seismic surveys expected to be
conducted next winter should CarbonCuts be
awarded the license. The focus remains firm on the
goal: tolaunch a sustainable storage solution with
accompanying infrastructure that can contribute
to fulfiling Denmark’s CO, goals and serve as
aninspiration for CO, storage globally.

Headquarteredin Kgs. Lyngby and as a subsidiary
of BlueNord, CarbonCuts has access to extensive
knowledge of the energy sector and the Danish
subsurface. BlueNord's insights and capital
strengthen CarbonCuts’positionasa CO,
storage operator.

CarbonCuts provides a fit-for-
purpose opportunity for BlueNord
to drive strategic and effective
sustainability activities, which
can be scaled appropriately.

We recognise the important role
that we have to play in Denmark,
and the Ruby project is crucial for
both the climate and Denmark’s
CO, storage ambitions, and we
look forward to advancing with
CarbonCuts in a strong position
as a fullmember of the

BlueNord group.

Euan Shirlaw
Chief Executive Officer, BlueNord
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Bifrost

Project Bifrost is developing a concept for
storing CO, inadepleted reservoir inthe

Harald field. This partnershipis between the
DUC, @rsted and the Technical University of
Denmark (DTU’). This project assesses the

potential for transporting CO, —captured
onshore —via specialised shipping or
existing pipelines, and finally injected into
the empty gas reservoirs at the Harald field.

With a storage capacity of several million
tonnes per year, the Harald-field was the
perfect location for the partnership to study
afuture concept.

Efficiency optimisation

Reducing fuel gas consumption plays animportant
role inreducing DUC GHG emissions. In 2023,
several projects have been carried out toimprove
energy efficiencies. New air filters have been
installed on Dan DFG gas turbine and DFF
compressor resultingin 1.3 kt CO,eq reduction.
Dan aftercooler pressure drop was reduced, which
led to emissions reduction of 2.7 kt CO,eq. HBD
compression train cooling optimisation reduced
emissions by 1.6 kt CO,eq at Halfdan. Optimisation
of lift gas with the setup of the Carbon Intensity
Manager resultedinanestimated 4.2kt CO,eq
reductionin 2023. More projects are being
matured to further reduce fuel consumption at
DUC's operations, such as air filters replacement
at Dan and Halfdan power generators.

Electrification

Powering the DUC installation with renewable
energy would substantially reduce scope 1
emissions. The DUC partnershipisinvestigating

Strategic Report

whether electrification of the Oiland Gas
operations can be technically feasible and
economically viable. Options assessed include
various renewable energy sources, different types
of electricity transport technology, various designs
of electrical substations, and scoping of brownfield
work to convert directly driven machinery to
electrically powered ones.

Flaring reduction and elimination

Following the re-routing of Halfdan oil production
from Gorm to Dan over the course of 2023,
routine flaring has been eliminated from DUC
operations. The estimated reductionin emissions
is 20 ktonCO e/yr. Remaining flaring is taking
place either for safety reasons or during adhoc
maintenance, testing or repair. Flaring reduction
opportunities are being reviewed continuously.
As anexample, during 2023, a feasibility study on
flare gas recovery from Gorm processing with the
potential of reducing flaring on the Gorm facility
by ~25% has been completed. The projectis
expected to be implemented by end 2024 with an
estimated reductioninemissions of 9 ktonCO e/y.

Methane reduction

Methaneis a potent GHG, with a 100-year global
warming potential 28-34 times that of CO,,
Methane can be emitted because of incomplete
gas combustion (fuel gas and flare), process
release or leaks. In order to measure and monitor
methane emissions, LDAR (Leak Detectionand
Repair) campaigns are carried out with platform
Optical gasimaging (OGI) cameras or through
drones campaigns.

The 2023 drone campaign led to a decrease
inventing and fugitive emissions from the
reconciliation of reported versus measured
methane emissions, as flares were found to have
better combustion efficiency than originally
assumed. The DUC partnershipis committed to
reducing methane emissionsin line with EU targets.

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Sustainability Report continued

Technology and innovation

BlueNord aims to be a meaningful participant
inthe energy transition. The Company has a
focus on facilitating improved technical,
commercial, and economic framing of
environmentalinitiatives.

Together with DUC partners, BlueNord investsin
research and development through the Technical
University of Denmark (‘DTU’), University of
Copenhagen, Aarhus University, Aalborg
University,and the Geological Survey of Denmark
and Greenland.In2014 DUC founded aresearch
centre, the Danish Offshore Technology Centre

32 @ BlueNord

(‘DOTC), which conducts researchinto
responsible and efficient oiland gas production
from the Danish North Sea with areduced
environmental and climate footprint.

In2023 the DUC contributed funding amounting
to DKK118 millionto DOTC. The DOTC focuses on
the following areas;
Abandonment of offshore oiland gas fields,
including the monitoring of abandoned
installations in reference to an environmental
baseline for long-term protection.
CO, storage inold oiland gas fields.

Produced water management; developing

new technologies to optimise water treatment
processes, with a view to achieving our vision

of zero harmful discharge.

Operations and maintenance technologies,
including modular architecture for planning
maintenance ina cost-effective way.

In addition to the research and development
studies conducted at DTU, BlueNordis also
participatingin the INNO-CCUS partnership
which is developing and maturing technology
relating to the capture, storage and utilisation
of CO,.

L]
Strategic Report

BlueNord s utilising the power of Al to
extract information from historical and
real-time operations and production
data. This enables us to optimise
decision making processes and
improve operational efficiencies by
reducing data search times. It will
improve real-time decision support
during drilling operations and help us
evaluate field development strategies
based on field performance.

Looking to the future, Al willenable us

toimprove:

- Detection of emissions and
monitoring of emissions
performance and metrics.
|dentification of environmental risks
associated with our operations,
underlining our commitment to
responsible and sustainable
business practices.
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In this report Sustainability Report continued

5o Water and biodiversity E )
r————— " Biodiversity is.a priority for our sjakeholders, and We suppqrt DUC's ambitiorj to Iocallly recyc_le 3
PR — s we are committed to engaging inresearch and obsolete infrastructure. During the dismantling of !
dialogue to enhance further understanding of the old platforms and structures from the Tyra field, 1
Completionof Tyrall 4 potentialimpacts and how we can contribute, 98.5% of the material was either directly reused or
OurBusiness ata Glance 6 including by leveraging natural climate solutions. recycled at local Danish recycling yards. For
Chief Executive Officer Statement 9 example, a few of the generators were used again
Business Model 12 Inpartnership with the DTUand DOTC, BlueNord elsewhere, and other parts were processed and
Our Strategy 13 isinvestigating the role and importance of subsea traded onthe intemational market. We willuse the
Distribution Policy " structures, such as platforms, for cod stocks inthe wealth of knowledge gained during Tyra
Danish North Sea. The current project —to redevelopment over the coming decades to
StrategyinAction 15 evaluate the environmental baseline of cod reduce the impact upon the environment from
Operational Review 21 populations around offshore structures —started decommissioning and abandonment of offshore
Financial Review 23 with offshore data collection in summer 2023, and installations and pipelines relating to DUC
Sustainability Report 25 is due to complete with a further survey in 2024. operations. In partnership with the DOTC,
Risk Management n BlueNord is researching cost-effective
— - — Alsoinpartnership withthe DTU and DOTC, abandonment options that will deliver robust
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 45 . . . . .
BlueNord s devising ways to improve the environmental protection.
treatment and disposal of the water produced
alongside hydrocarbons. The current Produced
53-71 Water Management Programme uses technology
which purifies water to an exceptional standard,
suchthat the water being let out to seais of greater
purity than that which legislation and discharge
72154 permits require. Nevertheless, our visionis to go

further,and to completely eliminate harmful
discharges associated with produced water.

We are improving and stabilising water
treatment processes with new instrumentation
and advanced process control technology.
Biological treatment methods and advanced
oxidation willbe tested and, if found to be
feasible, further developed. Projects to
demonstrate the technology in offshore
applications willbe undertaken.

33 BlueNord

Biodiversity is a priority
for our stakeholders,
and we are committed
to engaginginresearch
and dialogue.

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Sustainability Report continued

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD’)

There is a growing demand for decision-useful, climate-related
information, and creditors and investors are increasingly demanding
access torisk information that is consistent, comparable, and clear.

For this reason the Financial Stability Board, the
international body established by the G20in 2009
to monitor and make recommendations about the
global financial system, has created TCFD, to
improve and widen reporting of climate-related
financial information.

Inline with TCFD recommendations, areportin
accordance with TCFD s, as of 2022, an integral
part of BlueNord's annual financial reporting.
Thereportis reviewed annually by our Audit
Committee, ESG Committee, and the Board.

TCFD encourages a standardised reporting
structure for financially material climate-related
risks and opportunities to give investors, lenders,
andinsurers enhanced comparability when
assessing and pricing pertinent companies.

BlueNord

The TCFD framework is made up of 11
recommended disclosures divided into four pillars
that represent core elements of how organisations
operate. The four pillars are: governance, strategy,
risk management, and metrics and targets.

Moreover, the framework separates into three
main categories: risks related to the physical
impacts of climate change, risks related to the
transition to alower-carbon economy, and
climate-related opportunities. TCFD has also
incorporated financialimpact as anintegral part
of its disclosure recommendations.

For more about TCFD see the Appendix to this
report from page 143.

At BlueNord we have
identified the most

significant climate-
related risks and
opportunities we face.

Strategic Report

GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDED

DISCLOSURES
Disclose the a) Describetheboard's  b) Describe the
organisation’s oversight of climate management’srolein
governancearound  'elatedrisksand assessingand
climate-relatedrisks  OPPOrtunities. managing climate-
and opportunities. relatedrisks and

opportunities.

STRATEGY RECOMMENDED

DISCLOSURES
Disclose the actual a) Describe theclimate-  b) Describetheimpact  ¢) Describe the

and potentialimpacts
of climate-related
risks and
opportunities on the
organisation’s
business, strategy,
and financial planning
where such
information is material.

RISK MANAGEMENT

related risks and
opportunities the
organisation has
identified over the short,
medium, and long-term.

RECOMMENDED
DISCLOSURES

of climate-related risks
and opportunities onthe
organisation's
businesses, strategy,
andfinancial planning.

resilience of the
organisation’s strategy,
takinginto consideration
different climate-related
scenarios, includinga
2°Cor lower scenario.

Disclose how the
organisation
identifies, assesses,
and manages
climate-related risks.

METRICS & TARGETS

a) Describe the
organisation's processes
foridentifyingand

assessing climate-related

risks.

RECOMMENDED
DISCLOSURES

b) Describe the
organisation's
processes for managing
climate-relatedrisks.

c) Describe how
processes for
identifying, assessing,
and managing climate
relatedrisks are
integratedinto the
organisation’s overall
risk management.

Disclose the metrics
and targets used to
assess and manage
relevant climate-
related risks and
opportunities where
such information

is material.

a) Disclose the metrics
used by the organisation
to assess climate-related
risks and opportunitiesin
line withits strategy and
risk management
process.

b) Disclose Scope 1,
Scope 2,and, if
appropriate, Scope 3
greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions,andthe
relatedrisks.

c) Describe the targets
used by the organisation
tomanage climate-
related risksand
opportunities and
performance

against targets.

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Sustainability Report continued

Social

We strive for zero accidents, zero incidents,
and zero impact to the environment.

The BlueNord health, safety and environment
(HSE) policy has been revised and updated as of
October 2023. Our vision of ‘zero accidents, zero
incidents, and zero impact to the environment’
underpins our commitment to:
Ensuring safe and efficient operations.
Compliance with regulatory standards.
Striving to reduce climate and other
environmentalimpacts to aslow as
reasonably practicable.

BlueNord s ultimately accountable for the
contribution of all our people to health, safety and
environmental outcomes, and continuous
improvement inthese areas.

By complying with applicable standards and
regulations and continually improving our
management system we make positive progress
towards the key goal of zero fatalities and zero
recordable work-related accidents.

~35 BlueNord '—_'_ — AZ}? _

O

Strategic Report

0.41%

Work-related accidents or injuries
in2023!

1. Excluding non-operational DUC interests

As apartnerin DUC, we take responsibility for HSE
by actively supporting the good HSE work of the
Operator,and proactively participating in meetings
and initiatives. Further to constructive dialogue
regarding the offshore working environment
issues on Total Energies platformsin DUC which
beganin 2022, we have built robust relations and
trust, with our Lead Operations Engineer
participating regularly in Tyra offshore meetings.

Planning of preventative safety and environmental
work involves the participation of local health and
safety representatives to maximise employee
welfare and minimise our already low rates of
sickness absence. In addition, allemployees are
offered annual on-site first aid and defibrillator
courses, and ergonomic assessments as
applicable.

Total sick leave in the BlueNord group was
reported tobe 0.41 percentin 2023. No work-
relatedillness was reported.

Total sick leave!

Supply chain

Outside the DUC, our vendors are mostly inthe
Nordic and North Europe areas. They provide
consultancy, legal and financial services, which are
judged toinvolve minor risk. However, when
considering new investments or when tendering
for goods and services, due diligence and
monitoring of prospective partners (as well as
existing ones) is undertaken wherever applicable.

We also consider how we can ensure that our
operations do not come into conflict with any
fundamental human rights principles. As part of
tender processes and when concluding contracts,
we seek to confirm that all parties adhere to human
rights, sound working conditions, employment
terms, and our Code of Conduct.

For more information see the Governance
section of this report from page 54.

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Sustainability Report continued

Diversity, equity and inclusion

BlueNord believes embracing diversity, equity and inclusion
(‘DE&P’) positively impacts recruitment and retention and
drives performance across the Company.

BlueNord is an equal opportunity employer, The Norwegian Equality and Anti-Discrimination
committed to fostering DE&Iin the workplace. Act stipulates that organisations must identify

We welcome and embrace a variety of skillsets and address challenges regarding equality and
and perspectives, and we value differences diversity in the workplace before any incidents or
between people of different cultural backgrounds,  discrimination take place. The Act’'s general activity
ethnicity, age, gender, gender identification, duty applies to BlueNord; in addition, we are
gender expression, sexual orientation, functional implementing the working method that the Act
ability, religion, and philosophies of life. These prescribes for specific activity duty: Investigate,
principles apply to allemployment practices Analyse, Implement and Evaluate results.

at BlueNord, including recruitment, hiring,

compensation and benefits, promotion, training Aninitial assessment of challenges was carried out
and development, and leave of absence. atthe end of 2022. Gender-equalising terms for
duration and payment of parental leave were
implemented as part of BlueNord's leave policy.

As of 2023, a set of questions to establish whether
BlueNordis considered a safe, inclusive, and
healthy workplace with equal opportunities and
zero tolerance for harassment were included in our

BlueNord DE&I index

January 2022
Extract from DE&I Index

annual Employee Engagement and Working
Environment survey.

Following the survey, inclusion was considered
one of the topics to be further highlighted in the
programme for our culture journey 2023. The
survey performed in January 2024 proves that
initiatives taken have had a positive impact.

As part of our culture journey 2023, sessions and
activities involving all staff were undertaken to
understand, recognise, and embrace diversity and
itsimpact on our multinational teams and
organisation. This has helped to foster a sense of
belonging and integration within the BlueNord
team. Correspondingly, we have enhanced the
awareness of bias and blind-spots, cultural
differences, and cross-cultural communication.

Strategic Report

As part of the performance management process
involving annual performance dialogue, mid-term
review and personal development planning,
performance evaluations are assessed and
calibrated jointly by leaders to avoid the risk and
impact of biases and discrimination.

BlueNord champions the hybrid working model,
work-life balance, and support for our team across
different stages of their lives. In addition, we
support our employees with leave schemes to take
care of children and close relatives, payment
during sickness, and we have implemented
gender-equalising terms for duration and payment
of parental leave.

Channels and procedures are in place for reporting
concerns about harassment of any kind, whether
experienced by or witnessed by a staff member.
Appropriate handling of any potential
discriminationissue is detailed in the Company’s
harassment policy, supplementing the grievance

O ®DL
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process, and the existing Whistleblowing

At BlueNord everyone has equal opportunities for ) ) .
procedure and its related integrity channel.

development regardless of gender, age, ethnicity, sexual
orientation, family status, disabilities, religion or language

No whistleblowing incidents have been reported
since the implementation of our integrity channelin
2020. BlueNord will continue toimprove its
systematic approach to promoting equality and
preventing discrimination in the workplace in 2024.

January 2023

Joday [eloueul

| feel a sense of belonging at BlueNord

I find that | can bring my whole
self to work at BlueNord

includedin BlueNord DE&Iindex. Responses ona 7-point Likert scale converted intoa 0-100 index scale

Extract of responses from BlueNord ‘s annual Employee Engagement and Working Environment survey QS y S ' 1 N 1
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Sustainability Report continued

Our people and values

We believe that each and every one of our people makes a
difference. We work as one team across our three locations,
with forty employees and three in-house consultants at year

end 2023.

BlueNord supports the principle of freedom of
association and collective bargaining. We fully
respect the right of employees to form andjoin
trade unions, as well as the right to remain
non-unionised. There are no trade unions
currently represented at BlueNord. Thus, the
Company is not bound by any collective bargaining
agreements, except for what may follow from
locallegislation, case law and legal practice.

25 percent of the team works inamanagerial role.
However, BlueNord operates an essentially flat
management structure, with just one leadership
levelin support of the Executive Team.

As an organisation, BlueNord is growing
organically, focusing on and prioritising the
presence of the best-qualified personin every
role, regardless of their gender. This applies to
both the recruitment of new employees and the
assessment of performance and capabilities for
internal advancement.

Gender split

Full Time Equival

lent 37.32

57%
62%
m Oslo
B Male B Copenhagen
Female London
Age distribution New employees
7.5% 10%

m 18-26 H 18-26
W 27-35 W 27-35
B 36-45 W 36-45

46-55 46-55
B 56-64 B 56-64
H 65+ B 65+

Leadership —gender distribution

Executive team
Leadershipteam
Allmanagers
Staff

0%

B Male

20%  30%

50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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In this report Sustainability Report continued

Building culture is a collective effort at BlueNord. BlueNord Employee Engagement index
We strive for an inclusive culture with fullemployee
engagement, where everyone feels empowered,

1-52
Highlights of the Year

i
®
O

e — The best thing about working in respected, and has a strong sense of belonging.
Completionof Tyral BlueNord is that we are a small With commitment from the Executive Team and
ompletion of Tyra .
. : . active involvement from our team of Culture January 2022
OurBusinessataGlance organisation with great colleagues. Ambassadors, the whole organisation has
Chief Executive Officer Statement participatedin our culture journey 2023, through
Business Model Company-wide camps, team discussions, and

Our Strategy one-to-one activities throughout the year.

th— bOld. Our team represents ten different nationalities and January 2023 @
StategyinAcon 0B awide range of ages, background, experiences, §,
Operational Review pU rposerI . and ways of thinking. These are some of the P
Financial Review reasons why many of our employees look )
Sustainability Report forward to going to work every morning. g
Risk Management .g
Principal Risks and Uncertainties January 2024 -
3
)
5
Extract from Employee Engagement survey The BlueNord values 9 Bold 3
72154 A J We are determined, using our creativity and technical %
a In April 2023, the Company changed its expertise to challenge the status quo, willingand [©)
Ilook forward to going to work name to BlueNord to better reflect the unafraid to explore alternative paths. 8
focus on the Danish North Sea, and its —~
mission to provide Europe with energy
My work tasks motivate me towards a net-zero future. As part of this Purposeful |
werevisited andrevitalised our values, @ We are ambitious, moving forward with purpose and a 3
whichare integral to our culture and vision focus on value and results. Our people are connected, 8
| eelappreciated atwork ofbecominga Iegdlng independent contributing to the bigger picture. £
producer of gasin Europe. oy}
B3
Our values reflect our Company and our 8_
Overall, | am satisfied with my work people. They serve as our compass, Dependable
guiding us today, and towards the ; : o
Company we want to be. They provide a @ We d'?)l'l;'/t'eror\}\/ what vyetﬁrotrr1|se>t, sharlng |det§13 and )
Extracts of responses from BlueNord annual Employee Engagement and Working framework for how we think, actand S%S;' ﬂ’l]:’(lizhoita.re inthis together, supporting eac

Environment survey. Responses ona 7-point Likert scale converted into a 0-100 interact. Our values influence how we
index scale operate, lead, and make decisions.
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In this report Sustainability Report continued

To enhance individual as well as team growth and high
1-52 performance, our culture journey 2023 focused on the

SR ! fundamentals for developing a positive and robust
Chair’s Stat t 3 A . .
S safety culture, and a learning organisation.
Completion of Tyrall 4
Busi I
Ou-r usmess_ ata G_ance ° Our culture initiatives are rooted in our core values and have concentrated on
GBI el 2o 9 the elements that foster psychological safety, trust and a sense of belonging,
Business Model 12 as well as open communication and feedback.
Our Strategy 13
Distribution Policy 14
Strategyin Action 15
Operational Review 21
Financial Review 23
Sustainability Report 25
A e < With commitment from the
Principal Risks and Uncertainties 45 Executive Team and active Meet our Culture Ambassadors
involvement from our team Asa Cglture Ambassador'Netvvor.k (‘CAN) we are’ Inaddition tq upskillingin our CAN meetmgs,we
f C |t A b d committed to support the integration of BlueNord's share experiences and lessonslearnedin
’ : -to- . , ]
53-71 o1 Culture Ampassadadors culture, in our day-to-day business facilitation, reflect and discuss relevant topics
the whole organisation has . . _ . Inour encounters with the orgamsahon, we |d§nt|fy
. . - We will be proactive in promoting our values and will culture and change challengesin our respective
participated in our culture operate withintegrity and confidentiality. geographic areas, and support and help
72-154 ] ourney 2023. resolve these.
We aim to role model the core values of the

Company and uphold psychological safety and We work to continuously support andimprove
inclusivity in our workplace. our culture.

We will highlight the elements that BlueNord wants
to characterise our culture by:
Speaking about our previous, ongoing and
upcoming culture initiatives.
Encouraging colleagues to learn more about our
culture initiatives, initiate and facilitate discussions.

Role modelling.

Pointing out to the management positive
examples of good culturalbehavior
demonstrated by BlueNord team members.

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023
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Sustainability Report continued

Education and training

Learningis part of our Company’s culture.
Continuous improvement and sharing
knowledge and ideas are considered to be vital
for the business to thrive. Employees at all levels
are encouraged to consider how they upgrade
their knowledge and skills,and development
activities are included in every personal
development plan. As of 2024, all training
activity is to be recorded, to enable KPIs to

be set for competence management and
people development.

Experience and on-the-job training are a
primary source of learning. This is backed by
competence development and coaching,
bothindividually and in teams, together

with mentoring, job-shadowing, and formal
training courses and sessions. Participationin
seminars and conferences s also supported,
asameans to keep abreast of industry trends
and developments, update professional
expertise, and to build and manage networks.

This activity has been further supplemented by
new initiatives this year, including lunch-and-
learn sessions which have beeninitiated by
employees, inviting other professions to
meetings to gain new insight into cross-
disciplinary topics thatimpact our business.

Internshipsin 2023

:.I"‘ l(.,r:f‘ ' b{ {

Upskilling activities regarding giving and
receiving feedback, and joint discussions
around how to define our feedback culture,

were also an essential part of our culture journey
2023 training programme, and this activity will be
extendedinthe future.

Tomake sure allemployees adhere to governing
documents and the standards for business
conduct at BlueNord, our Code of Conduct
isamong the mandatory documents for all
employees to read and understand. This training
forms part of our on-boarding process.

Handling insider information was a mandatory
session with our legal advisers for allemployees
in2023. This safeguards BlueNord, notonly asa
listed company, but also because most of our
permanently-employed people are participating
inour Long-Term Incentive (‘LTI') programme
and can become shareholders themselves.

Ane-learning course related to our Code of
Conduct and other governing documents, which
willinclude subsequent annual refreshers and
updates, is being developed forimplementation
in2024.

i‘t ."\'
Vil : (i? .
T ’ [ .
1
|
A

.

/e BlueNord

—

i

Community engagement

We are committed to respecting local values
and norms, performing our business activities
withintegrity and in an ethical manner, in full
compliance with the laws and regulations of all
countries in which we operate.

BlueNord is not a large employer, but through
the business we carry out as partnerin DUC,
our operations generate a positive impact on
communities. The economic multiplier effect
of our engagement with contractors, and

the purchasing of services and equipment,
creates a platform for wider growth,
employment and prosperity.

During 20283, we increased our number of
interns from one to three. Two of these interns
are working part-time in Operations until they
complete their degrees in 2025. Aninternational
student worked for five months full-time in
Finance, and was followed by a master’s
student now engaged until their degree is
complete, alsoin 2025. Further internships are
to be assessed this year, including the

- & -
) W

development of a structure for short-term
summer internships. In 2024, we also plan
to offeran|T apprenticeship at our
Copenhagen office.

BlueNord helps socially vulnerable people to
participate in society through our ties with
Pant-for-Pant (Pledge-by-Pledge), a non-profit
bottle collection service that employs socially
disadvantaged and homeless people.
BlueNord's recyclable bottles are donated to
Pant-for-Pant service workers to help them
build an everyday life with areal job, while
working together for the environment.

BlueNord s proud to have raised funds in 2023
for,amongst others, The Norwegian Childhood
Cancer Society and its corresponding
foundations in Denmark and the UK. Our
charitable giving policy is being developed for
implementationin 2024. The policy aims to be
areflection of BlueNord's values of Bold,
Purposeful, Dependable, and a commitment
to our social responsibility.

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Sustainability Report continued

Governance

Governance, systems and processes

BlueNord believes that effective corporate governance is critical
for ensuring accountability, achieving strategic goals and
generating value for stakeholders.

The Company sets high standards of performance and
professionalism based on honesty, integrity and fairnessinits
business practices. BlueNord works together with partners and
contractors on the basis of the same principles of integrity and
fairness, with zero tolerance for bribery and corruption.

Read our Corporate Governance policy

ESG Committee

Our ESG Committee was established in 2020 to support the
BlueNord commitment to ESG and to evolve our contribution to
the energy transition.

The Chief Corporate Affairs Officer reports directly to the Chief
Executive Officer,and is supported by executive management,
who are responsible for risk and opportunity identification, and for
ensuring effective processes and mitigation efforts, including ESG
matters, within managers' respective areas of responsibility.

Read our latest ESG Committee report

Code of Conduct

BlueNord is committed to conducting our businessina
responsible, ethical and lawful manner. We aim always to be a
trusted partner for customers, shareholders, colleagues, business
partners and neighbours.

The BlueNord Code of Conduct forms the basis for the high
standards of integrity in our business. The Code of Conduct
applies to all Directors, officers, and employees, including
subsidiaries in which BlueNord holds (directly or indirectly) an
ownership interest. The Code of Conduct also applies to those
acting for or on behalf of BlueNord. BlueNord expects our
business partners, such as suppliers, subcontractors, joint venture
partners, and other contracting parties, to adhere to standards
consistent with this Code of Conduct.

Read our Code of Conduct

41 BlueNord

Anti-bribery and corruption

BlueNord has zero tolerance regarding bribery and corruption.

The Company expects the local management of each Group
subsidiary to promote a strong anti-corruption culture. Each
Company shall make active efforts to prevent undesirable
conduct and ensure that their employees are capable of dealing
with challenging situations.

Read our Anti-Corruption and Bribery policy

Strategic Report

Humanrights

BlueNord is committed to respecting fundamental human and
labour rights, both in operations and in relations with business
partners, and to complying with applicable laws and regulations.

We conduct our business inamanner that respects the rights
and dignity of all people. We support and acknowledge the
fundamental principles of human and labour rights as defined
inthe International Bill of Human Rights, the United Nations
Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights, the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights, and the International Labour
Organisation Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights
at Work.

Our human rights work is also guided by the OECD Guidelines
for Multinational Enterprises. Our human rights commitments are
setoutinour Code of Conduct.

Read our Human and Working Rights & Diversity and
Inclusion Policy

ol
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Cyber security

BlueNord maintains anin-house IT department
with overall responsibility for IT operations,
security, governance, and strategy. Day-to-day IT
operations are outsourced to a provider with
extensive experience inthe oiland gasindustry,
supplyinginfrastructure and general/industry-
specific applications. BlueNord's IT environment
alsoincorporates third-party SaaS applications.

Although situated in relatively safe and politically
stable countries, BlueNord acknowledges that we
are notimmune to the rising risk of cyber attacks.
Tobolster our cyber security capabilities,
BlueNord has partnered with a recognised firm of
security experts, providing cyber security
management, including risk assessments,

endpoint security, round-the-clock monitoring of
security events, and incident response.
Procedures for handling cyber security incidents
have been established and form part of the
BlueNord Incident Management plan.

All staff are required to familiarise themselves with
our Incident Management plan. This planisin
place to ensure personnel safety, environmental
protection, safe recovery, and business continuity
inthe event of incidents, while also facilitating
necessary communication with our stakeholders.

Our focus on security covers both external threats

and internal risks. Internal measures include
restricting access to our offices, conducting

background checks, and requiring

ID control for allnew hires. IT security campaigns
arerunonacontinuous basis. All staff and
consultants working with our IT systems must
confirmin writing that they have read and will
adhere to BlueNord's End-user [T instruction.

This documentincludes both IT security
requirements and acceptable-use policies.

As new technology is acquired, the instruction
and our IT security policy will be updated
accordingly. Inlate 2023, BlueNord embarked on
aprivate Al pilot project, which has inturn driven
recent policy updates on the adoption of Al
technology and the Company’s stance onthe
use of public Al.

Strategic Report

BlueNord's business management system

is guided by regulatory requirements,
international, national and industry-specific
standards. In close collaboration with a highly
experienced team from Det Norske Veritas
(‘DNV’) providing best practice inthe oiland gas
industry, further development of BlueNord's
existing business management system was
initiated in 2023 andis to be finalised in 2024.

Our management system ensures safe

and efficient business operations, a joint
way of working whichis easily and efficiently
accessible for anyone joining or partnering
with BlueNord, and compliant with internal
and external requirements for operationsin the
North Sea. All relevant business processes,
procedures, governing documents and
regulatory requirements for respective
BlueNord disciplines are documentedin the
management system.

Our management system
ensures safe and efficient
business operations.
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Sustainability Report continued

Whistleblowing, harassment and grievance

Our Whistleblowing procedure and integrity No whistleblowing incidents have been reported

channel, whichis accessible on our corporate since the integrity channel was firstimplemented

website and intranet, is managed by in2020.

PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC’). The

procedure applies to all officers, Directors and Employees and consultants are also encouraged

employees of the Company, whethertemporary  to speak up about all other issues of concernin

or permanent, full-time or part-time, and the workplace, and are supported to seek advice

regardless of their location. Anyone doing if they are in doubt. Our Harassment policy sets

business for or on behalf of BlueNord must also out protected channels for notificationin the

comply with the Whistleblowing procedure. event that anindividual has experienced
behaviour that falls short of the exemplary

The procedure is mandatory reading for all new standards we expect fromallemployees.

employees during on-boarding. We encourage

employees, hire-ins and external parties to raise This policy also refers to the Grievance processin

concerns and report suspected violations of our management system, which can be initiated if

applicable laws and regulations to our integrity aconcernoracomplaintis seenas appropriate

channel. All reports made in good faith willbe for raising onamore formal basis. Correspondingly,

dealt with expeditiously, with persons reporting any appeal process, where applicable, willbe

assured of no adverse consequences carried out according to local legislation.

forthemselves.

programmes include
emission reduction targets.

43 BlueNord

The KPIs of the variable pay

Remuneration

Remuneration for executives and employeesis
based on the following principles:
A clear and transparent compensation policy.
Compliance with regulatory requirements and
principles of good business conduct.
Fair treatment of allemployees.
Sustainable pay linking remuneration to
performance, actual results and stakeholder
value creation.

BlueNord's compensation policy includes
Short-Term Incentives (‘STI') and Long-Term
Incentives (LTI).

STlisavariable pay component,in the form of an
annual bonus programme that rewards high
performance based on the achievement of
operational and financial targets. Targets are set
annually and are tied to the execution of business
strategy, including environmental metrics which for
2023 was related to emission intensity reductions.

LTlincludes our Performance Shares programme.
This uses a set of weighted KPIs which measure
share price performance on both an absolute and
relative basis (70 percent), emissions reduction
performance (20 percent), and tenure (10 percent).

For more information about Executive
Remuneration, see our
Executive Remuneration Report 2023

Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Risk Management

Risk management framework

Effective risk management is
essential to successfully delivering
our strategy. The risk management
process needs to identify and
determine the nature and extent of
risk the Company is exposed to
and the extent to which mitigation
is required and thus, the level of
risk that is acceptable.

Board of Directors
The Boardis responsible for the
Company’s risk framework.

Meet the Board on page 55

44 BlueNord

Theinternal control framework supports the
management and mitigation of risk. The process is
designed to manage, mitigate and communicate,
rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve
strategic priorities.

Risk management and internal control are given
high priority by the Board of Directors. The Board is
responsible for identifying principal risks and
determining the nature and extent of those risks
the Company is willing to take. The impact of
climate-related risks are also taken into account
and specific detail can be seen on page 52.

The Boardis also responsible for monitoring the
Company's risk management framework and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit Committee
assists the Board of Directors on an ongoing basis
inmonitoring the Company’s system for risk
management and internal control.

Risk assessment includes risk
identification through review
meetings held with key
personnelin the organisation
onaquarterly basis. This

Risk monitoring occursona
quarterly basis through an
Executive Team evaluation,
monitoring and review of
the risk register and matrix,

Risk management process

The Company faces various risks which may
impact the Company and not all theserisks are
necessarily in the Company’s control. For this
reason, the Company has established a risk
management process to identify and assess how
torespondtorisks. That response caninclude
acceptance, an action plan with mitigating factors
toreduce therisk, transfer to third parties, or
terminating the risk by ceasing certain activities.

The Executive Team setsthe toneandis
responsible for monitoring and managing the most
significant risks, and identified risk owners are
responsible for ensuring risks within their area are
being appropriately managed.

Risk mitigation requires an
assessment of mitigation plans
and controls based on risk
appetite. Risk mitigation plans
are developed betweenrisk

Strategic Report

Internal control

The Company’s management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining sufficientinternal
controlover financial reporting. The Company’s
specific policies, standards and accounting
principles have been developed for the annualand
quarterly financial reporting of the Group. The
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
supervise and oversee the external reporting and
the internal reporting processes. Thisincludes
assessing financial reporting risks and internal
controls over financial reporting within the Group.
The consolidated external financial statements are
prepared in accordance with International IFRS
and International Accounting Standards as
adopted by the EU. The cyclical process works in
practice as follows:

Status of the risk assessment
is presented annually and
reviewed with the Board and
updated as required based
onthe current risk appetite

includes an evaluation of
likelihood and impact
considering both quantitative
and qualitative factors. The
collated risks are maintained
inthe Company risk register
and matrix.

whichis to be presented to the
Audit Committee along with the
quarterly financial statements.

owners and with feedback
fromthe Executive Team
considering the risk appetite
and context set at Board-level.

and context, bothinternal
and external.

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023
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Geographical concentration
and field interdependency

Production of oiland gas is concentrated in a limited number of offshore fields in alimited
geographical area of the Danish continental shelf. Consequently, the concentration of fields
andinfrastructure may resultinincidents or eventsin one location affecting a significant part
of BlueNord business.

Material influencing factors

- Four producing hubs that are interconnected and utilise the same infrastructure.
The fields within one hub are interconnected and one field can depend on another to
extract hydrocarbons.
All gas produced on the different hubs is processed and transported to shore via the Tyra
Hub or the Northern Offshore Gas Transport (NOGAT’) pipeline.

- The GormHubreceives liquids fromall the other hubs and sends it to shore via pipeline
from GormE.

The Operator has ongoing inspection and
maintenance plansin place to proactively
maintain assets and minimise the risk of
incidents.

Where events occur, activities are adjusted
torespond to specificissues as they arise,
and isolated where possible to minimise
theimpact.

Actual reserves may differ from
reported reserves estimates

Thereported reserves and resources represent significant estimates based on several
factors and assumptions made as of the reported date, all of which may vary considerably
fromactual results. Further, oiland gas production could also vary significantly from reported
reserves and resources. Should the actual results of the Company deviate fromthe
estimated reserves and resources, this may have a significantimpact on the value of the
Group's assets and cash flow from operations.

Material influencing factors

- Assumptions on which the reserves estimates are determined include geological and
engineering estimates (which have inherent uncertainties), historical production, the
assumed effects of regulation by governmental agencies and estimates of future
commodity prices and operating costs.

- The Companyis anon-operated partner inthe DUC and as such has less control of
future decline-mitigating investments in the producing assets that have animpact on oil
and gas production.

Reported reserves are based onindependent
technical expert's reports, which are carried
out atleast annually.

BlueNord has a subsurface team with
appropriate technical expertise that monitors
and reviews production andreservesin
additionto the external reserves reporting.

This provides oversight of performance and
expectations throughout the year to enable
response and follow up on a timely basis
should concerns arise.

45 BlueNord
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Risk

Impact

Mitigation

Movement

Ongoinginvestmentin
developments

The Company makes and expects to continue to make substantial investmentsinits
business for the development and production of oil and natural gas reserves. Such
projects require substantialinvestments to bring into production, which come with
severalinherent risks.

Material influencing factors

- Development projects have inherent executionrisks, including cost overruns and delays,
in addition to the impact of commodity prices on the economics of a project.
The Company may also be unable to obtain needed capital or financing on satisfactory
terms, which couldlead to adeclineinits oiland gas reserves.

The Company intends to finance future
investments with cash flow from operations
and borrowings under its RBL facility and
other equity and debt facilities. The Company
regularly monitors liquidity, borrowing base,
and other financial ratios.

Projects are screened for technical and
non-technical risks with economics reviewed
at multiple price scenarios.

Tyraredevelopment project

The Tyraredevelopment project is, to date, the largest project carried out on the Danish
continental shelf. The project is now nearing completion, but the risk of delay remains,
particularly with regards to the ramp-up of production and further uncertainty of
performance once wells are unplugged. Such risks may have an adverse effect on
BlueNord's financial position.

Material influencing factors

+ Thescope of the project includes removal of old facilities, modifying existing ones, and
installing new features; there are inherent risks with such significant projects, including
risks of cost overruns and delays.
The project has been delayed twice to date; the firstin November 2020 due to the
Covid-19 pandemic, and againin August 2022 driven by global supply chain challenges.

BlueNord maintains a regular dialogue with
the Operator’s key personnel on the projectin
additionto areview of weekly and monthly
progress reporting.

BlueNord's internal technical experts are
closely involved with this review and have
an established feedback process with
the Operator.

Decommissioning estimates

There are significant uncertainties and significant estimation risks relating to the cost and
timing for decommissioning of offshore installations and infrastructure. A significant
deviation from such estimates may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results
of operations, tax position, cash flow and financial condition. This includes the timing of
when security may need to be putinplace.

Material influencing factors

- Withinthe DUG, the partners are primarily liable to each other on a pro-rata basis and,
secondarily, jointly and severally liable for all decommissioning obligations.
Thereis an obligation for participants to provide security for their respective share of any
decommissioning liabilities ahead of actual decommissioning based on calculations as
setoutinthejoint operating agreement.

Decommissioning estimates are reviewed at
least onan annual basis and updated every
five yearsin detail based on technological,
regulatory and any other relevant information
atthetime.

The need for decommissioning security is
assessed annually.

46 BlueNord
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Market risks

Risk

Impact

Strategic Report

KEY @ Increasing Unchanged Decreasing

Mitigation Movement

Commodity prices

The Company’s main business is to produce and sell oil and gas, therefore future revenues,
cash flow, profitability, financing, and rate of growth depend substantially on prevailing prices
of oiland gas. Because oiland gas are globally traded, the Company is unable to control or
predict the prices it receives for the oiland gas it produces.

Commodity price fluctuations could reduce the Company’s ability to refinance its
outstanding credit facilities and could result in a reduced borrowing base under credit
facilities available to the Company, including the RBL facility. Fluctuations in commodity
prices could also lead to impairments of the Company’s assets.

Material influencing factors
During 2023, volatility and uncertainty remained in the commodity market, however the
spikes of 2022 did not recur, and global supply risks have been managed. The impact of
conflictin various regions continues to have some impact but markets have tended to
adapt to this situation.
The hydrocarbons produced from specific fields may also have a premium/discount in
relation to benchmark prices, such as Brent, which may vary over time.
The majority of the natural gas produced by the Company is sold at Trading Hub Europe
(THE) prices. THE closely follows the Dutch Title Transfer Facility (‘T TF’) price. The
Company is more exposed to additional price volatility deriving from proposed
responses by the European Commission, as seen with the proposed Market Correcting
Mechanism, however this has not recurred in 2023.

The Company actively seeks to reduce
this risk through the establishment of
hedging arrangements.

BlueNord has to date executed this policy in
the market through forward contracts.

BlueNord enters hedging contracts on both oil
and gas that mitigate the short-termimpact of
price volatility.

Further detail on BlueNord's hedging policy
canbe foundin note 2 to the financial
statements and note 19 on financial
instruments.

Foreign currency exposure

The Groupis exposed to market fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Significant
fluctuations inexchange rates between euros and Danish kroner to US dollars, may
materially adversely affect the reported results.

Material influencing factors
Revenues are in US dollars for oiland in euros for gas, while operational costs, taxes and
investments are primarily in US dollars, euros and Danish kroner.
The Company'’s financing is primarily in US dollars.

The Company considers currency risk to be
low, as the main financialitems heldina
currency other than the functional currency
of the respective componentsis offset by
positions in other components of the Group
and/or hedged.

47 BlueNord
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In this report Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued
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Cyber secu rity KEY @ Increasing Unchanged Decreasing
1-52
Highlights of the Year Risk Impact Mitigation Movement
ChairsStatement === 3 Key infrastructure, networks A compromised network or infrastructure would seriously impair the Company’s ability to The Company hasinplace T controls and
Completionof Tyrall or core systems are compromised  maintain regular operations, including being able to continue reporting, regulatory and processes, including preventative security
Our Business ata Glance or are otherwise rendered financial obligations if required information were not available. routines, disaster recovery and business
Chief Executive Officer Statement unavailable continuity plans.

Material influencing factors
Asin 2022, ongoing global tensions continue toraise IT security risks around cybercrime  The Company elevated its IT security-related

Business Model

Our Strategy T . .
T and smlar threats. . - ' . o routlnes.anld IT system's tp protect against
e — Protection and monitoring of critical infrastructure continues to be a high priority in the cyber criminality and similar threats. Q
StrategyinAction Danish energy sector. §_
Operational Review 8
Financial Review o
Sustainability Report Financial liabilities >
Risk Management .8
Principal Risks and Uncertainties Risk Impact Mitigation Movement -
Available funding to meet the The Company has several debt instruments which expose it to interest rate risk and The Company has fixed USD 1.0 billion of RBL
Company’s financial liabilities obligations to meet certain covenants. The Company’s material hedging programme interest rate exposure until 30 June 2024. 8’
provides significant visibility over its ability to meet these requirements, however if the 6
Company is unable to, then actions to rectify this position may be required. There can be no The Company restructured the NOR13 é
assurance that such actions will be available or enough to allow BlueNord to ultimately fulfil convertible bondinto the new NOR15 8
its obligations. The availability of funding and the nature and diversity of lenders being used convertible bond with revised terms, including @
72-154 can pose third party liquidity risk. alater conversion date. g
O
Material influencing factors The Group monitorsiits liquidity and covenant ,%
Exposure to floating interest rates through the Company’s USD 1.1 billion RBL. coverage continuously to ensure it will be able
Exposure to fixed interest rates through a USD 208.0 million convertible bond and a to meetiits financial obligations as they fall due. -
USD 175.0 million senior unsecured note. =)
- Under these financing instruments, the Company is subject to several covenants, As of the date of thisreport, the Company isin %
including maximum leverage relative to earnings and demonstration of a minimum level anongoing refinancing process as part of the 8-
of liquidity. continuous review and optimisation of the 5
capital structure. )
O
g
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In this report Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued
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52 Financial liabilities continued KEY @ Increasing Unchanged Decreasing
Highlights of the Year Risk Impact Mitigation Movement
ChairsStatement === 3 Future capital requirements BlueNord's future capital requirements will be determined based on several factors, BlueNord maintains a strong relationship
Completionof Tyrall including productionlevels, commodity prices, future expenditures that are required to be with its banking syndicate through continual
Our Business ata Glance funded, and the development of the Company’s capital structure. engagement to underpinits borrowing
Chief Executive Officer Statement positionand has an active investor
Business Model To the extent the Company’s operating cash flow is insufficient to fund the business plan at relations strategy to supportaccess
OurStrateqy 13 the time additional external capital may be required. BlueNord currently has a strong to the capital markets.
P - financial base, supported by existing liquidity and hedging positions, however any
Distribution Policy . . . (7))
unexpected changes that result inlower revenues or increased costs may necessitate the -
SidfeyieEtey W raising of additional external capital. There can be no guarantee that, if required, BlueNord §_
Operational Review would be able to access the debt or equity markets on favourable terms, or if necessary be 8
Financial Review able to adequately restructure or refinance its debt. o
Sustainability Report . e . . . . X
- Insurance risk The Company maintains liability insurance in an amount that it considers adequate and The Company annually reviews the adequacy %
RiskManagement == 44 consistent withindustry standards. However, the nature of the risks inherent in oiland gas of insurance coverage. g
Principal Risks and Uncertainties industry generally,and on the Danish continental shelf specifically, are such that liabilities -~

could materially exceed policy limits or not be insured at all. In which event, the Company
couldincur significant costs that could have an adverse effect onits financial condition,
results of operation and cash flow.

Material influencing factors

- Duetothe ongoing geopolitical situation, there may be anincreased risk for the Group’s
72-154 assets becoming a target of war acts and/or sabotage, as seen with the Nord Stream
- pipeline sabotage in September 2022. No such event was noted during 2023.

Any such acts of war or sabotage directed towards the Group’s assets may have a
material adverse effect onthe Group's assets and financial position, and whether an
incident s classified as an act of war or sabotage under the Group’s insurances may
have conseqguences for the Group’'s right to claim insurance proceeds under the
relevantinsurances.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Third-party risk

Risk

Impact

Strategic Report

KEY @ Increasing Unchanged

Mitigation

Movement

Decreasing

Third-party risk

The Company does not have a majority interestinany of its licences and consequently
cannot solely control such assets. Nor does the Company have operatorship over any of its
assets. The Company therefore has limited control over management of such assets.
Mismanagement by the Operator or disagreements with the Operator as to the most
appropriate course of action may result in significant delays, losses or increased costs toit.

Jointly owned licences (asis the case for the Company’s licences) also result in possible
joint liability, on certain terms and conditions. Other participants in licences may default on
their obligations to fund capital or other funding obligations inrelation to the assets. In such
circumstances, the Company may be required under the terms of the relevant operating

The Company has consultation rights or right
to withhold consent in relation to significant
operational and development matters,
depending on: the importance of the matter,
the level of its interest in the licence, or which
licence the contractual arrangements for the
licence apply to.

The structure of engagement with the
Operator is contractually set outin the joint

agreement or otherwise to contribute all or part of such funding shortfall. The Company may operating agreement.
not have the resources to meet these obligations.
Politics, regulation and compliance
Risk Impact Mitigation Movement

Changes in obligations arising
from operating in markets that
are subject to a high degree of
regulatory, legislative and political
intervention and uncertainty

Exploration and development activities in Denmark are dependent on receipt of
government approvals and permits to develop assets. There is no assurance that future
political conditions in Denmark will not result in the government adopting new or different
policies and regulations relating to exploration, development, operation and ownership of oil
and gas, environmental protection, and labour relations. Any of the above factors may have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations, cash flow and
financial condition.

Material influencing factors

+ Future political conditions in Denmark could result in government adopting new or
different policies, meaning that the Company may be unable to obtain, maintain or renew
required drilling rights, licences and permits resulting in work being halted.

Due to the Russianinvasion of Ukraine, new regulations have beenimposed by the EU,
United States, United Kingdom and other governments, which affects the export and
import of oiland gas to and from the Russian market.

- Traderestrictions on the Russian market could increase the importance of the oiland gas
fields in Europe, including in Denmark. Suchincrease inimportance could resultin
governments adopting new regulations that could affect the assets and the operations of
the Group.

The Company maintains aregular dialogue
with the Danish Energy Agency as well as
relevant government ministries.

This ensures an up-to-date understanding is
inplaceinorder to actand respond onatimely
basis to any impact on the business.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Politics, regulation and compliance continued

Risk

Impact

Strategic Report

KEY @ Increasing Unchanged Decreasing

Mitigation Movement

Danish taxation and regulations

Allof BlueNord's petroleum assets are located in Denmark and the petroleum industry is
subject to higher taxation than other businesses. There is no assurance that future political
conditions in Denmark will not result in the relevant government adopting different policies
for petroleum taxation than those currently in place.

Material influencing factors

The law proposal on the Solidarity Contribution was enacted in 2023 and its impact on the
Company is known and accounted for. No new exposures have been identified during 2023
As taxation has a majorimpact on the Company’s results, such amendments may
significantly impact the Group’s cash flow and financial condition.

Afurther tax yet to be adoptedis regarding additional CO, duties. The proposal as currently
presented would be implemented from 2025 but as itis stillin proposal stage, the timing and
extent of impact remains uncertain.

Dialogue is maintained with industry bodies
and the relevant government ministries to
understand proposed legislations before they
are enacted and provide fullimpact analysis.

Thereisa Compensation Agreement
between the Danish state and the DUC such
that the Companies participating in the DUC
are entitled to compensation for tax increases.
Due to the Agreement, any alterationsin
present legislation to the disadvantage of

the DUC licencees can be challenged

for compensation.

The compensation would be determined with
aview to the impact of the changes on the
DUC, however these cannot exceed the net
advantage deemed to have been obtained
by the state.

Financial reporting risk

While BlueNord has in place internal controls covering the Company's financial reporting
function, any material error or omission could significantly impact the accuracy of
reported financial performance and expose the Company to arisk of regulatory or

other stakeholder action.

Internal controls over financial reporting are
designed andin operation.

Reputational risks

BlueNord may be negatively affected by adverse market perception as it depends onahigh
level of integrity to maintain the trust and confidence of investors, DUC participants, public
authorities and counterparties.

Any mismanagement, fraud or failure to satisfy fiduciary or regulatory responsibilities, or
negative publicity resulting from other activities, could materially affect the Company’s
reputation, as well as its business, access to capital markets and commercial flexibility.

Clear code of conduct, ethical guidelines and
Whistleblower procedure are in place.

See more on Governance on page 54.
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In this report Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued
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Climate riSk KEY @ Increasing Unchanged Decreasing

1-52
Highlights of the Year Risk Impact Mitigation Movement
O . Changes to and impacts of All phases of the oiland gas business present environmental risks and hazards and are The Company maintains aregular dialogue
Completion of Tyra environmental regulations subject to environmental regulation pursuant to a variety of international conventions and with the Danish Energy Agency as well as
OurBusiness ata Glance state and municipal laws and regulations. relevant government ministries.
Chief Executive Officer Statement
Business Model Compliance with such legislation can require significant expenditures and a breach may This ensures an up-to-date understanding is
Our Strategy resultinthe imposition of fines and penalties, some of which may be material, in addition to in plgce toactand respond onatimely basisto

— - loss of reputation. any impact on the business.
Distribution Policy
Strategyin/Action Material influencing factors The Operator has a framework and controlsin
Operational Review - Environmental legislation provides for,among other things, restrictions and prohibitions place to manage within regulatory

Financial Review
Sustainability Report

Risk Management

onspills,and releases or emissions of various substances produced in association with
oiland gas operations.

Legislation also requires that wells and facility sites are operated, maintained, abandoned
and reclaimed to the satisfaction of applicable regulatory authorities.

requirements. BlueNord maintains an
overview of the requirements and dialogue
with the Operator through the appropriate
jointcommittees.

yoday di6ajens

Principal Risks and Uncertainties . . . . . . L .
E - The Company is subject to legislationin relation to the emission of carbon dioxide,

methane, nitrous oxide and other GHGs.
Environmentallegislationis evolving ina manner expected to result in stricter standards
and enforcement, larger fines and liability, and potentially increased investments and
operating costs.

- Withallassets on the Danish continental shelf, the Company is highly exposed to
changesin Danish law.
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See also climate risks outlined under TCFD on page 34.
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Chair’s Introduction

Good corporate governance is key
a successful, sustainable business

This section of the report demonstrates that BlueNord maintains robust

systems and practices that support the Board, Company and the Executive
Team in making good decisions for the future of the business, in the interest
of all stakeholders.

The stakeholders of the Company include
employees, contractors, suppliers, partners,
regulators, end users, and others who interact with
or are affected by the environment in the vicinity of
the Company'’s assets and operational areas.

The Board believes that good corporate
governance is an essential building block for the
development of a successful and sustainable
business. This belief is rooted in the understanding
that sound governance structures, clear rolesand
responsibilities, and robust accountability
mechanisms are instrumentalin driving business
success andresilience over the long term.

To support the Board and as a framework for the
Company to adhere to, BlueNord seeks to comply
with the Norwegian Code of Practice, whichis
available on the Norwegian Corporate
Governance Committee website (www.nues.no).

The Company's corporate values and code of
conduct also provide a framework on which the
Company acts and decisions are made. The code
of conduct describes the Company’s ethical
commitments and requirements related to
business practice and personal behaviour.

Riulf Rustad
Executive Chair

54 BlueNord
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Governance Report

The Board believes that good corporate
governance is an essential building block
for the development of a successful and
sustainable business.

BlueNord has a diverse board, with the relevant
experience and skills to support the Company and
best practice. The composition of the Board is
such thatit can operate independently of any
specialinterests.

The Executive Team also has extensive and
relevant experience, applicable to supporting best
practice, including technical, operational, financial,
financial market and other wider corporate skills.
The CEO and other members of the Executive
Teamreport to the Board on Company activities
onamonthly basis.

The Board shallhold at least five ordinary
proceedings each year. During 2023, attendance
at Board meetings was 96.4 percent. Board
meetings are based around a formalagenda. The
Board willannually seek to define and evaluate the
Company’s objectives, main strategies and risk
profiles to ensure it continues to create value.

To ensure amore detailed assessment and of key
areas of the business, the Board is supported by
various committees, whichinclude audit,
nominations, remuneration and ESG. Withan
exception fromthe Nomination Committee, the
committees are made up of members of the
Board. Designated representatives from the
administration participate in the respective
committee meetings as required, depending
ontheir relevant position and skills.

Board committees meet regular during the year,
and the average attendance during 2023 was 91.7
percent. Committee meetings are held in person or
online and are based around a formal agenda, with
the saliant points reported to the wider Board.

The Board aims to ensure there is the opportunity
for continuous and transparent dialogue with
shareholders. Thisincludes key decisions being
putto shareholders on an annual basis through
an Annual General Meeting (AGM’). The meeting
is held virtually to encourage attendance

and participation, with the option to vote and
asking questions.

Corporate and Social Responsibility
Find out more in our Sustainability Report.

Find out more on page 25

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023
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Leadership

Board of Directors

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP KEY

© Chair

E ESG Committee member

® Remuneration Committee member A Audit Committee member

Riulf Rustad ©

Executive Chair

Riulf Rustad is a Norwegian businessman with along track
record frominvestmentsin sectors suchas oiland gas, oil
services and offshore. Mr. Rustad operates through his
platform Ousdal AS and holds/has held various Board
positions, bothinlisted and unlisted companies. Mr. Rustad was
elected as Chair of the Board of Directors of BlueNord in 2016,
and was re-elected at the AGM of 19 May 2022 for a period of
twoyears.

Colette Cohen ®

Board member

Colette Cohenis a chemistry graduate from Queens University
Belfastand also holds a master's degree in Project Management
and Economics. Her career began with BPin1991and she has
worked for companies including ConocoPhillips and Britanniain
the North Sea, Norway, the US and Kazakhstan. Colette was
SVPfor Centrica Energy's E&P UK/NL was the CEO of The Net
Zero Technology Centre for seven years until 2023. Ms. Cohen
has served asmember of the Board of Directors of BlueNord
since 7 August 2019,and was re-elected at the AGM of 25 April
2023 foraperiod of twoyears.

MarianneLie .@

Board member

Marianne Lie is the owner of Fajoma Consulting AS andis the
founder and Managing Director of Forum for Miljgteknologi
(FFM). She holds/has held several Board positions bothinlisted
and unlisted companies. Lie has served asamember of the
Board of Directors in BlueNord since 26 May 2016,and was
re-elected at the AGM of 19 May 2022 for a period of two years.

Robert J. McGuire (E

Board member

Robert McGuire is the founder of Longwing Partners LLC, a
strategic advisory firm.He has a 30-year global track record as
an adviser, investor and business leader, has served on
numerous Boards and has extensive experience inthe energy
sector, having led the European energy businesses at both
Goldman Sachsand J.PMorgan. Bobis also anindependent
director at TSX-listed GDIIntegrated Facilities Services. He has
aBA from Boston College and an MBA from Harvard Business
School. Mr.McGuire was elected as member of the Board of
Directors of BlueNord at an Extraordinary General Meeting
held on 2 March 2020, and was re-elected at the AGM of
19May 2022 for a period of two years.

Tone Kristin Omsted (A

Board member

Tone Omsted holds a BA Hons. in Finance from the University
of Strathclyde. She has broad experience from corporate
finance and capital markets, and currently serves as Head of
Investor Relations at Entra ASA. Previous experience includes
14 years as aninvestment banking executive at SEB Enskilda.
She has also served on the Board of Directors of Panoro
Energy ASA.Ms Omsted has served as Member of the Board
of Directors of BlueNord since 26 May 2016, and was
re-elected at the AGM of 19 May 2022 for a period of two years.

Peter Coleman A

Board member

Peter Coleman joined Taconic, ashareholder in BlueNord, in
April 2018 where he is a Director focusing on European credit,
basedintheir London office. Prior to joining Taconic, Peter was
aManaging Director on the European distressed debt team at
SVP Global. Previously, he was an Investment Director in
distressed debt at Sisu Capital and prior to this,he was a
Director in the corporate finance group and tax group at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Peter earnedadual LL. B.and B.
Com. from Victoria University in New Zealand in 1996.
Mr.Coleman has served as member of the Board of Directors of
BlueNord since 19 May 2021,and was re-elected at the AGM of
25 April2023 for a period of two years.

JanLernout ®

Board member

Jan Lernoutis apartner and portfolio manager at Kite Lake
Capital Management (UK) LLP, a shareholder in BlueNord,
which he founded in July 2010. Prior to that he was a partner
and portfoliomanager at Cheyne Capital Management (UK)
LLP andan Executive Director and member of the Investment
Committee inthe European Special Situations Group (ESSG)
at Goldman Sachs International. He holds a Master in
Commercial Engineering from KU Leuvenand an MBA from
the University of Chicago Booth School of Business. Heis a
CFA Charterholder. Mr.Lernout has served as member of the
Board of Directors of BlueNord since 19 May 2021, and was
re-elected at the AGM of 25 April 2023 for a period of two years.
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Leadership continued

Executive Team

56 BlueNord

Euan Shirlaw

Chief Executive Officer

Euan has served as the Chief Executive Officer of BlueNord
since May 2022. He initially joined the company as the Chief
Financial Officerin 2019 and additionally held the role of
Acting Managing Director from November 2021.Hehas a
background of providing strategic advice to a wide range of oil
and gas companies on acquisition, divestment and merger
activity, as well as raising debt and equity capital. Prior to
joining BlueNord, Euan was a senior member of the oiland
gasadvisory team at BMO Capital Markets, having also
focused on the Energy space while working with Credit
Suisse, RBC Capital Markets and Rothschild in London. He
has an MScin Business and Accountancy from the University
of Edinburgh.

Marianne Eide
Chief Operating Officer

Marianne joined BlueNordin 2022 and holds the position of
Chief Operating Officer. She has 30 years of experience
inthe upstream oiland gas industry. Prior tojoining BlueNord,
she held senior management, commercial and technical roles
with Shell, BG Group, Gaz de France, Conoco and Equinor,
bothbasedinNorway and the United Kingdom. Marianne has
anMScin Petroleum Engineering from the Norwegian
Institute of Technology in Trondheim.

Jacqueline Lindmark Boye

Chief Financial Officer

Jacqueline joined BlueNord in 2019 and was appointed Chief
Financial Officer in October 2023, after beingamember of
the Executive Team since November 2022. She has over 20
years' experience in finance and audit within the energy
industry in Australia, the UK and Denmark. Prior to joining
BlueNord, Jacqueline has held various roles, including
leadership with Shell, AGL Energy, EY and PwC. She holds a
Bachelorin Commerce and Bachelor in Arts from Monash
University in Australiaandis amember of the Chartered
Accountants Australiaand New Zealand.

Cathrine F. Torgersen
Chief Corporate Affairs Officer

Cathrinejoined BlueNord in 2020 and holds the position of
Chief Corporate Affairs Officer. She previously had the role as
Senior Account Director in Hill+Knowlton, where she advised
awide range of oiland gas and shipping companies. During
her seven years in Hill+Knowlton, she was a member of the
Management Team and was also leading the Financial
Communications practice. Prior to joining Hill+Knowlton,
Cathrine worked with institutional high-yield sales at Pareto
Securities Inc.inNew York and Clarksons Platou Securities.
She hasaBScinBusiness Administration and Finance from
BocconiUniversity.
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Governance Report

Inthisreport Corporate Governance Report

BlueNord ASA (‘the Company’) has made a strong commitment to ensure trust in the Group and to Governance operating model - Organisational design and Committee Structure
enhance value creation for shareholders and society over time. The Company actsin aresponsible and

prudent manner through efficient decision making and communication between the management, the

Board of Directors (‘the Board’,‘Board of Directors’) and the shareholders of the Company, represented

by the AGM. Shareholders

O ®DL

53-71

Chair’s Introduction The Company's framework for corporate governance is intended to decrease business risk, maximise
Leadership value and utilise the Company’s resources in an efficient and sustainable manner, to the benefit of
SIS = shareholders, employees and society atlarge. The Company will seek to comply with the Norwegian
Code of Practice for corporate governance (‘Corporate Governance Code’), which is available on the
Norwegian Corporate Governance Committee website: www.nues.no.

Corporate Governance Report Genel’al Meeting

Board Activities

AuditC ittee R t o o g
udit Committee Repor Nomination Committee

Remuneration CommitteeReport 64 The principal purpose of the Corporate Governance Codeis to ensure: (i) that listed companies

ESGCommitteeReport 65 implement corporate governance that clarifies the respective roles of shareholders, the Board of Board of Directors
Nomination Committee Report Directors and executive management more comprehensively than that which is required by legislation;
Directors Report 61 and (ii) effective management and control over activities with the aim of securing the greatest Audit Co itt
Reborting of Pavmentsto Governments 71 possible value creation over time in the best interest of companies, shareholders, employees udi mmittee

Reporting of Payments to Governments :
and other parties concerned.

1oday oibsrens

The Company will, due to the listing of its shares on Oslo Bars, be subject to reporting requirements for
72-154 corporate governance under the Accounting Act section 3-3b, as wellas Oslo Bars' Rule Book Il section
- 4.4. The Board of Directors willinclude a report on the Company’s corporate governance in each Annual

Report, including an explanation of any deviations from the Corporate Governance Code. The corporate

governance framework of the Company is subject to annual review by the Board of Directors. ESG Committee

Remuneration Committee

According to the Company’s own evaluation, the Company deviates from the Corporate Governance

Code onthe following points:

- Item4: The Board of Directors of the Company has been, and is expected to be, provided with
authorisations to acquire own shares andissue new shares. Not all such authorisations have separate
and specific purposes for each authorisation, as the purposes of the authorisations shall be explained
inthe notices to the general meetings adopting the authorisations.

Item 11: Options have been granted to members of the Board of Directors through the share option Executive Team
programme of the Company, firstimplemented at an extraordinary general meeting in October 2018

and later extended and expanded.

Item 14: Due to the unpredictable nature of takeover situations, the Company has decided not to

implement detailed guidelines on takeover situations. In the event a takeover were to occur, the Board

of Directors will consider the relevant recommendations in the Corporate Governance Code and

whether the concrete situation entails that the recommendations in the Corporate Governance Code

can be complied with or not.

podsy 90UBUJI9A0Y)

For further information on committees’ work, see
their reports on pages 62-66.
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Corporate Governance Report continued

1. Implementation and reporting on corporate governance

The Board of BlueNord is responsible for compliance with corporate governance standards. BlueNord is
aNorwegian public limited liability Company (ASA), listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange and established
under Norwegian law.

Inaccordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act, section 3-3b, BlueNord includes a description of
principles for corporate governance as part of the Board of Directors’ Report in the Annual Report. The
Company will seek to comply with the Corporate Governance Code.

The Company’s strategy is to continue its value creation to replace and maximise recovery of proven
reserves and resources and to continue to explore new opportunities in and above the ground.

2. Business

The Company is a publicly owned oil, gas and offshore industry Company with a strategic focus on value
creation through increased recovery, enabled by a competent organisation with along-term view on
reservoir management and the capability to invest inand leverage new technology.

Onanannualbasis, the Board defines and evaluates the Company’s objectives, main strategies and risk

profiles for the Company’s business activities to ensure that the Company creates value for shareholders.

The Company integrates considerations related to its stakeholders, as well as social, environmental and
sustainability considerations into its value creation and shall achieve its objectives in accordance with the
Company’s Code of Conduct.

The Company’s business is defined in the following manner in the Company’s Articles of Association,
section 3: The object of the Company is direct and indirect ownership of and participationin
companies and enterprises within exploration, production, and sale related to oiland gas, and

other activities related hereto!

3. Equity and dividends

3.1 Equity

As of 31 December 2023, the Company'’s consolidated equity was USD 813.6 million, which is equivalent
to approximately 26 percent of total assets. The Company’s equity level and financial strength shall be
considered inlight of its objectives, strategy and risk profile.

3.2 Dividend policy
The Company has not paid any dividends to date, whether in cash or in kind.

The Company does not expect to make dividend payments prior to completion of the Tyra

redevelopment project. The Company established in February 2024 its distribution policy for the
period 2024 t0 2026.

58 BlueNord

Governance Report

3.3 Share capitalincreases and issuance of shares

Atthe AGM held on 25 April 2023, The Board of Directors was authorised to increase the Company’s
share capital by up to NOK 1,414,463 (this represents 2,620,203 shares at a nominal value of NOK
0.5398295) valid until the AGM in 2024, but in no event later than 30 June 2024.

Outstanding shares as of 11 April 2024 were 26,205,849, which is an increase of 497,425 shares
compared to year-end 2022. During the year, 494,853 shares were issued following conversion of
BNOR13and 2,572 sharesissued following conversion of parts of BNOR15.

3.4 Purchase of own shares

The Board of Directors of the Company has been authorised to acquire and dispose own shares with a
total nominal amount up to NOK 1,414,462 (this represents 2,620,203 shares), valid until the AGM in 2024,
however inany event no later than 30 June 2024. The authorisation can be used in relation to incentive
schemes for employees/Directors of the Group, as consideration in connection with acquisition of
businesses and/or for general corporate purposes.

As of 21 March 2024, the Company holds 100,521 of its own shares, approximately 0.38 percent.

4. Equal treatment of shareholders and transactions with related parties

4.1 Class of shares

The Company has one class of shares. All shares carry equal rights in the Company, and the articles of
association do not provide for any restrictions, or rights of first refusal, on transfer of shares. Share
transfers are not subject to approval by the Board of Directors.

4.2 Pre-emptionrights to subscribe

According to the Norwegian Public Limited Liability Companies Act section 10-4, the Company’s
shareholders have pre-emption rights in share offerings against cash contribution. Such pre-emption
rights may, however, be set aside, either by the general meeting or by the Board of Directors if the general
meeting has granted a Board authorisation which allows for this. Any resolution to set aside pre-emption
rights will be justified by the common interests of the Company and the shareholders, and such
justification will be publicly disclosed through a stock exchange notice from the Company.

4.3 Tradinginown shares

The Board of Directors willaim to ensure that all transactions pursuant to any share buy back programme
willbe carried out either through the trading system at Oslo Bars or at prevailing prices at Oslo Bers andin
accordance with the Market Abuse Regulation (MAR?). In the event of such a programme, the Board of
Directors will take the Company’s and shareholders'interests into consideration and aim to maintain
transparency and equal treatment of all shareholders. If there is limited liquidity in the Company’s shares,
the Company shall consider other ways to ensure equal treatment of all shareholders.

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023
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Corporate Governance Report continued

4.4 Transactions with close associates

The Board of Directors aims to ensure that any non-immaterial future transactions between the
Company and shareholders, a shareholder’s parent Company, members of the Board of Directors,
executive personnel or close associates of any such parties are entered into on arm’'s length terms. For
any such transactions that do not require approval by the general meeting pursuant to the Norwegian
Public Limited Liability Companies Act, the Board of Directors will, on a case-by-case basis, assess
whether afairness opinion from anindependent third party should be obtained.

4.5 Guidelines for Directors and executive management

The Board of Directors has adopted rules of procedures for the Board of Directors which, inter alia,
include guidelines for notification by members of the Board of Directors and executive management if
they have any material direct or indirect interest in any transaction entered into by the Company.

5. Freely negotiable shares
The shares of the Company are freely transferable. There are no restrictions on transferability of shares
pursuant to the Articles of Association.

6. General meetings

6.1 Notification

The notice for ageneral meeting, with reference to or attached support information on the resolutions to
be considered at the general meeting, shall as a principal rule be sent to shareholders no later than 21
days prior to the date of the general meeting.

The Board of Directors will seek to ensure that the resolutions and supporting information are sufficiently
detailed and comprehensive to allow shareholders to form a view on all matters to be considered at the
meeting. The notice and supportinformation, as well as a proxy voting form, will normally be made
available nolater than 21days prior to the date of the general meeting on the Company’s website:
www.bluenord.com/general-meetings.

6.2 Participation and execution

To the extent deemed appropriate or necessary by the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors will
seek to arrange for the general meeting to vote separately on each candidate nominated for election to
the Company’s corporate bodies.

The Board of Directors and the Nomination Committee shall, as a general rule, be present at general
meetings. The auditor will attend the ordinary general meeting and any extraordinary general meetings to
the extent required by the agenda items or other relevant circumstances. The Board of Directors will seek
to ensure that anindependent chair is appointed by the general meeting if considered necessary based
onthe agendaitems or other relevant circumstances.
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The Company will aim to prepare and facilitate the use of proxy forms which allows separate voting
instructions to be given for each item on the agenda and to nominate a person who will be available to
vote on behalf of shareholders as their proxy. The Board of Directors may decide that shareholders may
submit their votes in writing, including by use of electronic communication, in a period prior to the general
meeting. The Board of Directors should seek to facilitate such advance voting.

7. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is provided for and governed by the Articles of Association, in addition to
instructions for the Nomination Committee. For more information relating to the Nomination Committee,
read the Nomination Committee report on page 66.

8. Board of Directors: composition and independence
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, section 5, the Company’s Board of Directors shall consist of three
to seven members, which are shareholders’ elected members inaccordance with a decision by the AGM.

The composition of the Board of Directors should ensure that the Board can attend to the common
interests of all shareholders and meet the Company’s need for expertise, capacity and diversity. Attention
should be paid to ensuring that the Board can function effectively as a collegiate body.

The composition of the Board of Directors should ensure that it can operate independently of any special
interests. The majority of the shareholder-elected members of the Board should be independent of the
Company's executive personnel and material business contacts. At least two of the members of the
Board elected by shareholders should be independent of the Company’s main shareholder(s), the
executive personnel and material business contacts.

The Board of Directors should not include executive personnel. If the Board does include executive
personnel, the Company should provide an explanation for this and implement consequential
adjustments to the organisation of the work of the Board, including the use of Board committees to help
ensure more independent preparation of matters for discussion by the Board.

The Chair of the Board of Directors should be elected by the AGM.

The term of office for members of the Board of Directors should not be longer than two years at atime.
The Board members can be elected for a shorter term by the AGM. The Annual Report should provide
information toillustrate the expertise of the members of the Board of Directors and information on their
record of attendance at Board meetings. In addition, the Annual Report should identify which members
are considered to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report continued

9. The work of the Board of Directors

9.1 Rules of procedures for the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overallmanagement of the Company and shall supervise
the Company’s business and the Company'’s activities in general.

The Norwegian Public Limited Liability Companies Act regulates the duties and procedures of the Board
of Directors. In addition, the Board of Directors has adopted supplementary rules of procedures, which
provide further regulation on, inter alia, the duties of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer, the division of work between the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer, the annual
plan for the Board of Directors, notices of Board proceedings, administrative procedures, minutes, Board
committees, transactions between the Company and the shareholders, and matters of confidentiality.

The Board shall produce an annual plan for its work, with a particular emphasis on objectives, strategy
andimplementation. The Chief Executive Officer shall atleast once a month, by attendance or in writing,
inform the Board of Directors about the Company’s activities, position and profit trend.

The Board of Directors’ consideration of material matters in which the Chair of the Board s, or has been,
personally involved, shall be chaired by some other member of the Board. The Board of Directors

shall evaluate its performance and expertise annually and make the evaluation available to the
Nomination Committee.

9.2 Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is governed by the Norwegian Public Limited Liability Companies Act
and a separate instruction adopted by the Board of Directors. To read the latest Audit Committee Report,
please see page 63 of thisreport.

9.3 Remuneration Committee
The Company’s Remuneration Committee is governed by aninstruction adopted by the Board of
Directors. Toread the latest Remuneration Committee Report, please see page 64 of thisreport.

9.4 ESG Committee

The Environment, Social & Governance (ESG) Committee is governed by aninstruction adopted by the
Board of Directors. Toread the latest ESG Committee report, please see page 65 of thisreport.
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10. Risk management and internal control

Risk management and internal control are given high priority by the Board of Directors, which ensures
that adequate systems for risk management and internal control are in place. For more information about
how risks are managed, please see the risk report on page 44.

11. Remuneration of the Board of Directors

The remuneration of the Board of Directors shall be decided by the AGM, and reflects the Board of
Directors' responsibilities, expertise, time commitment and the complexity of the Company’s activities.
For more detail, on the Board's remuneration, please refer to the Executive Remuneration Report 2023
onwww.bluenord.com.

12. Remuneration of the executive management

The Board of Directors has in accordance with the Norwegian Public Limited Liability Companies Act
section 6-16 prepared a policy for executive management remuneration. The policy includes the main
principles applied in determining the salary and other remuneration of executives as further set outinthe
regulation on policies and reports on remuneration for executive management (Nw. Forskrift om
retningslinjer og rapport og godtgjerelse for ledende personer). The Company shallannually prepare a
report on remuneration to executive management in accordance with the Norwegian Public Limited
Liability Companies Act section 6-16b. For more detail, please refer to the Guidelines on Executive
Remuneration adopted by the AGM on19 May 2022 on www.bluenord.com.

13. Information and communications

13.1 General

The Board of Directors has adopted a separate manual on disclosure of information, which sets forth the
Company's disclosure obligations and procedures. The Board of Directors will seek to ensure that
market participants receive correct, clear, relevant and up-to-date information in a timely manner, taking
into account the requirement for equal treatment of all participants in the securities market.

The Company will, each year, publish a financial calendar, providing an overview of the dates for major
events such asits ordinary general meeting and publication of interim reports.

13.2 Information to shareholders

The Company shall have procedures for establishing discussions with shareholders to enable the Board
to develop abalanced understanding of the circumstances and focus of such shareholders. Such
discussions shallbe done in compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and regulations.

Allinformation distributed to the Company’s shareholders will be published on the Company’s website at
the same time asitis sent to shareholders, at the latest.

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023

O ®DL

Joday oiberens

g
<
(1)
=
=
Y
=
(2}
(14
X
(1)
©
(©)
=
=

Joday [eloueul



http://www.bluenord.com

Inthisreport

53-71

Chair’s Introduction

Leadership

Corporate Governance Report
Board Activities

Audit Committee Report
Remuneration Committee Report
ESG Committee Report
Nomination Committee Report
Directors’ Report

Reporting of Payments to Governments

72154

Corporate Governance Report continued

14. Takeovers

Inthe event the Company becomes the subject of a takeover bid, the Board of Directors shall seek to
ensure that the Company’s shareholders are treated equally and that the Company’s activities are not
unnecessarily interrupted. The Board of Directors shall also ensure that the shareholders have sufficient
information and time to assess the offer.

There are no defence mechanisms against takeover bids in the Company’s Articles of Association, nor
have other measures beenimplemented to specifically hinder acquisitions of shares inthe Company.
The Board of Directors has not established written guiding principles for how it willact in the event of a
takeover bid, as such situations are normally characterised by concrete and one-off situations, which
make a guideline challenging to prepare.

Inthe event a takeover were to occur, the Board of Directors will consider the relevant recommendations
inthe Corporate Governance Code and whether the concrete situation entails that the recommendations
inthe Corporate Governance Code can be complied with or not.

15. Auditor

The Board of Directors will require the Company’s auditor to annually present to the Audit Committee a
review of the Company’s internal control procedures, including identified weaknesses and proposals for
improvement, as well as the main features of the plan for the audit of the Company.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors will require the auditor to participate in meetings of the Board of
Directors that deal with the annual accounts; at least one Board meeting with the auditor shall be held
each year in which no member of the executive management is present.

The Board of Directors’ Audit Committee shall review and monitor the independence of the Company’s
auditor, including in particular the extent to which services other than auditing provided by the auditor or
the audit firm represents a threat to the independence of the auditor.

The remuneration to the auditor for statutory audit will be approved by the ordinary general meeting. The

Board of Directors should report to the general meeting on details of fees for audit work and any fees for
other specific assignments.
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Board Activities

The Board has responsibility for the overall management of the Company,
including strategic priorities, identifying and assessing principal risks, as
well as the level of risk deemed appropriate for the Company to take. The
Board is responsible for establishing and thereafter monitoring the risk
and internal control framework. The Board delegates a level of day-to-day
management to the CEO and Executive Team; however, the Board retains

the ultimate decision-making authority.

The Board held eight meetings during 2023. A further three meetings  The areas of focus covered through Board meetings during 2023

were heldin 2024, one related to the Tyra update and two prior to the

publication of Q4 and this Annual Report and Accounts. Inaddition,
three written resolutions were approved related to approval of the
2024 budget/Tyra CCE4, CarbonCuts license application
submission and Harald East Middle Jurassic Investment proposal.

Name Attendance

Riulf Rustad (Chair) v v

Marianne Lie
Tone Omsted
Colette Cohen
Robert McGuire

v
v
v
v

JanLernout

Peter Coleman

hasincluded:

Established strategic priorities, including ESG strategy
andrebranding.

Operational and performance updates, including regular
monitoring of the Tyraredevelopment project, Health, Safety,
Security and Environment (HSSE’), capital structure and

liquidity outlook.

Reviews and considers forecast medium-term liquidity position
of the Company.

Approval of restructuring of the NOR13 convertible bond loan and
approval of the voluntary exchange offer into the new BNOR15
convertible bond loan.

Annually review of the ten top risks in the Company’s enterprise
risk matrix.

Review of executive management structure and performance,
including the appointment of Jacqueline Lindmark Boye as CFO.
Approval of the tax protection principles related to Global position.
Review of executive management remuneration, the Company’s
Short Term and Long-Term Incentive programmes and their KPIs
and awards as endorsed by the Remuneration Committee.
Approval of the Halfdan Ekofisk infillinvestment decision.

Review of the various Board committees’ performance and
confirmation of membership and continued committee structure.

I
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Audit Committee Report

BlueNord has established an
Audit Committee with formally
delegated duties and
responsibilities within written
terms of reference.

Marianne Lie
Audit Committee Chair

Work of the Audit Committee
Support the Board's responsibilities relating
totheintegrity of financial reporting and the
financial reporting process.
Evaluate the risk management of financial
reportingand monitor the systems for
internal controls.
Review the external auditors'independence
and objectivity and review the effectiveness
and quality of the annual audit plan.
Develop andimplement policy for any
engagement of external auditors to supply
non-audit services.

63 BlueNord

The Audit Committee consists of the following
Board members:

Marianne Lie (Chair)
Tone Omsted
Peter Coleman

Allmembers are independent of the Company’s executive
management and all three committee members sit on the
Board of Directors of BlueNord ASA.

Activities during the year

The committee held six scheduled meetings during 2023. A further two
meetings were held in 2024, prior to the publication of Q4 and this Annual
Report and Accounts. In addition to the members of the committee listed on
this page, meetings of the Committee were also attended by the CFO and the
Head of Group Reporting. The Company’s auditor works closely with the
Audit Committee and attended allmeetings during the year.

The committee spent considerable time during the year reviewing allinterim
and annual reports before they are reviewed by the Board of Directors and
then published. Any identified risks and their effects on financial reporting are
discussed on a quarterly basis; in addition, the management give a quarterly
update on compliance.

Every quarter, the Audit Committee reviews the memorandum for tax and
impairment triggers. New accounting effects and issues are monitored on a
quarterly basis by the committee. Prior to the year-end closing, the committee
reviews key assumptions and accounting principles, and discusses early
warning and key issues.

During the year, the Audit Committee has worked together with executive
management and the auditor to further develop the already strong
cooperation and improve the processes and internal control environment
related to material financial reporting lines.

In 2023 the Audit Committee also held a joint session with the ESG Committee
to discuss and agree how to work together regarding sustainability reporting
to ensure both Committees contribute effectively as this develops within the
Company. The Audit Committee has a key role in ensuring non-financial datais
properly integrated into the risk and control framework whilst the ESG Committee

Governance Report

Committee meeting attendance

Name Attendance
Marianne Lie
Tone Omsted

Peter Coleman

focuses on strategy development and performance. The two committees
willregardless have overlapping responsibilities and will remain coordinated
as sustainability reporting and performance assessment develops.

2023 meeting summary
Inthe course of eight meetings during FY2023/24, the Audit Committee
has continued to work on arange of audit matters.

These include overall performance and tax issues, compliance, reviews of
policy documentation, updates to delegated authority, and liquidity
forecasts. Reviews have also taken place regarding internal controls and
business continuity planning (BCP’).

The committee received updates from KPMG regarding the final report on
the inspection from the Financial Supervisory Authority of Norway (FSA).
In addition, the committee was informed of the new era of sustainability
reporting triggered by CSRD, and half-year accounting issues.
Discussions were held onimpairment triggers and accounting effects,

as well as tax effects.

A review of the updated finance process descriptions and risk and control
matrix was undertaken, as well as a review of the new internal materiality
assessment. The committee reviews the Enterprise risk matrix ona
quarterly basis. In addition, the committee discussed the financial reporting
risks and the proposed distribution policy.
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Remuneration Committee Report

The Remuneration Committee
is a preparatory and advisory
committee which supports the
Board with regard to executive
management compensation.

Marianne Lie
Remuneration Committee Chair

Role of the Remuneration Committee
Prepare the annual executive

remunerationreport and, atleast annually,
review and recommend any amendments

to the guidelines for executive
remuneration, to be proposed by the
Board for adoption by the AGM;

monitor, evaluate and approve

the application of the guidelines for

the remuneration provided to

executive management;

request information and assistance from
executive management which is deemed

relevant for the Remuneration Committee

tocarry outits tasks; and
seek advice and recommendations from

sources outside of the Company if relevant

and subject to appropriate confidentiality.
64 BlueNord

The Remuneration Committee consists of the following
Board members:

Marianne Lie (Chair)
Jan Lernout

These members are independent of the Company’s executive
management, and both committee members sit on the Board
of Directors of BlueNord ASA (since May 2016 and May 2021,
respectively).

2023 meeting summary
The committee convened for five scheduled meetings in 2023, with the CEO
and EVP People and Capability invited to attend where relevant.

The executive remuneration guidelines were reviewed, with no changes made
from those approved by the AGMin May 2022. The audited Executive
Remuneration Report, which was prepared in line with the Public Limited
Liability Companies Act § 6-16b and best practices inremuneration
disclosure, was endorsed.

InQ2 2023 and upon the Board's request, a benchmarking exercise for
executive remuneration was conducted by Mercer. After acomprehensive
review of the report, the committee recommended no changes to BlueNord's
total compensation policy or the executive remuneration structure.

The committee reviewed and recommended the proposed annual salary
increase for eligible executives and employees in 2023. It also endorsed and
recommended employment terms for the new CFO, appointed in October
2023, and the promotion of the previous EVP of Investor Relations and

ESG to Chief Corporate Affairs Officer, which involved no change in
employment terms.

The committee reviewed and endorsed the 2023 KPIs for the Company’s
Short Term Incentive programme. It also examined and endorsed the
programme’s 2022 KPIs' achievement and the proposed annual performance
bonus payment for executives and employees.

Governance Report
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Name Attendance
Marianne Lie

JanLernout

The committee reviewed and endorsed the achievement of KPIs for the
first performance period of the 2022 LTI programme, which involves annual
vesting. It then recommended the first award of performance shares to
eligible executives and employees. The committee also reviewed and
endorsed the grantand KPIs for the 2023 LTI programme’s three-year
performance and vesting period. However, due to the executive
remuneration benchmark exercise conductedin Q2, the Board did not
approve the grant for the performance period 1January 2023 to
31December 2025, until July 2023.

InQ4 2023, the Committee evaluated its own structure and performance.
Measures were set with the Company’s management to ensure the KPIs
for variable pay are endorsed and available for the Board's approval at the
firstmonth of each programme’s performance period.

Executive Remuneration Report 2023

For more details on the executive remuneration,
pleaseread the fullreport here:
www.bluenord.com/reports-and-presentations.
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ESG Committee Report

The Company’s ESG Committee
is a preparatory and advisory
committee to the Board,
established in 2020 to support
the commitment to ESG and

to evolve the Company’s role

as a contributor in the

energy transition.

Colette Cohen
ESG Committee Chair

BlueNord

The ESG Committee consists of the following
Board members:

Colette Cohen (Chair)
Robert McGuire

Allmembers are independent of the Company’s executive
management and all committee members sit on the Board
of Directors of BlueNord ASA.

The ESG Committee shall:
support the development of the Company’s overall environmental, social
and governance strategy;
oversee the Company’s ESG activities and assess if any developments or
investments are compatible with, and supportive of, the strategic objectives
of the Company;
ensure that the Board is informed on material relevant topics or events
related to the Company’'s work on ESG;
review the Company’s ability to address and mitigate risks related to
ESG;and
ensure that the Company strives for transparency and high standards inits
ESGreporting.

Activities during the year

The committee held four scheduled meetings during 2023. A further meeting
was heldin 2024, prior to the publication of this Annual Report. Inaddition to the
members of the committee listed on this page, meetings of the committee were
also attended by the CEQ, the Chief Corporate Affairs Officer and by invitation,
the CFO or other members of the leadership team for specific topics.

The committee has worked closely with key members from the Executive
Team during 2023 to develop the ESG strategy of the Company, to identify
material topics and to assess risks and opportunities that are relevant to the
Company. The committee has also been involved inimprovements of the
standards and transparency of the ESG reporting of BlueNord.

.|
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Name Attendance

Colette Cohen v v vV

Robert McGuire v v v

Inaddition, during 2023 the Committee was involved in developments and
recommendations made to the Board in relation to CarbonCuts and the
eventual license application for onshore CO, storage in Denmark
completedinJanuary 2024.

The ESG Committee also held ajoint session with the Audit Committee to
discuss and agree how to work together regarding sustainability reporting
to ensure both Committees contribute effectively as this develops within
the Company. The ESG Committee focuses on strategy development and
performance and itis acknowledged that the two committees will have
overlapping responsibilities and will remain coordinated as sustainability
reporting and performance develops.

Following the committee’s work during 2023 and to date in 2024, the
Company is today reporting against the TCFD framework and it has taken
measures to adapt to the Norwegian Transparency Act and the Anti-
Discrimination Act. Inaddition, the Company has further progressedinits
preparations to alignitself to report against the new ESRS, whichis
expected from 2025 including establishing responsibilities within teams to
work on and understand future reporting requirements, double materiality
assessment, gap analysis and prepare the reporting structure going
forward. This work will continue during 2024 to establish baselines from
which targets can be set and measured and processes and controls for the
gathering of data to support performance reporting.
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Nomination Committee Report

According to the Articles of
association § 6 the Nomination
Commiittee shall consist of
three members.

The term of office shall be two years unless the
AGM determines that the term shall be shorter.
The Nomination Committee shall prepare
amotion for the Annual General Meeting
relating to:
Election of members of the Board of Directors
and the chairperson of the Board of Directors.
Election of the members of the Nomination
Committee and the chairperson of
the Committee.
Theremuneration of the Directors and the
members of the Nomination Committee.
Any amendments of the Nomination
Committee’s Mandate and Charter.

Richard Sjoqvist
Nomination Committee Chair

66 BlueNord

The Nomination Committee in BlueNord consists of:

Richard Sjeqvist (Chair)
Kristian Utkilen
Annette Malm Justad

Allmembers were elected in 2022 for two years and are consequently
up for electionin 2024.

Work of the Nomination Committee:

The Chair of the Nomination Committee is responsible for the committee’s
work and call of meetings, however each member can request acommittee
meeting. The Nomination Committee shall regularly review the structure and
composition of the Board, including the knowledge, skills, experience and
diversity of the Board. It shall keep under regular review that the needs of the
Company are reflected in the Board composition and give full consideration to
succession planning for the Board members. The Nomination Committee
shallalso ensure that there is a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has contact with the Company’s shareholders,
Board of Directors and the Company’s executive personnel. All shareholders
of BlueNord have the possibility to propose candidates. If a candidate is
proposed, the Nomination Committee shall consider the experience,
competence and capacity of each candidate.

The Nomination Committee’s proposal for the 2024 Annual General
Meeting will be published and made available on www.bluenord.com/
general-meetings/ at the Annual General Meeting at latest.

Governance Report

Committee meeting attendance

Name Attendance

Richard Sjeqvist v

Kristian Utkilen v

Annette Malm Justad v

Activities during the period

The committee has taken note of the paragraph 5 of the Articles of
Associationinwhichit s stated that the Board of Directors shall have from
three to seven shareholders elected members and that such Board
members are elected to a two-year period unless the general meeting
decides uponashorter term.
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Directors’ Report

The Tyrall field start-
up will lead to a step-
change in BlueNord’s
future performance.

{

67 BluéNord ! + ;

BlueNord ASA (BlueNord, ‘the Company’) is a Norwegian company listed
on the Oslo Stock Exchange. The Company was established in 2005 and
has a strategic focus on value creation through increased recovery of
hydrocarbons, enabled by a competent organisation with along-term view
onreservoir management and the capability to investin and leverage

new technology.

Following the acquisition of Shell's Danish upstream assets in 2019, BlueNord
ASA holds a 36.8 percent non-operated interest in the DUC and s the second
largest oiland gas producer in Denmark. DUC is a joint venture between
TotalEnergies (43.2 percent), BlueNord (36.8 percent) and Nordsgfonden
(20.0 percent), and comprises four hubs (Halfdan, Tyra, Gormand Dan) and

11 producing fields. It is operated by TotalEnergies, which has extensive
offshore experience in the region and worldwide.

Since the acquisitionin 2019, BlueNord has built a meaningful presence in
Denmark and established good relationships with its partners TotalEnergies
and Nordsafonden, as well as other stakeholders including the DEA.

Production assets and field developments

The Company delivered strong production from the Halfdan, Dan and Gorm
hubsin 2023 with a yearly average of 24.9 mboepd and an overall operational
efficiency at approximately 86.1 percent. Production during the year benefitted
fromanincreased level of well optimisation activity and higher uptime than
planned due to reduced duration of planned shutdowns.

The Tyraredevelopment project was completed in March 2024, with
production start-up 21 March 2024. The Tyraredevelopment project is the
largest project ever carried out on the Danish continental shelf. As the offshore
installation campaign for Tyrall was completed in 2022, the main work in 2023
has beenrelated to testing and commissioning and the tie-in of facilities. This
work included testing the gas turbine generators, reconnecting the export
pipeline to Denmark, completion of subsea work, reconnecting all satellite
fields and completion of leak testing.

The annual revision of reserves, performed by an independent organisation
(ERCE) inaccordance with SPE PRMS 2018 standards, resulted in total 2P
reserves at year end 2023 of 185.6mmboe.

Governance Report

Capital structure

Convertible bond (BNOR13)

The main part of the convertible bond loan (BNOR13) was transferred into
the convertible bond loan (BNOR15) in 2022, the opening value in 2023 was
USD 0.2 million with an eight-year tenor and a mandatory conversionto
equity after five years was issued in 2019. BNOR13 has paid in kind ('PIK)
interest with additional bonds at a coupon rate of 8.0 percent.

InDecember 2023, the remaining convertible bond loan was convertedinto
equity in December 2023.

Convertible bond (BNOR15)

USD 228.4 million convertible bond with a five-year tenor and a conversion
to equity or cash settlement after three years. BNOR15 consists of USD
151.4 million converted from BNOR13 plus additional compensation bonds
of USD 56.2 million. BNOR15 has PIK interest with additional bonds at a
couponrate of 8.0 percent.

BlueNord may alternatively, at its own discretion, pay cash interest of
6.0 percent. Should the instrument be in place beyond the three-year
conversion period, the interest rate of BNOR15 willbe reduced to 0.0
percent for the remaining period subject to approval from RBL lenders.

Reserve-based lending facility

The BlueNord RBL facility is a seven-year, first lien, senior secured RBL with
a total facility amount of USD 1.1 billion, including a Letter of Credit sub-limit
of USD 100.0 million.

Atthe end of 2023, USD 850.0 million was drawn under the RBL, withan
additional USD 100.0 million Letter of Credit outstanding. Principal
repayments on the facility will commence from the second half of 2024, and
interest is charged on debt drawings based on the secured overnight
financing rate (SOFR’) and a margin of 4.0—4.5 percent. In October 2023,
BlueNord made a drawdown of USD 50.0 million. In addition, the Company
hedged the SOFR rate on USD 1.0 billion of principal from 1November 2021
to 30 June 2024 at arate of 0.4041percent.

Senior unsecured note (BNOR14)

USD 175.0 million senior unsecured note with a coupon rate of 9.0 percent
and amaturity in June 2026. In order to reduce exposure to future market
volatility, BlueNord ASA successfully reached an agreement with

its bondholdersin 2021, adding additional headroom to certain

financial covenants.
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Governance Report

In this report Directors’ Report continued

Group finanCiaI reSUItS fOr 2023 In addition, the Company has a swap transaction with a group of banks to fix the Company’s floating
interest rate exposure under the RBL facility. See the section onrisk factors and risk management on

The consolidated financial statements of BlueNord have been prepared inaccordance with IFRS and pages 840 87, and note 19in the consolidated financial statements.

interpretations from the IFRS interpretation committee (1FRIC’), as endorsed by the EU.

i
®
©

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Company is required to give a description of the principal risks and uncertainties which it faces.

Chair’s Introduction . L These principal risks and uncertainties are included as part of the risk report and can be found
—_— Risk mitigation onpage 44

The Company actively seeks to reduce therisk it is exposed to regarding fluctuating commodity prices
through the establishment of hedging arrangements.

53-71 See the section on the Financial Review, on pages 23 and 24.

Leadership

Corporate Governance Report

Going concern assumption

Board Activiti
oargactiviies Pursuant to the Norwegian Accounting Act section 3-3a, the BlueNord Board confirms that the

% Currently allthe Company’s CommOd ity priF:e hedging arrangements are executed solely in Fhe market requirements of the going concern assumption are met and that the annual accounts have been F_D'_
Remuneration Committee Report through forward contracts. At the time of this report, the Company had purchased the following: prepared on that basis. §
ESG Committee Report oil Ql-24 Q2-24 Q3-24 Q4-24 Q1-25 Q2-25 o
Nomination Committee Report Volumes (bb) 900000 900000 957000 957000 795000 795000 Our financial integrity, and our working capital and cash position, are considered satisfactory in relation 9}
Directors’ Report ’ : ’ : - ' to the planned activity level for the next 12 months. D
Price (USD/bbl) 61.3 61.3 725 725 745 74.5 o)
Reporting of Payments to Governments Equiv. dail H I h d f Q
quiv. daily : —~
production (mbblpd) 9.9 9.9 10.4 10.4 8.8 8.7 ealt ’ enVIrqnment andsa ety o ‘ o
BlueNord puts emphasis on its employees performing Company activities in line with the principals of (@)
72-154 oil Q3-25 Q4-25 Q126 Q226 Q3-26 Q426 businessintegrity and withrespect for people and the environment. During 2023, BlueNord was, through 2
S Volumes (ob) 900000 900000 525000 525000 225000 225000 its vinership inthe DUC i_n which TotalEnergigs is the operator, involved in production of ociland gas, g
- which could cause emissions to the seaand air. o
Price (USD/bbl) 737 737 74.5 74.5 711 711 3
(2]
Equiv. daily BlueNord will conduct its business operationin full compliance with all applicable national legislationin ()
production (mbblpd) 9.8 9.8 58 58 24 24 the countries where itis operating. The Company is committed to carry out its activities in aresponsible g
manner to protect people and the environment. Our fundamentals of health, safety, environment 'g
Gas Qt-24 Q2-24 Q3-24 Q4-24 Q125 Q225 andquality (HSEQ') and safe business practice are anintegral part of BlueNord operations and 3
Volumes (Mwh) 420,000 495000 495000 450,000 450,000 345000  businessperformance.
Pri 994 414 414 456 456 339 ) ) L . L
rice ORI Formore information, see the Sustainability section on pages 25t0 43. =]
Equiv. daily )
production  (mboepd) 27 3.2 3.2 29 29 22 Personnel resources and working environment %
Asatend 2023, the Group had 40 employees equal 37.32 F TE, including 3 interns, and 43.0 percent of T
Gas Q325 Q425 Qa6 Q226 Q326 Q426 e employees were women. The total growth rate in 2023 was 13.9 percent and the rolling 12 months 8
Volumes 345000 255000 255000 60,000 60,000 -  retentionrate 91.9 percent and attrition rate 5.2 percent per December 2023. In October 2023, ©]
Price 339 322 300 275 277 _ Jacqueline Lindmark Boye was appointed as CFO and Cathrine Torgersen promoted to Chief Corporate -
- _ Affairs Officer.
Equiv. daily
production 2.2 16 17 04 04 -

Asatend 2023, the Company'’s Board of Directors consists of three women and four men, all elected by
shareholders. There are no employee representatives on the Board. As at end 2023, more than 40.0
percent of the Board members are women.
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Directors’ Report continued

BlueNord is an equal opportunity employer, committed to fostering diversity and inclusioninthe
workplace. We welcome and embrace a variety of skillsets, perspectives, and we value differences
between people of different cultural backgrounds, ethnicity, age, gender, gender identification, gender
expression, sexual orientation, functional ability, religion, and philosophies of life. These principles apply
toallemployment practices at BlueNord, including recruitment, hiring, compensation and benefits,
promotion, training and development, and leave of absence.

Management compensationis described in the Executive Remuneration Report. Sick leave in the Group
was 0.41percentin 2023.

For more information, see the sustainability section on pages 25to0 43.

Research and development
BlueNord invests in research and development to support and further grow its exploration and
production (E&P’) and energy transition activities.

For more information, see the Sustainability section on page 25.

Corporate governance

The Board wishes to maintain an appropriate standard of corporate governance and to fulfil the
recommendations in the Norwegian Code of Practice for Corporate Governance. Corporate
governance in BlueNord is based on equal treatment of all shareholders, a principle whichis reflected in
the decisions taken at the general assembly.

For more information about the Board's composition and activities during the year, see the section on
corporate governance on page 57 in thisreport.

AGM
The AGM held on 25 April 2023 re-elected Colette Cohen, Jan Lernout and Peter Coleman. Allmatters
onthe agenda were approved.

For more information about corporate governance and corporate social responsibility, see the

relevant sections of this report. Also, see www.bluenord.com/corporate-governance and
www.bluenord.com/csr.

69 BlueNord
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Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance

The Company has acquired and maintains a Directors’ and officers’insurance policy to cover the
personal liability for financial losses that Directors and officers of the Company, and the Directors
and officers of the Company’s subsidiaries, may incur in their capacities as such (Nw. styre og
ledelsesansvar). The policy is placed with a reputable international carrier on market terms.

Ownership
There are norestrictions on the transfer of shares in BlueNord ASA. The Company currently has
approximately 2,600 shareholders and 23.59 percent of the shares are held by residents of Norway.

BlueNord ASA

In 2023, the parent Company was a holding Company and the operating expenses mainly consisted of
shareholder costs, consultancy fees, legal fees and payroll expenses. Net financial loss mainly due to
interest expenses from bond loans, partly offset by interest received from Group companies.

For more information about financial risk and market conditions, and a statement regarding going concern,
please see the relevant sections above. These comments are also valid for the parent Company.

Parent Company financial results for 2023

Personnel expenses were USD 5.8 millionin 2023 (2022: USD 4.4 million), with the increase mainly due
toanincrease in average full-time equivalents and full-year cost related to the LTIP, which is valued and
accounted for according to IFRS 2. Other operating expenses amounted to USD 3.5 millionin 2023
(2022: USD 4.1 million); the decrease is related to lower consultant and legal fees. The net operating result
for 2023 was aloss of USD 5.7 million (2022: USD 6.0 million).

Net financial items amounted to an expense of USD 4.7 millionin 2023 (2022: USD 76.5 million). The
decreased financial expense mainly related to the effect in 2022 of the extinguishment of the BNOR13
bondloan, in addition to decreased write-down of loans to subsidiaries, increased interestincome from
intercompany loans and lower foreign exchange losses compared to 2022.

The Company’s net result for the year amounted to a loss of USD 10.4 million (2022: USD 82.5 million).

Allocations
Theresult for the year for BlueNord ASA in 2023 was a loss of USD 10.4 million. The Board proposes the
following allocations:

allocated from other equity: USD 10.4 million; and

total appropriation: USD 10.4 million.
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Directors’ Report continued

Outlook

BlueNord ASA has a stable business, underpinned by the Company’s position in the DUC and further
supported by risk mitigations. The volatility in prices has been significant and management is
continuously assessing the market to mitigate commodity price volatility. The Company has during 2023
entered into fixed-price swap contracts for additional oiland gas volumes from 2024 to 2026.

The Company monitors global as well as local political and economic conditions that may affect future
results. The Company has not identified any negative impact on the Company’s assets orincome. See
further detail on this issue and mitigations as outlined in the section Principal Risks and Uncertainties
onpage45.

First gas from the Tyrall field was achieved 21 March 2024, with ramp-up to maximum technical capacity
expected within four months. This willlead to a step-change in performance for BlueNord, witha
doubling of production combined with a lowering of lifting cost per boe and emissions intensity. Direct
field operating expenditure is expected to decrease to USD 13 per barrel on average in 2025.

BlueNord ASA has a cash position with total liquidity of USD 316.7 million at the end of 2023 with cash on
balance sheet of USD 166.7 million and undrawn RBL capacity of USD 150.0 million. The Company has a
solid basis for executing the strategy and the ambition to deliver material shareholder returns and
significant value creation.

Activity to progress value additive organic DUC investment projects also continues, and we will seek to
sanction projects as they are sufficiently matured. BlueNord ASA believes economic investmentsin
these projects will help to replace produced reserves and provide strong financial returns benefitting the
Company’s shareholders.

70 BlueNord
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The Company expects increased production from Q2 2024; the increase is driven by the Tyra production

start-up.

Guidance 2024 Unit Base Tyra Total
Q1 mboepd 22.0-23.0 - 22.0-23.0
Q2 mboepd 23.0-26.0 3.0-70 26.0-33.0
Q3 mboepd 23.0-25.0 20.0-29.0 43.0-54.0
Q4 mboepd 23.0-25.0 27.0-29.0 50.0-54.0

The following sections of BlueNord ASA Annual Report constitute part of the Director's Report.

Annual Report Chapter Reference Content Page Reference
Strategic Report Financial Review 23-24
Strategic Report Sustainability Report 25-43
Strategic Report Principal Risks and Uncertainties 45-52
Governance Report Corporate Governance Report 57-61
Appendix 4 Norwegian Transparency Act Statement 153-154
Oslo

11 April 2024

Riulf Rustad Tone KristinOmsted Marianne Lie Colette Cohen
Executive Chair Board member Board member Board member

Robert J. McGuire JanLernout Peter Coleman Euan Shirlaw

Board member Board member Board member Chief Executive Officer
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Reporting of Payments to Governments

Governance Report

Thisreportis prepared in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act section § 3-3d) and Securities  Other information required to be reported

Trading Act § 5-5 a). It states that companies engaged in activities within the extractive industries shall
annually prepare and publish a report containing information about their payments to governments at
country and project level. The Ministry of Finance hasissued a regulation (F20.12.2013 nr 1682 — ‘the
regulation’) stipulating that the reporting obligation only applies to reporting entities above a certain size
and to payments above certain threshold amounts. In addition, the regulation stipulates that the report
shallinclude other information than payments to governments, and it provides more detailed rules
applicable to definitions, publication and Group reporting.

The management of BlueNord ASA has applied judgement in the interpretation of the wording in the
regulation with regards to the specific type of payment to be included in this report, and on what level it
should be reported. When payments are required to be reported on a project-by-project basis, itis
reported on a field-by-field basis. Only gross amounts on operated licences are to be reported, as all
payments within the licence performed by non-operators willnormally be cash calls transferred to the
operator and are as such not payments to the government. All activities in BlueNord ASA within the
extractive industries are located on the Danish continental shelf and all are performed as non-operator.
Allthe reported payments below are to the Danish government.

Income tax

Theincome tax s calculated and paid on a corporate level and is therefore reported for the whole
Company rather than licence-by-licence. The income tax payment in 2023 is a USD 40.0 million second
instalment repayment for 2022 pertaining to the special tax incentives implementedin 2017. This
repaymentis triggered from 2022 and onwards if commodity prices exceed certain thresholds. It
constitutes arepayment of tax benefits previously received from the incentive scheme, in the case of
market conditions significantly improving compared to the assumptions in 2017, where the incentive
scheme was implemented.

Further,in 2023 BlueNord paid USD 141.0 million of 25 %-chapter 2 hydrocarbon tax pertaining to 2022
earnings and USD 16.0 million pertaining to prior years. The Group also paid Danish corporate tax
forincome 2022 of USD 9.0 million. In addition, BlueNord paid the firstinstalment of the temporary
EU-solidarity contribution, whichis calculated at 33.0 percent of 2023 earnings. The instalment
amounted to USD 24.0 million.

71 BlueNord

Inaccordance with the regulation (F20.12.2013 nr 1682), BlueNord ASA is also required to report
oninvestments, operating income, production volumes and purchases of goods and services.
Allreported information is relating to BlueNord ASA activities within the extractive industries onthe
Danish continental shelf:
Total netinvestments amounted to USD 347.6 million, as specified in the cash flow analysisin the
financial statements.
Salesincome (petroleum revenues) in 2023 amounted to USD 791.5 million, as specified in note 4 to
the financial statements.
Total production in 2023 was 9.1 million barrels of oil equivalents, see note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.
Forinformation about purchases of goods and services, reference is made to the Income Statement
andthe related notes.
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Financial Report

Contents for Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements As of 31 December
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive | 73 2022

onsolidate atement or Comprenensive Income USD million Note 2023 restated®
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Total revenues 4 795.0 966.9
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Production expenses 5 (340.1) (323.4)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Exploration and evaluation expenses 6 (1.4) (0.7)
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 (P)ersonnel ex.penses 7 (18'0) (12.5)
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 ther operating expenses 8 (14'1) (19:1)
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Total operating expenses (373'6) (355.7)
Note 4:Revenue 88 Operating result before depreciation, amortisation and impairment (‘EBITDA’) 421.4 611.2
Note 5:Production expenses 89 Depreciation/amortisation/impairment 1 (102.6) (133.5)
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Net operating result (‘EBIT’) 318.8 4777
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 Financialincome 13 231 61.3

f i 13,10
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 F'nan_C'al ex_pef]ses (98.3) (230.0)
Y=y e ——— o Net financial items (75.2) (168.7)
smang . Result before tax (‘EBT’) 243.6 309.0
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Income tax benefit/(expense) 14,10 (133.7) (317.8)
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Net result for the year(z) 109.8 (8.8)
Note 12: Impairments 96 .
—— Other comprehensive income:
e Qe e e Lo ol ltems that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Note 14: Tax 97 Realised cash flow hedge 19 (49.1) 2247
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 Related tax —realised cash flow hedge 14,19 191 (151.2)
T e mmanpa—" S— Changesin fair value cash flow hedges 9 107.8 (40.4)
receivables and other current assets 102 Related tax —changes in fair value cash flow hedges 1419 (66.8) 482
Neteiinertier s 103 Currency translation adjustment 1.4 (2.0)
Note 18:Restriotedbank deposits, cashand Total other comprehensive income for the year 12.4 79.3
G E 103 Total comprehensive income for the year®? 94.2 48.8
el teA T ek TS L Basic earnings/loss USD per share 5 4.2 (0.4)
Note 20: Share capital 1o Diluted earnings/loss USD per share 15 4.2 (0.4)
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 (1) Thecomparative informationis restated onaccount of correction of errors. See note 10 Restatement of borrowing cost.
- (2) 100 percent attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions

121

Note 29: Subsequent events

121
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Contents for
Consolidated Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As of 31December

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 USD million Note 3112.2023 Srgsztftgii O:éosl':tgia
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Non-current assets
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Intangible assets 9 151.6 1604 166.0
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Deferred tax assets 14,10 218.5 2391 4552
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Property, plant and equipment 1,10 2,427.9 2,083.3 2,009.8
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 Right .Of Useasset ) 1.4 0.9 07
Restricted bank deposits 18,19 213.9 2037 2055
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Receivables non-current 6 37 08 _
Note 4: Revenue 88 Derivative instruments 19 14.0 33.7 97
Note &:Production expenses 89 Total non-current assets 3,031.0 27218 28469
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 Curjrerlt a-s sets
Derivative instruments 19 7.7 130.9 -
Note 8: Other operating expenses o1 Trade receivables and other current assets 16 88.7 128.6 108.9
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 Inventories 17 54.7 559 514
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Cashand cash equivalents 18 166.7 268.4 1226
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Total current assets 381.9 583.9 2830
Note 12:Impairments 96 Total assets 3,412.9 3,305.7 31299
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97
Note 14: Tax 97
Note 15: Earnings per share 102
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade
receivables and other current assets 102
Note 17:Inventories 103
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand
cashequivalents 103
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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N . 3112.2022 01.01.2022
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 USD million Note 3112.2023 restated” restated”
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 R
: : : Equity
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Share capital 0 17 17 295
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7 Other equity 10 811.9 6625 5027
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Total equity 813.6 664.2 532.2
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 .
R . imatesand ud 87 Non-currentliabilities
ote 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements . .
< o Asset retirement obligations 22 1,033.7 946.1 1,003.0
72154 Note 4:Revenue 8  Convertible bondloans 19,23 201.7 1887 1571
Consolidated Statements Note 5:Production expenses 89 Bondloan 19,23 169.1 166.9 164.9
Consolidated Statement Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Res_eera‘based lending facility 19,23 695.8 764.0 857.3 W
of Comprehensive Income Note 7: Personnel expenses % Derivative instruments 19 56.3 904 100.9 é"
; Other non-current liabilities 11 0.7 254 =
Consolidated Statement Note 8:Oth : 1 D
of Financial Position ote 8: Other operating expenses © — Q
R " - Total non-current liabilities 2,157.7 2156.8 2,308.6 o
Consolidated Statement ote Z:Intangible assets . 53]
of Changesin Equity Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Currentliabilities 8
Consolidated Statement et T E ey 2 el s %5 Reserve—.based Ien(jlng faC|I|ty 19,23 125.0 - - Q
of Cash Flows Note12-Imoa ; % Asset retirement obligations 22 15.4 9.8 26.2 —
ote 12: Impairments
Notes P Tax payable 14 140.0 209.0 16.0
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 ivative i
Statutory Accounts a Derivative instruments - 19 35.9 125.3 116.3 )
Note 14: Tax 97 Trade payables and other current liabilities 24 125.3 140.6 130.5 Q
Income Statement 6
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 iabiliti
Balance Sheet gsp Total current liabilities 441.6 4847 2891 g
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade T
Cash Flow receivablesand other current assets 102 Totalliabilities 2,599.3 26415 25977 a
Notes Note 17: Inventories 103 Total equity and liabilities 3,412.9 3,305.7 3,129.9 %
Independent Auditor’s Report Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand 8
Statement of Compliance cashequivalents 103 (1) The comparative informationis restated onaccount of correction of errors. See note 10 Restatement of borrowing cost. Q
Alternative Performance Measures Nt e AEeE TSRS o Oslo
Supplementary oil and gas information Note 20: Share capital 10 11 April 2024
(unaudited) Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 %1
Appendices Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 g
Information about BlueNord Note 23: Borrowings 14 0.
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18 Riulf Rystad . Tone Kristin Omsted Marianne Lie Colette Cohen -
Executive Chair Board member Board member Board member X
Note 25: Guarantees 19 %
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 2
. . . - - -~
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Robert J. McGuire Jan Lernout Peter Coleman Euan Shirlaw
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 Board member Board member Board member Chief Executive Officer
Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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Note 7: Personnel expenses 90
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91
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Note 12: Impairments 96
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97
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Share Treasury Currency Cashflow Other Total

Allfiguresin USD million Share capital premium fund sharereserve translationfund hedgereserve equity equity
2022
Equity on 01.01.2022 as previously reported 295 707.0 (0.5) 26 (67.5) (178.9) 4922
Impact of restatement 01.01.2022 (note 10) 40.0 40.0
Restated equity 01.01.2022 (138.9) 532.2
Net result for the period (30.5) (30.5)
Impact of restatement 2022 (note 10) 217 217
Other comprehensive income
Realised cash flow hedge - - - - 2247 - 2247
Related tax —realised cash flow hedge - - - - (151.2) - (151.2)
Changesin fair value cash flow hedges - - - - (40.4) - (40.4)
Related tax —changesin fair value

cashflow hedges - - - - 48.2 - 48.2
Currency translation adjustments - - - (2.0) - - (2.0)
Total other comprehensive income - - - (2.0) 814 - 79.3
Issue of shares 14 322 - - - - 336
Capital reduction, approved andregistered (29.3) 29.3 - - - -
Settlement derivatives/conversion bonds - - - - - 21.0 210
Share-based incentive program - - 0.3 - - 6.6 6.9
Total transactions with owners for

the period (27.8) 614 0.3 - - 276 616
Equity as of 31.12.2022 restated 17 768.4 (0.) 0.5 13.9 (120.1) 664.2
2023
Equity as of 01.01.2023 restated 1.7 768.4 (0.1) 0.5 13.9 (120.1) 664.2
Net result for the period 109.8 109.8
Other comprehensive income
Realised cash flow hedge - - - - (49.1) - (49.1)
Related tax —realised cash flow hedge - - - - 191 - 19.1
Changesin fair value cash flow hedges - - - - 107.8 - 107.8
Related tax —changes infair value

cashflow hedges - - - - (66.8) - (66.8)
Currency translation adjustments - - - 1.4 - - 1.4
Total other comprehensive income - - - 1.4 1.0 - 12.4
Issue of shares 0.0 14.5 - - - - 14.6
Settlement derivatives/conversion bonds" - - - - - 8.3 8.3
Share-based incentive program - - 0.0 - - 4.3 4.4
Total transactions with owners for

the period 0.0 14.5 0.0 - - 12.6 27.2
Equity as of 31.12.2023 1.7 782.9 (0.1) 2.0 24.9 2.2 813.6

(1) For furtherinformation see Borrowings note 22.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 USD million Note 2023 reségi(%
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Cash flows from operating activities
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Net result for the year 10 109.8 (8.8)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Adjustments foﬂ
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Income tax benefit/(expense) 110 133.7 s17.8
— Net financialitems 13,10 75.2 168.7
Note 2: Financial riskmanagement 84 Depreciation/impairment 1 102.6 1335
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Share-based payments expenses 5.2 14
NeladsREvaEnLE 88 Igtﬁresft receivled@ | 13 (9.6) (2.0)
- ther financial items pai 8.4 34
Note 5:Production expenses 8 Net gain on sale of assets 13 - 0.2)
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Changesin:
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 Tradereceivable 16 341 (7.8)
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 Trade payables 24 1n.5 (15.6)
- Inventories and spare parts 17 1.2 (4.5)
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 Prepayments © (0.6) 4.2)
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Over/under-lift 16 6.3 (7.7)
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Other current balance sheetitems® (0.6) 16
Note 12:Impairments 96 Cash flow from operating activities 479.7 5729
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses a7 Tax (paid)/received (229.8) (11.6)
Note 14: Tax o7 Net cash flow from operating activities 249.9 561.3
oS Earligpr i 102" cash flows frominvesting activities
Note 16: Non-currentreceivables, trade Long-termloan provided 16 (2.8) (0.8)
receivables and other current assets 102 Consideration sale of asset - 03
Note 17: Inventories 103 Deferred consideration (25.0) -
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand Investment in oiland gas assets (exclgding capitalised interest) 1 (311.0) (241.6)
cashequivalents 103 Investment in exploration and evaluation assets 9 (0.1) (2.4)
Nt i@ EreneE isimes 104 Payments for decommissioning of oiland gas fields 22 (8.7) (14.4)
Note 20: Share capital 110 Net cash flow frominvesting activities (347.6) (259.0)
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Cash flows from financing activities
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 graWdOV\m Icl)ng—term “I‘abkl)l‘llt'y 23 50.0 100 6)
. - epayment long-term liability 23 - :
Note 23: Borrowings 114 Lease payments (0.4) (0.4)
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 Sale of shares 0.2 54
Note 25: Guarantees 119 Interest and fees external loan (53.6) (61.6)
Note 26: Investmentsinjointly owned assets 120 Net cash flow from financing activities (3.9) (156.5)
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Net change in cash and cash equivalents (101.6) 145.8
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 268.4 122.6
Note 29: Subsequent events 121 Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 166.7 2684

77 BlueNord

(1) Thecomparative informationis restated onaccount of correction of errors. See note 10 Restatement of borrowing cost.

(2) Excludinginterestreceived from restricted bank accounts
(3) Mainly currency adjustments balance sheet items.
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78 BlueNord

Financial Report

Notes

1 Summary of material accounting policies
BlueNord ASA (‘BlueNord', the Company’ or ‘the Group’) is a public limited liability company registered in Norway, with headquarters in Oslo (Nedre Voligate 1,0158
Oslo). The Company has subsidiaries in Norway, Denmark, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom. The Company islisted on the Oslo Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April 2024 and will be presented for approval at the Annual General
Meetingon 14 May 2024.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
appliedto allthe years presented, unless otherwise stated. The Group also provides the disclosure requirements as specified under the Norwegian Accounting
Law (Regnskapsloven).

1.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of BlueNord ASA have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS® Accounting Standards, as endorsed by the EU. The
Group also provides information required in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and associated NGAAP standards.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS® Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

The subtotals and totals in some of the tables may not equal the sum of the amounts shown due to rounding.

1.1.1 Changesin material accounting policies and disclosures
No change in2023.

Amendments to standards
Standards and amendments to standardsissued are either not expected toimpact BlueNord’s consolidated financial statements materially, or are not expected
to be relevant to the consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

1.2 Consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as of 31 December 2023. Subsidiaries are all entities
over which the Group has control. Controlis achieved where the Group has the power over the subsidiary, has rights, or is exposed to variable returns fromthe
subsidiary and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All subsidiaries are 100 percent owned by the Group and there are no non-controlling interests.
There has not beenany change inthe Group’s structure and ownership in 2023 compared to 2022.
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79 BlueNord

Notes continued

1 Summary of material accounting policies continued
The Group had the following subsidiaries on 31 December 2023:

Financial Report

Country of

incorporation Ordinary shares Ordinary shares

andplace directly held heldby the
Name of business Nature of business by parent (%) Group (%)
BlueNord Denmark A/S Denmark Intermediate holding company 100%
BlueNord Energy Denmark A/S Denmark Exploration and production activity 100%
BlueNord Gas Denmark A/S Denmark Exploration and production activity 100%
BlueNord Energy 8/06 Denmark BV Netherlands Exploration and production activity 100%
BlueNord Pipeline Denmark Aps Denmark Infrastructure oiland gas 100%
BlueNord UK Ltd Great Britain Exploration activity 100% 100%
BlueNord Energy UK Ltd Great Britain Exploration activity 100%
Altinex AS Norway Intermediate holding company 100% 100%
BlueNord AS Norway Dormant Company 100% 100%

Joint arrangements

BlueNord hasinterestsinlicences on the Danish Continental Shelf. A joint arrangement is defined as an arrangement over which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint controlis the contractually agreed sharing of control which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities (being those that significantly

affect the returns of the arrangement) require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, a joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets

and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. BlueNord recognises investments in joint operations (oil and gas production licences) by reporting its

share of related revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows under the respective items in the company’s financial statements.

1.3 Segmentreporting

The whole Group is considered a single operating segment.
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Financial Report

Notes continued

1 Summary of material accounting policies continued
1.4 Foreign currency translation
a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included inthe financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars (USD’), which is the Group’s presentation currency and the
parent company and main operating companies' functional currency.

b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income statement as other financialincome or other financial expenses.

c) Group companies
Allcurrency translation adjustments are recognised in other comprehensive income (‘OCI’).

1.5 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment include the asset under construction (AUC’), production facilities, pipelines, machinery and equipment. ltems of property, plant and
equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

For property, plantand equipment where asset retirement obligations for decommissioning and dismantling are recognised as a liability, this value is added to
acquisition cost for the respective assets.

Direct and indirect expenditures related to the asset under construction are capitalised. The development phase commences when the licence partners have
decided field evaluation.

Production facilities are depreciated in accordance with the unit-of-production method ((UoP’) based on proven and probable reserves (the ratio between annual
production quantity and the reserves). If realisation of probable reserves demands further future investments, these are added to the basis of depreciation.

Acquired assets used for extraction and production of petroleum deposits, are depreciated using the UoP method based on proven and probable reserves.

Onshore assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life, according to the straight-line method: three to five years. Pipelines are depreciated to the expiry of
the licence, according to the straight-line method.

Depreciation methods, useful lives, residual values and reserves are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
1.6 Intangible assets
Licencerights

Licence rights acquiredinabusiness combination are measured oninitial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, licence rights are depreciated using the UoP
method based on proven and probable reserves.
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Financial Report

Notes continued

1 Summary of material accounting policies continued
1.7 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group has no goodwill, no intangible assets with indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use and is therefore not required to perform
impairment tests annually.

The Group’s judgement is that the smallest identifiable assets or group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets is the DUC assets as a total. The Group’s judgement is consequently that it has only one cash-generating unit (CGU).

If there is any indication that the CGU may be impaired, recoverable amount shall be estimated for the CGU, and compared to its carrying amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use.

Inestimating value in use, expected future cash flows are discounted to the net present value applying a discount rate after tax that reflects the current market
valuation of the time value of money and risks specific to the CGU. The discount rate is derived from a weighted average cost of capital (\WACC') for a market
participant. For the purpose of impairment testing the lifetime of the field is normally determined to be the time when the operating cash flows from the field
become negative.

As the Company’s shares are listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange, the market capitalisation is regarded as a good approximation of the fair value of the Group's
equity. The Group's judgement is that it can make a reliable estimate of the fair value of its equity and thereby the CGU, based on its market capitalisation. Adjusted
forany estimated differences between the carrying amounts and fair value of assets and liabilities not included in the CGU, the difference between its market
capitalisationand carrying amount of equity is a reliable estimate of the difference between the estimated fair value and the carrying amount of the CGU
("headroom”). Adjusted for cost of disposal, if this gives a positive headroom, the CGU is not impaired and it is not necessary to estimate value in use, should and
impairment test be required.

1.8 Financial instruments
The Group has financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and at amortised cost. See note 19 Financial instruments.2 for overview of the categories.

The Group has designated derivatives as cash flow hedging instruments, see note 1.10, with the change in fair value temporarily to other comprehensive income.

The convertible bondloan has been determined to contain embedded derivatives, which is accounted for separately as a derivative at fair value through profit or
loss, while the loan element is measured at amortised cost (note 3.1).

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawndown. Inthis case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawndown, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the facility to whichit relates. For hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes a non-derivative host contract that is not accounted for fair value though profit or loss (‘FVTPL) and an embedded derivative that is
accounted forat FVTPL such as the convertible bond, the Company has elected an accounting policy that all of the transaction costs are always allocated to and
deducted from the carrying amount of the non-derivative host contract oninitial recognition.

Further details on fair values of financial instruments are provided in note 19 Financial instruments.
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Financial Report

Notes continued

1 Summary of material accounting policies continued
1.9 Impairment of financial assets
The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating expected credit losses (ECLs') for trade receivables and contract assets. Therefore, the Group does not
track changesin credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

1.10 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward commodity contracts and options, to reduce the exposure to commodity price volatility on future
sale of oiland gas. The Group has elected to apply cash flow hedge accounting designating these derivatives. These derivative financial instruments are
subsequently re-measured at fair value and the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income
(‘OCI"), while any ineffective portionis recognised immediately in profit or loss (financialincome or financial expenses). The cash flow hedge reserve is adjusted to
the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item. The amount accumulated in OClis
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the same periods during which the hedged cash flows affect profit or loss. If cash flow hedge
accountingis discontinued, the amount that has been accumulated in OCI must remainin accumulated OCl if the hedged future cash flows are still expected to
occur. Otherwise, the amount will be immediately reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

1.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cashand cash equivalents include cash, bank deposits and short-term liquid placements, that immediately and with insignificant risk of changes in value can be
converted to known cash amounts and with a remaining maturity less than three months from the date of acquisition.

1.12 Over/under-lifting of hydrocarbons

Over/under-lifting occurs when the Group has lifted and sold more or less hydrocarbons from a producing field than what the Group is entitled to at the time of
lifting. Over-lifting of hydrocarbons is presented as other current liabilities, under-lifting of hydrocarbons is presented as other current assets. The value of
over-lifting is measured at production expenses and the value of under-lifting is measured at the lower of production expenses and the estimated sales value, less
estimated sales costs. Over-lifting and under-lifting of hydrocarbons are presented at gross value. Over/under-lift positions at the statement of financial position
date are expected to be settled within 12 months from the reporting date.

1.13 Borrowing costs

The Group capitalise borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of qualifying assets. The Group identifies qualifying assets as those that
necessarily takes 12 months or more to construct and get ready for its intended use. For the periods presented thisis only the Tyra development project.

The Group calculates an annual weighted average interest rate based on general borrowings and multiplies with the average carrying amount of assets under
construction. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation each year is limited to the actual interest expense before capitalisation less interestincome
and gains on extinguishment of bond loans. See also note 10 Reclassification of borrowing cost.

Other borrowing costs are included as financial expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.
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Financial Report

Notes continued

1 Summary of material accounting policies continued
1.14 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current tax, tax impact from refund of exploration expenses and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
excepttothe extent that it relates to items recognised in OCl or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in OCl or directly in equity, respectively.

The currentincome tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the
Company andits subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.

Producers of oiland gas on the Danish continental shelf are subject to the hydrocarbon tax regime under which income derived from the sale of oiland gasis taxed at an
elevated 64 percent. Any income deriving from other activities than first-time sales of hydrocarbons is taxed at the ordinary corporate income rate of currently 22 percent.
The 64 percentis calculated as the sum of the ‘Chapter 2’ tax of 25 percent plus a specific hydrocarbon tax (chapter 3A) of 52 percent, in which the 25 percent tax payable
is deductiblein the tax basis. When calculating the 52 percent tax, the Company is allowed to deduct an uplift (.., increased depreciation basis for tax purposes) of

30 percent of theinvestments in property, plant and equipment (PP&E’) over a period of 6 years. Through anagreement from 2017, licence holders onthe Danish
continental shelf have had the possibility of applying temporary new rules whereby the Company will have the possibility of increased uplift by 9 percentand accelerated
depreciation during the period from 2017 t0 2025. At the same time, an additional tax was introduced which will materialize from 2022 through 2037 if the oil price for the
year (indexed from 2017) exceeds USD 75.0. The accumulated additional tax in the years 2022 through 2037 can not exceed the benefit receivedin previous years related
totheincreased upliftand accelerated depreciation. The additional tax is accounted for in the year the oil price exceed the thresholds.

1.15 Pensions
The Group only has defined contribution plans as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
for the periods they relate to.

1.16 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options or shares) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options or sharesis
recognised as an expense with a corresponding amount recognised to equity. The totalamount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options or shares granted.

1.17 Assetretirement obligations

Provisions reflect the estimated cost of decommissioning and removal of wells and production facilities used for the production of hydrocarbons. Asset retirement
obligations are measured at net present value of the anticipated future cost (estimated based on current day costs inflated). The liability is calculated on the basis
of current removal requirements and is discounted to present value using a risk-free rate adjusted for credit margin. Liabilities are recognised when they arise and
are adjusted continually in accordance with changes in requirements, price levels etc. When a decommissioning liability is recognised or the estimate changes,
acorresponding amount is recorded to increase or decrease the related asset and is depreciated in line with the asset. Increase in the provision as aresult of the
time value of money is recognised in the income statement as a financial expense. If abandonment cost through agreements with partners have been limited to
agivenamount, this then forms the basis for the recognised liability. Payments for decommissioning of oiland gas fields are included ininvesting activities in the
cash flow statement, as the Group’s judgement is that the nature of this expenditure is payment for an item of property, plant and equipment.

1.18 Revenue recognition
Revenueisrecognised when the customer obtains control of the hydrocarbons, whichis ordinarily at the point of delivery (lifting and sales) when title passes (sales method).

See note 1.12 for a description of accounting for over/under-lifting of hydrocarbons in the statement of financial position.
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Notes continued

1 Summary of material accounting policies continued
1.19 Production expenses
Production expenses are expenses that are directly attached to production of hydrocarbons, e.g., expenses for operating and maintaining production facilities
and installations. Expenses mainly consist of man-hours, insurance, processing costs, environmental fees, transport costs etc.

1.20 Consolidated statement of cash flows
The consolidated statement of cash flows is prepared according to the indirect method. See note 1.1 for the definition of “Cash and cash equivalents’”.

Payments for decommissioning of oil and gas fields are included in investing activities, see note 117.

For payment of deferred consideration, the Group’s judgement is that amounts that relates to obtaining control in a business combination is included
ininvesting activities.

2 Financial risk management
2.1 Financialrisk factors
The Group’s activities exposeit to financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk, interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group uses RBL
facilities and bond loans to finance its operations in connection with the day-to-day business, financial instruments, such as bank deposits, trade receivables and
payables, and other current liabilities that arise directly from its operations, are utilised.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: foreign currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, trade
receivables, trade payables, accrued liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

(a) Foreigncurrency risk

The Groupis composed of businesses with various functional currencies including US dollars, euros, British pounds and Danish kroner. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk for series of payments in other currencies than the functional currency, mainly related to the ratio between Norwegian kroner and US dollars,
Danish kroner and US dollars, euros and US dollars and British pounds and US dollars. The Group's statement of financial position includes significant assets and
liabilities, which are recorded in other currencies than the Group's presentation currency. As such, the Group's equity is sensitive to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Seenote 16 Non-current receivables, trade receivables and other current receivables, note 18 Restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, note 19 Financial
instruments, note 22 Asset retirement obligations, note 23 Borrowings, note 24 Trade payables and other payables, and note 27 Contingencies and commitments. A
decrease inthe closing rate of Norwegian kroner, euros and Danish kroner with 10 percent compared to US dollars would have the following impact on financial
assets, financial liabilities and equity:

USDmillion NOK DKK EUR
Financial assets 0 52 3
Financial liabilities 0 8 ©)
Effect net result/equity 0 44 4

The Company considers the currency risk relating to the different financial instruments as low, as the main financial items held ina currency other than the
functional currency of the respective components is offset by positions in other components of the Group. With regards to trade receivables and payables, the
Company deems therisk to be immaterial.
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2 Financial risk management continued
(b) Pricerisk

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 ) } ) } ) ] ] )
- - - BlueNord produces and sells hydrocarbons in Denmark and is, as a result, exposed to changes in commodity prices. The Group has a material commodity price
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 R . . . . . o
Comsoidateds CachF] hedging programme in place that mitigates the risk of near-term price movements. As of 31 December 2023, BlueNord had commaodity derivatives measured at
onsolidate tatemem? aenrons T fairvalue. A change inthe value directly affects the Company’s OCl and recorded equity, and hence the Groupis exposed to the fair value development of these
Note1: Summary of material accounting policies 8 financial instruments. Assuming anincrease in the commaodity price on 31 December 2023 of 10 percent and assuming this change will have full effect onthe
Note 2: Financialrisk management 84 whole curve, the effect on the value of commodity derivatives would have the following impact:
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 USDmillion Equity ocl Netresult
Note: Revenue 88 Netbookvalue3112.23 9 9 0
Note 5:Production expenses 89 Commodity price +10% (22) (22) 0
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Commoadity price -10% 22 22 0
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 The effect on equity shownin the table would be equal to the change in value of the commaodity derivatives after tax. The change in value of hedging contracts
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 over time will be offset by the realised value of the contract when the hedge instrument matures, therefore the underlying value to BlueNord's business operations
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 9 is notimpacted by changesin the derivative value at any pointintime.
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 .
Note 12: Impairments 96 (C) Interest rate risk
— P — The Group has loans with fixed and floating interest rates. Loans with fixed interest rate expose the Group to risk (premium/discount) associated with changesin
Nt FMENE ElMEemeEne S Eenses s the market interest rate. At year-end, the Group has a total of USD 1.2 billion (2022: USD 1.1 billion) in interest-bearing debt (carrying amount), the principal amount
Note 14: Tax 97 was USD 1.3 billion. The Group's RBL facility has a floating interest rate comprising the aggregate of SOFR and 4.0 percent per annum, while the Group’s Bond
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 debt (NOR 13 and NOR 14) have a fixed interest rate exposure. The RBL facility is linked to the SOFR rate as set at the time of redetermination. A variance of +1
Note 16:Non-current receivables, trade percentinthe SOFR rate would resultin USD 9.0 million of interest charges to BlueNord per annum, however the Company has hedged this interest rate until
receivables and other currentassets 102 30 June 2024 at arate of 0.40 percent to cover any increase in SOFR rate. For further information about the Group’s interest-bearing debt, see note 23.
Note 17:Inventories 103
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand Allbank deposits (USD 380.7 million) are at floating interest rates. See note 18 Restricted cash, bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents for further information
cashequivalents 103 about bank deposits. The Group considers the risk exposure to changes in market interest to be at an acceptable level.
Note 19: Financial instruments 104
Note 20: Share capital 110 Liquidity risk
NGB A Best el e TR 12 The Group has certain fihancial commitments arising from it; operationsand othgr agreemehts erjtereq into Which are expected tp bg met by liquid ass_etg .
Y PRI s proceeds from external financing and cash flow from operations. The Group monitors its liquidity situation continuously to ensure it will be able to meet its financial
- 9 obligations as they fall due. As of 31 December 2023, USD 125.0 million of the reserve-based lending facility is to be paid within the next 12 months.
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 Credit risk
Note 25: Guarantees 119 The Group's most significant credit risk arises principally from recognised receivables related to the Group's operation. The credit risk arising from the production of
Note 26: Investmentsinjointly owned assets 120 oil, gas and Natural gas liquids (NGLS') is considered limited, as sales are to major oil companies with considerable financial resources. The counterparty in
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 derivatives are large international banks and insurance companies whose credit risk is considered low.
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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Notes continued

2 Financial risk management continued
2.2 Management of capital
The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concernin order to provide return for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an acceptable capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors the debt with the basis of cash flows, equity ratio and the gearing ratio. The Group’s debt restricts the payment of dividends until two quarters
after the completion of the Tyraredevelopment project: subsequent to this date, NOR14 limits dividend payments to 50 percent of the Group’s net profit after tax
for the previous year. See further information regarding borrowings and covenants in note 23.

2.3 Fair value estimation
The Group has certain financial instruments carried at fair value. The different fair value hierarchy levels have been defined as follows:

Level1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Thefair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available froman exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actualandregularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Groupis the current bid price.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly or indirectly.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where itis available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value aninstrument are observable, the instrumentis included in Level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument isincluded in Level 3. Specified valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves.

cashequivalents 103 The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the statement of financial position date, with the resulting

Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 value discounted back to present value.

Note 20: Share capital 110

N e e o e 2 Level 3: Inputs for other assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 . ) - . . .
InLevel 3, there is one financial instrument, the embedded derivatives in the convertible bond.

Note 23: Borrowings 14

Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18 Thefairvalue of the embedded derivatives is calculated based on the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. A change in the share price of +/-10 percent would

Note 25: Guarantees 119 have the following impact on the embedded derivates, net result and equity:

Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 Sensitivity Analysis

Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Share price (%) 10% -10%

NIt eH RIS ety B S e o 121 Embedded derivatives USD million (14) 13

Note 29: Subsequent events 121 Effect Net result/Equity USD million (14) 13
The embedded derivatives are injurisdictions where there are tax loss carried forward where no deferred tax assets are recognised. Therefore, itis concluded
that there is no tax effect of the changes in fair value. See note 19 for fair value hierarchy and further information.
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Notes continued

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
3.1 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
a) Accounting for convertible bond loan
The Group hasissued bonds with conversion rights and other embedded derivatives (but the conversion feature is the main element). The conversion feature has
been determined to constitute an embedded derivative and has been separated from the loan contract. The loan element has been recognised at amortised cost.
Atinitial recognition, the loan was measured as the residual amount of the proceeds from the bond issue, less issue costs, less the calculated fair value of the
conversion feature.

The convertible bond s either a financial liability (including certain embedded derivative features which may require separation) or acompound instrument

(i.e., suchaliability plus an equity conversion option). The Group has assessed that the holder’s conversion option does not involve receiving a fixed number of
shares by giving up a fixed stated principal amount of bond, hence the Group has assessed this instrument is not a compound instrument with an equity part.
Further multiple embedded derivatives have been identified in the host contract that have been assessed to not be readily separable and independent of each
other,and as such are treated as a single compound embedded derivative. The fair value measurement of the conversion feature using the Black-Scholes-Merton
valuation model requires significant judgement when selecting and applying the required assumptions.

3.2 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

a) Estimated value of financial assets and financial liabilities
The embedded derivatives in the convertible bond have been recognised separately at FV TPL. The value of this embedded derivative has been calculated using
the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model using assumptions for share price, volatility of share price, and other inputs which are subject to significant uncertainty.

For more details, see note 2.3 and 19 Financial Instruments.

b) Income tax

Allfigures reported in the statement of comprehensive income and the statement of financial position are based on the Group's tax calculations. Tax calculations
are based on management’s best assessment and interpretation of tax rules in place guided by industry tax practitioners. If it is expected that a sustainable tax
position may be challenged by the tax authorities due to uncertainty in law interpretation, a provision is made to account for such uncertainty. Tax authorities can
be of a different opinion than the Company. See also note 14.

c) Assetretirement obligation

Production of oiland gas is subject to statutory requirements relating to decommissioning and removal obligation once production has ceased. Provisions to
cover these future decommissioning and removal expenditures must be recognised at the time the statutory requirement arises. The costs will oftenincur
sometime in the future, and there is significant uncertainty attached to the scale and complexity of the decommissioning and removal involved. Estimated future
costs (estimated based on current costs inflated) are based on known decommissioning and removal technology, expected future price levels, and the expected
future decommissioning and removal date, discounted to net present value using a risk-free rate adjusted for credit margin. Changes in one or more of these
factors could resultin changes in the decommissioning and removal liabilities. See note 22 Asset retirement obligations for further details about decommissioning
and removal obligations.
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Notes continued

3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued
d) Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets
The Group has at 31 December 2023 not identified any impairment indicators. To substantiate that the additions to the carrying amount of its CGU due to
capitalisation of interest (see note 10 Reclassification of borrowing cost) did not give rise to impairment, the Group has relied onits market capitalisation to arrive
atan estimate of the headroom of the CGU. If the market capitalisation should decrease materially compared to the carrying amount of equity, this could become
animpairment indicator and animpairment test in such a scenario could give rise to impairment of the CGU.

If the Group should have to estimate the recoverable amount based on estimated future cash flows, it would have to make significant judgements which could lead
to significant estimation uncertainty. Estimation of future cash flows require long-term assumptions concerning a number of often volatile economic factors,

EZ:: :;:rz\:ulj:) nexpenses :z including future oiland gas prices, production, commercially depletable reserves, levels of capex and opex, currency exchange rates and discount rates.

Note & Exploration and evaluation expenses o0 Unit of Production depreciations are amended on a prospective basis following regular reserves estimation updates performed by the Group.

Note 7: Personnel expenses 90

Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 See also note 1.7 Impairment of non-financial assets and note 12 Impairments related to impairment reviews and note 11 Property, plant and equipment for

Note 9: Intangible assets 91 depreciation charges.

Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92

Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 4 Revenue

Note 12: Impairments 96 USD million 2023 2022

Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 Sale of oil 485.6 5521

Note 14: Tax 97 Sale of gasand NGL 306.0 408.4

Note 15: Earnings per share 102 Otherincome 3.5 64

Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade Total Revenue 795.0 966.9

receivables and other current assets 102 Oil - lifted volumes (mmbbl) 716 732

Note FInventories 1% Etfective oil price USD/bbl 67.8 755

Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand

cashequivalents 103 Gas - lifted volumes (mmboe) 2.20 2.25

Note19: Financialinstruments 104 Effective gas price EUR/MWh 75.7 101.9

Note 20: Share capital 110 Effective gas price USD/boe 139.1 1811

Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12

Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 In2023, sale of oilamounted to USD 485.6 million and sale of gas amounted to USD 306.0 million, realised prices were USD 67.8 per bbl of oiland USD 139.1 per

Note 23: Borrowings 14 boe gaslifted during the year, adjusted for settlement of price hedges in place with financial institutions.

Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118

N —— o During 2023, BlueNord .recognised .the settleme.nt of price h_edges that were pult ih place with financigl institut_ions inthe market as revenue, when the_se price

e B e 20 hedges match the physical salelof oilandgas. Pnce hedges inexcess of actual liftings are Treated as fmanc[al income or expenses based Qn the requm_ad
accounting treatment for these instruments during the period. For the year 2023, only a minor part of the price hedges exceeded the physical sale of oiland were

Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 recognised as financial cost.

Note 28: Related party transactions 121

Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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4 Revenue continued

Financial Report

Revenue per customer 2023 2022
Shell Trading International 75.8% T77%
Orsted Salg & Service AS 17.4% 32.6%
Natixis® 6.4% -8.0%
ShellEnergy Europe Limited 3.2% 16.2%
BNP Paribas 2.4% -4.2%
Macquarie Bank Europe 2.1% 0.0%
Crossbidge Energy A/S 0.2% 0.0%
Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets PLC® -2.2% -10.0%
SEB Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB® -2.3% -24%
CommonwealthBank! -3.0% -1.9%
Total Revenue 100.0% 100.0%
(1) Settlement of commodity hedges in place with financialinstitutions.

5 Production expenses
USDmillion 2023 2022
Direct field opex (243.8) (233.1)
Tariff and transportation expenses (34.9) (43.3)
Production general and administrative (17.3) (321
Field operating cost (295.9) (308.5)
Total produced volumes (mmboe) 9.1 9.8
InUSD/boe (32.5) (31.6)
Adjustments for:
Concept studies (6.2) (1.5)
Change ininventory position (6.7) 4.0
Over/under-lift of oiland NGL (6.3) 7
Insurance and other (21.9) (19.4)
Stock scrap (3.0) (5.6)
Production expenses (340.1) (323.4)

Production expenses for the year directly attributable to the lifting and transportation to market of BlueNord's oil and gas productionis in total USD 295.9 million,

which equates to USD 32.5 per boe produced during 2023 (2022: USD 31.6 per boe produced). Actual production expenses in 2023 were in line with the
expectation. To maintain high base production, activity on workovers and well work continued in 2023.
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Notes continued

6 Exploration and evaluation expenses

USD million 2023 2022
Other exploration and evaluation expenses (1.4) 07)
Total exploration and evaluation expenses (1.4) (07

7 Personnel expenses

Ny - USD million Note 2023 2022

Note 5:Production expenses 89 Salaries ) (10'3) (9.2)

Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 gggls?(ljsneggsrlttsy tax o (((1);; (gg;

Note7: Personnel expenses 90 Costsrelating to share-based payments (5.2) (1.4)

Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 Other personnel expenses (0.4) (0.4)

Note 9:Intangible assets 91 Total personnel expenses (18.0) (12.5)

Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Average number of employees 37.3 305

Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95

Note 12:Impairments % Long-term Performance Share Programme

Note 13: Financialincome andexpenses 97 In2022, an annual Long-term Performance Share Programme was implemented with effect from 1 January 2022, replacing the Share Option Programme as

Note 14: Tax 97 BlueNord's LTI plan for executives and employees. The programme applies to all permanent employees. More details on the Long-term performance share

Note 15: Earnings per share 102 programme see the Executive remuneration report for 2023.

Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade

receivables and other current assets 102 Key management personnel compensation

Note 17:Inventories 103 Key management personnel compensation comprises the following:

Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand USD1000 2023 2022

cashequivalents 103

Note 19-Finandial instruments 04 Short-term employee beﬂefits 2,239 1,898
Post-employment benefits 98 70

No e e el U Share-based payments 787 5,303

i Pos TR TS ST 12 Total remuneration to key management 3,124 7,271

Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12

Note 23: Borrowings 14 ) . ) . . .

Note 24 Tradepayables andoiher payabies o Please see the Executive Remuneration Report 2023 for compensation to key management and Board of Directors in the period 2019-2023.

Note 25: Guarantees 19

Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120

Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions 121

Note 29: Subsequent events 121

90 BlueNord Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 8 Other operating expenses
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 USD million 2023 2022
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Consultant fees (9.4) (15.3)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Other operating expenses (4.7) (3.8)
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Total other operating expenses (14.1) (19.)
Note 2: Financial risk management 84
= - - - USD 1000, excl. VAT 2023 2022
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 -
Now R . Auditor's fees (580.0) (625.8)
otes:hevenue Other assurance service (6.9) -
Note 5:Production expenses 89 Other service (86.1) (84.6)
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Total audit fees (673.0) (710.4)
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 9 Intangible assets
Note 9:Intangible assets 91 Intangible assets at 31 December 2023
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Capitalised
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 exploration Conceptual
USD million expenditures studies Licence Total
Note 12: Impairments 96
- — Book value 31.12.22 1.8 1.9 156.6 160.4
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 —
A - Acquisition costs 31.12.22 1.8 19 186.0 189.8
oleT®: Tax Additions 0.1 - - 0.1
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 Reclassified to operating expenses - (1.9) - (1.9)
NotelioNonseurrentreceivablesitrade Acquisition costs 31.12.23 1.9 - 186.0 187.9
receivables and other current assets 102
Y —— P Accumulated depreciation, amortisation and write-downs 31.12.22 - - (29.4) (29.4)
: Depreciation/amortisation - - (6.9) (6.9)
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand T N . N
cash equivalents 103 Accumulated depreciation, amortisation and write-downs 31.12.23 - - (36.3) (36.3)
Note 19: Financial instruments 104 Book value 31.12.23 1.9 - 149.7 151.6
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Intangible assets at 31 December 2022
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 Capitalised
Note 23: Borrowings 14 . exploration Conceptual ‘
USD million expenditures studies Licence Total
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18
s pey Book value 31.12.21 14 - 1647 166.0
Note 25: Guarantees 119 .
Acquisition costs 31.12.21 14 - 186.0 1874
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 Additions 05 19 _ 24
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Acquisition costs 31.12.22 18 19 186.0 189.8
Note 28: Relat ty t i 121 - .- N
ote 28: Related party transactions Accumulated depreciation and write-downs 31.12.21 - - (21.3) (21.3)
Note 29: Subsequent events 121 Depreciation/amortisation - - (8.0 (8.0
Accumulated depreciation and write-downs 31.12.22 - - (29.4) (29.4)
Book value 31.12.22 1.8 19 156.6 160.4

91 BlueNord
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Financial Report

Notes continued

10 Restatement of borrowing cost
In preparing the financial statements for 2023, the Group discovered that it had not capitalised borrowing costs on qualifying assets under construction.
This relates to the Tyra redevelopment project. The project had started already when the Group acquired Shell's Danish upstream Assets medio 2019. The Group
has not borrowed funds specifically for the purpose of the development project. The Group did not identify that it should have capitalised borrowing costs based
onits general borrowings.

The Group identifies qualifying assets as those that takes over 12 months to get ready for its intended use. For the periods presented this is only the Tyra
redevelopment project. The Group calculates a weighted average interest rate per year based on outstanding borrowings (the bond loans and the RBL). It uses
the effective interest rates in these calculations. The interest rates used for capitalisation have been:

Note 4: Revenue 88

Note 5:Productionexpenses 89 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 74% 8.6% 81% 8.5% 8.4%

Note 7: Personnel expenses 90

Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 The average carrying amount of assets under construction each year have been multiplied by these interest rates to arrive at the borrowing costs that could be
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 capitalised. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation has been calculated as the actual interest expense before capitalisation less interestincome
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 9 and gains on extinguishment of bondloans. Tyra ll started production 21 March 2024 hence the qualifying assets were ready for its intended use early 2024,
e B e o o consequently itis not expected any capitalisation of borrowing costs going forward.

Note 12:Impairments % Based onthis, the Group has calculated the amounts of borrowing costs to be capitalised each year in USD million:

Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97

Note 14: Tax 97 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Note 15: Earnings per share 102 124 402 58.5 60.3 78.0

Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade

receivables and other currentassets 102 The capitalised amounts have increased the carrying amounts of the Group’s assets.

Note 17:Inventories 103

Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand The errors have been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for prior periods. The following tables summaries the impacts on
cashequivalents 103 the Group’s consolidated financial statement.

Note 19: Financial instruments 104

Note 20: Share capital 110

Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12

Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12

Note 23: Borrowings 14

Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118

Note 25: Guarantees 19

Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120

Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions 121

Note 29: Subsequent events 121

92 BlueNord Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Notes continued

10 Restatement of borrowing cost continued
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income:

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 USD million Note 2022 Ad. 2022 restated
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7 Operating result before depreciation, amortisation and impairment (‘EBITDA’) 611.2 - 61.2
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 8 Depreciation/amortisation/impairment f1 (133.5) (133.5)
Note 2: Financialrisk management 84 Net operating result (‘EBIT’) a4777 - 4777
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 F?nanc?al income 13 61.3 - 61.3
Note 4. Revanle = F|nan_C|a| expenses 13 (290.3) 60.3 (230.0)
: Net financial items (229.0) 60.3 (168.7)
Note 8:Production expenses 8 Resultbefore tax (‘EBT’) 2487 60.3 309.0
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Income tax beneﬂt/(expense) 14 (279.2) (38.6) (317.8)
Notei7:Personnel expenses 90 Netresult for the year" (30.5) 217 (8.8)
N :Oth i 1 K K
ote8: Other operating expenses ° Basic earnings/loss USD per share 15 (1.2) (0.4)
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 - -
- Diluted earnings/loss USD per share 15 (1.2) (0.4)
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92
- (1) 100 percent attributable to equity holders of the parent company
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95
i 2 limgelieits Eo Consolidated Statement of Financial position:
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97
Year ended 31.12.2022 As previously
Note 14: Tax 97 USD million Note reported Adjustments Asrestated
Note 16: Earnings per share 102 Non-current assets
Note 16: Non-currentreceivables, trade Intangible assets 9 160.4 - 160.4
receivables and other current assets 102 Deferred tax assets 1“4 348.8 (109.7) 2391
Note 17: Inventories 103 Property, plantand equipment 1 1,911.9 1714 2,083.3
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand Right _Of Useasset . 09 - 0.9
cashequivalents 103 Restricted bank deposits 18,19 203.7 - 203.7
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 Receivables non-current 16 0.8 - 0.8
Note 20: Share capital 10 Derivative instruments 19 337 - 337
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Total non-current assets 2,6601 617 2,721.8
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 Total current assets 583.9 - 583.9
Note 23: Borrowings 114 Total assets 3,244.0 617 3,3057
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 Equity
Note 25: Guarantees 19 Share capital 20 17 - 17
Note 26: Investmentsin jointly owned assets 120 Other equity 600.8 617 662.5
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Total equity 6025 617 064.2
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 Total liabilities 26415 _ 26415
Note 28: Subsequent events 21 Total equity and liabilities 32440 617 33057
93 BlueNord Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Notes continued

10 Restatement of borrowing cost continued

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 01.01.2022 As previously

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 USD million Note reported Adjustments Asrestated

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7 Non-currentassets

Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Intangible assets 9 166.0 B 166.0
Deferred tax assets 14 526.3 (71.1) 4552

Note 2: Financialrisk management 84 Property, plant and equipment 11 1,8987 1111 2,009.8

Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Right of Use asset 07 — 07

Note 4: Revenue 88 Restricted bank deposits 18,19 205.5 - 2055

Note 5:Production expenses 89 Rec_eivgbl_es non-current 16 _ - B

Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Derivative instruments 19 97 - 97

SN —— N — % Total non-current assets 2,806.9 40.0 2,846.9

Note 8: Other operating expenses 9 Total current assets 283.0 - 283.0

Note 9: Intangible assets 91 Total assets 3,089.9 40.0 3129.9

Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Equity

Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Share capital 20 295 - 295

T —_— % Other equity 4627 40.0 5027

Note 13: Financialincome and expenses a7 Total equity 4922 400 5322

Note 14: Tax 97 Total liabilities 25977 - 25977

Note 15: Earnings per share 102 Total equity and liabilities 3,089.9 40.0 3,129.9

Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade

receivables and other current assets 102

RS o Thereisnoimpact onthe net cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand

cashequivalents 103

Note 19: Financialinstruments 104

Note 20: Share capital 110

Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12

Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12

Note 23: Borrowings 14

Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118

Note 25: Guarantees 19

Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120

Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions 121

Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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Notes continued

11 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2023

Financial Report

Assetunder Production
USD miillion construction® facilities Otherassets Total
Book value 31.12.22 restated 1,222.3 859.6 14 2,083.3
Acquisition costs 31.12.22 restated 1,222.3 1,252.5 341 2,477.9
Sale of assets - - (0.0) (0.0)
Additions® 322.7 65.9 0.4 388.9
Reclassification from AUC to production facilities (122.2) 122.2 - -
Reclassification from capex to opex - 1.5 - 1.5
Revaluation abandonment assets - 49.4 - 49.4
Disposals - - (0.3) (0.3)
Currency translation adjustment - 01 0.0 0.1
Acquisition costs 31.12.23 1,422.8 1,491.5 3.1 2,917.4
Depreciation and write-downs 31.12.22 - (392.9) (1.7) (394.6)
Sale of asset, reversal depreciation - - 0.0 0.0
Depreciation - (94.9) (0.2) (95.1)
Disposals - - 0.2 0.2
Currency translation adjustment - (0.0) (0.0) (0.0)
Depreciation and write-downs 31.12.23 - (487.9) 1.7) (489.5)
Book value 31.12.23 1,422.8 1,003.7 1.4 2,427.9
(1)  Thecomparative informationis restated on account of correction of errors. See note 10 Restatement of borrowing cost.
(2) Mainly related to Tyraredevelopment.
(3) Includes capitalisation of borrowing cost, se note 13.
Property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2022

Assetunder Production

USD million construction facilities Otherassets Total
Book value 31.12.21 as previously reported 818.5 1,078.5 17 1,898.7
Impact of restatement 01.01.2022 111 - - 1111
Book value 01.01.2022 restated 929.6 - - 2,009.8
Acquisition costs 01.01.2022 restated 929.6 1,346.6 31 22794
Sale of assets - (0.2 0.2) (0.4)
Additions 2927 91 0.2 3019
Revaluation abandonment asset - (102.8) - (102.8)
Currency translation adjustment - 01 ((oN)) (0.2)
Acquisition costs 31.12.22 restated 1,222.3 1,252.5 31 24779
Accumulated depreciation and write-downs 01.01.2022 - (268.2) (1.4) (269.6)
Sale of asset, reversal depreciation - 01 - 01
Depreciation - (124.8) (0.3) (125)
Currency translation adjustment - 0.0 0.0 0.0
Accumulated depreciation and write-downs 31.12.22 - (392.9) (17) (394.6)
Book value 31.12.22 restated 1,222.3 859.6 14 2,083.3
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96 BlueNord

Financial Report

Notes continued

12 Impairments
Impairment reviews
See note 1.7 for the accounting policies related to impairment of non-financial assets.

The Group'sjudgement is that it has only one cash-generating unit (CGU). The Group has not identified any impairment triggers in 2023 or 2022. It is consequently
not required to perform any impairment tests.

Inits annual financial statements for 2022 the Group disclosed that it had made an estimate of value in use of its CGU. This amount was materially lower than an
estimate of fair value less cost of disposal based on market capitalisation. In 2023, the Group has corrected an error, see note 10, and capitalised accumulated
borrowing costs on assets under construction. The estimated value in use would not exceed the carrying amount including capitalised borrowing costs.

However, the market capitalisation which can be used to reliably estimate the fair value of the CGU shows a good headroom also including capitalised borrowing
costs on 31 December 2023 and 2022. Market capitalisation was USD 1,281.6 million and USD 1,028.9 million on 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively,
based on US dollar and Norwegian kroner rates at these points intime. Carrying amount of equity, after capitalisation of borrowing costs, was USD 813.6 million
and USD 664.2 million on 31 December 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Group also notes that IAS 36.23 states that estimates and computational short cuts may provide reasonable approximations of the detailed computations for
determining fair value less costs of disposal.

Consequently, the Group has not recognised any impairmentsin 2022 or 2023. It also do not present any sensitivity analysis. If the market capitalisation should

decrease materially compared to the carrying amount of equity, this could become animpairment indictor and animpairment test in such a scenario could give
rise toimpairment of the CGU.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 13 Financialincome and expenses
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Financialincome
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 USD million 2023 2022
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7 Total interestincome 17.8 4.0
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78
Note 2: Financialrisk management 84 Value adjustment interest swap unrealised"” - 12.7
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 VOlgme.prOtecnon true-up 0.6 -
72-154 Note 4: Revenue 68 Extujgwshment of bo_nd loans 1.0 337
: Foreign exchange gains 3.7 1.0
Consolidated Statements Note 5:Production expenses 89 . —
: ; ; Total other financialincome 5.3 57.3
Consolidated Statement Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 w
. —
ofiComprehensivelncome Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 B
Consolidated Statement ) 2 Financial expenses @
of Financial Position Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 Q.
n Note 9: Intangible assets 91 2022 o
Consolidated Statement _ USDmillon 2023 restated” o]
of Changesin Equity Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 8
Consolidated Statement Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Interest expense frombond Ioan% (44.9) (46.5) Q
of Cash Flows , Interest expense from bank debt (51.9) (51.4) =
Notes Note12:Impairments %  Lesscapitalised borrowing cost® 78.0 60.3
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 .
Statutory Accounts P Totalinterest expenses (18.9) (37.6) (@)
Note 14: Tax 97 ©]
Income Statement 6
Note 15: Earnin h 102 . . .
Balance Sheet ote15: Eamings per share 0 Value adjustment interest swap unrealised" (0.7) - g
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade i ivati ()
Cash Flow receivables and other current assets 102 Vglge a.dJ UStmer.]t Of. embedded derivatives (14.1) (182.3) 8
Notes . Utilisation of derivatives (04) - o}
_ Motz nserinies lo# Accretion expense related to asset retirement obligations (49.3) (48.0) T
Independent Auditor’s Report Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cash and Foreign exchange losses (12.3) (8.5) 8
Statement of Compliance CE e I Lo Other financial expenses (3.0) (3.4) o
N Note 19: Financial instruments 104 N N -
Alternative Performance Measures o205 o o Total other financial expenses (79.5) (192.3)
Supplementary oil and gas information DAY SIS - . s
(unaudited) Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12 Net financial items (75.2) (168.7) %1
Appendices ! i igati Q
idi - MO CEEE MO LS 12 (1) Fairvalueadjustment of the ineffective part of the interest swap related to RBL facility =
Information about BlueNord Note 23: Borrowings 14 (2) Netofthe effective part of the realised interest swap, related to RBL facility 0,
Neie2sTieceraasendoiaimeiles 18 (8) Thecomparative informationis restated onaccount of correction of errors. See note 10 Restatement of borrowing cost &
: pay pay (4) Fairvalue adjustment of the embedded derivatives of the convertible bonds o
Note 25: Guarantees 19 %
Note 26: Investmentsinjointly owned assets 120 14 Tax 2
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Taxrates ~
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Note 28: Related party transactions 121 Producers of oiland gas on the Danish continental shelf are subject to the hydrocarbon tax regime under which income derived from the sale of oiland gas is taxed at
anelevated 64 percent. Any income deriving from other activities than first-time sales of hydrocarbons is taxed at the ordinary corporate income rate of currently

22 percent. The 64 percentis calculated as the sum of the ‘Chapter 2’ tax of 25 percent plus a specific hydrocarbon tax (chapter 3A) of 52 percent,in which the

25 percent tax payable is deductible. Income generated in Norway and United Kingdom is subject to regular corporate tax at 22 percent.

Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 14 Tax continued
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Tax expense
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 USD million 2022
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Income taxin profit/loss (Danish corporate income tax and hydrocarbon tax) 2023 restated’
Nofo 1.5 F— 7 e - Income tax current year (63.3) (139.9)
ote I summary of materialaccounting policies Solidarity contribution, current® (72.2) -
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 Repayment of tax benefit related to chapter 3b - (627)
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Income tax for prior years (10.1) (20)
72-154 Note 4: Revenue 88 Currentincome tax (145.5) (204.6)
Consolidated Statements Note 5:Production expenses 89 Deferred tax movements _ (65.8) (65.9)
Consolidated Statement Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Defeerd tax m9veme“t5' m pacmt) of restatement 2022 (38.6) w
of Comprehensive Income P | Solidarity contribution, deferred 70.5 - =
- ote frersonnelexpenses &Y Prior year adjustment, deferred tax 74 (8.6) L
Con_solld_ated St_a_tement Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 @
of Financial Position Deferred tax expense 1.8 (131) %
. Note 9: Intangible assets 91 -
Consolidated Statement 9 Tax (expense)/income (133.7) (317.8) T
of Changesin Equity Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 8
gfo g:;)rl‘itli:?;svdsStatement Note 11: Property, Plantand Equipment 95 (1) Thecurrenttaxaccrualincludes 33 percent ‘solidarity contribution’, the EU-regulated temporary tax to be levied on fossil fuel companiesin 2023 in Denmark. As this contribution may be offset against hydrocarbon tax, the Q
Note 12:Impairments 96 chargedoesnotlead toanincreasein the overall tax percentage applied. -
Notes
-_————————————————————————— Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 ) . . . , o . ) . ) . .
Statutory Accounts N— o Income tax in profit/loss is solely derived from the Group's activities on the Danish continental shelf, of which the major partis subject to the elevated 64 percent g)
S ote 14: Tax
Income Statement hydrocarbontax. 5
- Note 15: Earnings per share 102 &
Balance Sheet ) Tax (expense)/income related to OCI 2023 2022 2
— Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade %
Cash Flow receivables and other current assets 102 Cashflow hedges (47.7) (102.9) Q
. - CD
Hotes Note 17:Inventories 103 Tax (expense)/income related to OCI (47.7) (102.9) e
Independent Auditor’s Report Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand 8
Statement of Compliance casheqlivalents 103 . - . . A : . . o
R e~ Income tax on OClis related to the derivatives designated in cash flow hedges. To the extent derivatives are associated with the sale of oiland gas, result from cash 3
Alternative Performance Measures : : flow hedgesis subject to 64 percent hydrocarbon tax.
Supplementary oil and gas information Note 20: Share capital 10 . o
(unaudited) Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12 Hydrocarbon tax 64% Corporate tax 22% |
. Reconciliation of nominal to actual tax rate 2023 2023 Intotal =]
Appendices Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 [}
e ) : Result before tax 237.2 6.3 243.6 g
- @0 e e Expected tax on profit before tax 151.8 64% 14 22% 153.2 5
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18 Tax effect of: 5
Note 25: Guarantees 19 Prior year adjustment ‘ ‘ ‘ 4.2 2% (1.3) -20% 2.9 )
Note 26: Investments ot Jasset 20 FX adjustment of net operating losses carried forward in DKK® (24.6) -10% - 0% (24.6) 'g
e e el O TE e Investment uplift on CAPEX projects® (42.6) 18% - 0% (42.6) 5
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Permanent differences® 37.9 16% 3.0 48% 40.9
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 No recognition of tax assets in Norway and UK - 0% 3.8 61% 3.8
Note 29: Subsequent events 121 Tax expense (income) in profit/loss 126.8 53% 70 10% 133.7

(1) Impact of changesin USD/DKK exchange rate onloss carried forward as the tax losses are carried forward in DKK.
(2) Thetaxcostinthe hydrocarbon tax regimeis positively impacted by the 39 percent investment uplift on the Tyra Redevelopment project.
(3) Thisisrelatedto the portion of interest cost not deductible under the Danish interest limitation rules.
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14 Tax continued
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Hydrocarbontax 64% Corporatetax22%

Reconciliation of nominal to actual tax rate, continues 2022restated” 2022 Intotal
Result before tax 4244 (115.4) 309.0
Expected tax on profit before tax 271.6 64% (25.4) 22% 246.2
Tax effect of:

Prior year adjustment 9.6 2% 0.2 0% 9.8
FXadjustment of net operating losses carried forward in DKK® 37.3 9% - 0% 37.3
Repayment of tax benefit related to chapter 3b® 301 7% - 0% 301
Investment uplift on CAPEX projects® (36.8) -9% - 0% (36.8)
Permanent differences - 0% 291 -25% 291
No recognition of tax assetsin Norway and UK - 0% 20 2% 20
Tax expense (income) in profit/loss 31.8 73% 6.0 5% 317.8

(1) Impact of changesin USD/DKK exchange rate onloss carried forward as the tax losses are carried forward in DKK.

(2) From2022andonwards,anadditional tax cost related to the special tax incentive scheme (chapter 3b) is levied if commaodity prices exceed certain thresholds. This taxis payable onnet proceeds from sales (incl. hedging
results), less costs and fiscal depreciation and constitutes a repayment of the benefit previously achieved. The additional tax levied cannot exceed the accumulated tax benefit achieved from the special tax incentive rules
during the development period. The received benefit is estimated at USD 92 million by year end 2023. For 2023 the estimated additional tax s nil (2022:USD 30.1 million)

(8) Thecostinthe hydrocarbontax regimeis positively impacted by the 39 percentinvestment uplift on the Tyra Redevelopment project.

Hydrocarbon tax 64% Corporate tax 22%

2023 2023 Intotal
OClbefore tax 82.8 - (22.7) - 60.1
Expected tax on OCl before tax (53.0) 64% 5.0 22% (48.0)
Tax effect of:
Non-taxable currency translation adjustment - - 0.3 - 0.3
Taxin OCI (53.0) 64% 5.3 22% (47.7)

Hydrocarbon tax 64% Corporate tax 22%

2022 2022 Intotal
OCl before tax 148.5 - 337 - 182.3
Expected tax on OCl before tax (95.) 64% (7.4) 22% (102.5)
Tax effect of:
Non-taxable currency translation adjustment - - 04 - 04
TaxinOCI (95.) 64% (7.9) 22% (102.9)
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14 Tax continued

Financial Report

Currentincome tax payable 2023 2022

Tax payable relates to the Group's entities in Denmark. The amounts payable as of 31.12.23 were:

Corporate tax for 22% (Denmark) (4.6) (13.9)
Hydrocarbon tax (Denmark) (73.7) (126.3)
Hydrocarbon tax for prior years (Denmark) (12.9) (12.7

Hydrocarbon tax pertaining to pre-acquisition period 2019 not indemnified by the Seller - (10.2)
Solidarity contribution (48.8) -

Repayment of tax benefit related to chapter 3b - (45.9)
Tax payables (140.0) (209.0)

Currentincome taxes for current and prior periods are measured at the amount that is expected to be paid to or be refunded from the tax authorities, as at the
balance sheet date. Due to the complexity in the legislative framework and the limited amount of guidance from relevant case law, the measurement of taxable
profits within the oiland gas industry is associated with some degree of uncertainty. Uncertain tax liabilities are recognised with the probable value if their
probability is more likely than not. Tax payable of USD 140.0 million, which includes USD 131.0 million actual cash payable to be paid in 2024 and

USD 9.0 millionin provision for uncertain tax positions.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is measured at the amount that is expected to result in taxes due to temporary differences and the value of tax losses.

Therecognised deferred tax asset is allocated to the following balance sheet items, all pertaining to the Group's activities on the Danish continental shelf:

Effect Effect
USD million 01.01.23 recognised recognised
Deferred tax and deferred tax asset restated* inprofit/loss inOCI 31.12.2023
Property, plant and equipment 745.9 67.0 - 812.8
Intangible assets, licences 25.1 4.3 - 29.4
Inventories and receivables 29.3 4.6 - 33.8
Asset retirement obligation (ARO’) provision (564.5) (59.5) - (623.9)
Other assets and liabilities (2.8) (0.1) - (2.9)
Taxloss carryforward, corporate tax (22%) - - - -
Tax loss carryforward, chapter 2 tax (25%) (0.1) 0.1 - -
Tax loss carryforward, chapter 3a tax (52%) (471.9) (28.1) 32.3 (467.7)
Deferred tax asset, net (239.1) (11.7) 32.3 (218.5)
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14 Tax continued

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Effect Effect

. . . USD million 01.01.22 recognised recognised 3112.2022
Gonsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 7® Deferredtax and deferred tax asset restated* inprofit/loss inOCI restated
Consolidated Stat tof Cash Fl 77 .

onsolcatedstaremen O s OWS — Property, plantand equipment 624.0 1241 - 6361
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 8 Property, plant and equipment, impact of restatement 2022 711 386 - 109.7
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 Intangible assets, licences 17.2 79 - 251
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Inventories and rece.iVablleS . 26.7 26 - 293
Note 2 Revento 88 Asset retirement o_bhgla-hon (ARQ’) provision (611.1) 467 - (564.5)
: Other assets and liabilities - (2.8) - (2.8)
M DeFeel Bl s e Tax loss carryforward, corporate tax (22%) (2.0) 01 19 -
Note 6: Explorationand evaluation expenses 90 Taxloss carryforward, chapter 2 tax (25%) (22.8) (14.4) 371 ((oX))
Note 7:Personnel expenses 90 Tax loss carryforward, chapter 3atax (52%) (558.3) 285 579 (471.9)
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 Deferred tax asset, net (455.2) 119.2 96.9 (239.1)
Note 9: Intangible assets 91
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Tax loss carryforwards
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Taxlosses are recognised in accordance with the expected utilisation hereof in subsequent income years based on the current business outlook and
Note 12: Impairments 96 economic projections.
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 o o ) o o
—— - Due to the limited taxable activity in UK and Norway, corporate tax losses in these jurisdictions are not capitalised.
Note 16:Earnings per share 102 Taxlossesin Denmark and UK under the hydrocarbon tax regime may be carried forward indefinitely and the utilisation is not subject to an annual cap. Losses are
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade carried forward in Danish kroner and British pound.
receivables and other current assets 102
Note 17: Inventories 103 Taxlosses carried forward, Denmark. In million DKK 2023 2022
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand Corporate tax (22%) - _
cashequivalents 103 Chapter 2 Hydrocarbon tax (25%) - -
ote 19: Financialinstruments 104 apter 3a Hydrocarbon tax o y . 7783.
Note 19: Financiali 0 Chapter 3aHyd bon tax (52%) 5,523.2 5,773.0
Note 20: Share capital 110
- Taxlosses carried forward, Norway. In million NOK 2023 2022
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12
0,
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 Corporate tax Norway (22%) 1,204.2 10710
Note 23: Borrowings T4 Tax losses carried forward, UK. Inmillion GPB/USD 2023 2022
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Py pay Tradelosses, UK (hydrocarbon s 330 (2)), USD 78.0 75.0

Note 26: Guarantees 9 Tradelosses, UK (hydrocarbon), USD 10041 96.0
Note 26:Investmentsinjointly owned assets 120 Pre-trading capital expenditure, UK (hydrocarbon), GBP 41.6 410
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions

121

Note 29: Subsequent events

121

101 BlueNord

*The comparative informationis restated on account of correction of errors. See note 10 Restatement of borrowing cost.
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Notes continued

15 Earnings per share

Financial Report

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent company by the weighted average number of ordinary

sharesinissue during the year.

2022
USD million 2023 restated”
Profit (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders from operations 109.8 (8.8)
Adjustment amortisation convertible bond loans 26.9 28.8
Adjustment fair value embedded derivatives 141 132.3
Profit (loss) basis for fully diluted shareholders from operations 178.9 174.0
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 25,571,262 24.110,852
Conversion part of convertible bond 497,425 1,159,411
Sale of treasury shares 36,641 300,999
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 26,105,328 25,571,262
Weighted average number of shares (basic) 26,043,859 25,004,296
Adjustment convertible bondloan® 4,809,743 5,822,649
Adjustment option schemes 378,869 391,868
Weighted average number of shares (diluted) 31,232,471 31,218,813
Earnings per shareinUSD 4.2 (0.4)
Earnings per share in USD diluted 4.2 (0.4)

(1) Thecomparative informationis restated on account of correction of error. See note 10 Reclassification of borrowing cost.

(2) The BNORT15 convertible bondloanis converted to number of shares by dividing the principalamount at year end (USD 228.4 million, 2022: USD 207.6 million) with the conversion price (47.5 USD/share, 2022: 38.8

USD/share) as thisis less favourable. The conversion price is 99 percent of the volume-weighted average price ('VWAP’) for the last 20 days (483.1NOK/share, 2022: 382.9 NOK/share) converted to USD by using the

closing rate at year end (10.17 NOK/USD, 2022: 9.86 NOK/USD).

In2022, the BNOR13 convertible bond loan was converted to number of shares by dividing the principal amount at year end (USD 13.8 million) with the strike price (28.97 USD share) as this was less favourable.

16 Non-current receivables, trade receivables and other current assets

USDmillion 2023 2022
Non-currentassets

Convertible loan CarbonCuts 11 0.2
Loan CarbonCuts 2.6 0.6
Total non-currentreceivables 3.7 0.8
Current assets

Tradereceivables 59.9 94.4
Under-lift of oil/NGL 2.6 8.9
Prepayments 24.8 24.2
Otherreceivables 1.4 11
Total trade receivables and other current receivables 88.7 128.6
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16 Non-current receivables, trade receivables and other current assets continued

Aging analysis of trade receivables on 31 December 2023

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Pastdue

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 USD miillion Total Notpastdue >30days 30-60days 61-90 days 91-120 days >120days
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Tradereceivables 59.9 59.9 - - - - -
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 Total 59.9 59.9 - - - - -
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87

Note 4: Revenue 88 Aging analysis of trade receivables on 31 December 2022

Note 5:Production expenses 89 Past due

Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 USDmillion Total Not past due >30days 30-60days 61-90days 91-120days >120days
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 Tradereceivables 94.4 94.4 — - - - -
Note 8: Other operating expenses o1 Total 94.4 94.4 _ _ _ _ _
Note 9: Intangible assets 91

Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 17 Inventories

Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95

Note12:Impairments o= USD million 2023 2022
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 Product inventory, oll 15.0 216
oot Tox = Other stock (spares and consumables)™ 39.7 343
Note-5:Earmings per share o Total inventories 54.7 559
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade

receivables and other current assets 102 (1) Asof31.12.2023 thereis no provision for obsolete stock.

Note 17:Inventories 103

Note18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand 18 Restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents

casheqlivalents 103 USD milion 2023 2022
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 Non-current assets

Note20: Share capital iite Restricted bank deposits pledged as security for abandonment obligation related to Nini/Cecilie 64.3 611
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Restricted bank deposits pledged as security for cash call obligations towards TotalEnergies” 149.6 142.5
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 Total non-current restricted bank deposits 213.9 2037
Note 23: Borrowings 14 Current assets

Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18 Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 166.7 268.4
Note 25: Guarantees 119 Restricted bank deposits® o.1 01
Note 26: Investmentsin jointly owned assets 120 Total current cash and cash equivalents 166.9 268.4
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Total bank deposits 380.7 4721
Note 28: Related party transactions 121

Note 29: Subsequent events 121 (1) BlueNordhasmadeaUSD 140.0 million bank depositinto a security account to secure future requests for anticipated payments related to capital and operating expenditures in accordance with the security

103 BlueNord

agreement with TotalEnergies E&P Denmark A/S as operator of the DUC. No further transfer to the security account willbe made, except that interest earned willbe accruedin the account.

(2) TaxWithholding Account.
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Notes continued

19 Financialinstruments
19.1 Fair value hierarchy

Financial Report

gz:z:::gz:: 22:::::: Z: 2::::2::25; ZZ Thet;ble below analysesfinancigl instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method.
Consolidatod Statementof Cash Flows - The differentlevels h.ave been Qef|ned as folllows: _ . -

Levell  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Note: Summary of material accountingpolicies 78 Level2  Inputsother than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Note 2: Financialrisk management 84 Level3 Inputsforthe asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87
Note 4: Revenue 88 On31.12.23
Note 5:Productionexpenses 89 USD million Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Assets
Note 7:Personnel expenses 90 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Note 8 Other operating expenses o1 —Derivative instruments interest swap, ineffective part - 1.2 - 1.2
Note 9: ntangiblo assets p Financial a§sets at fai_r value hedging instruments

—Derivative instruments interest swap - 20.4 - 20.4
Note 10: Restatement ofborrowing cost 92 —Derivativeinstruments price hedge - 64.1 - 64.1
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Total assets _ 85.7 _ 85.7
Note 12: Impairments 96 Liabilities
Nt FMENE ElMEemeEne S Eenses s Financial liabilities at fair value through profitor loss
Note 14: Tax 97 —Embedded derivatives convertible bond BNOR15!" - - 53.0 53.0
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 Financiallliabilities at fair value hedginginstruments
Notei6/Nontelient receivablestiade —Derivative instruments price hedge - 39.2 - 39.2
receivables and other current assets 102 Totalliabilities _ 39.2 53.0 92.2
Note 17:Inventories 103
’C\‘;Stﬁ ;%Esaslgﬁ?d bankdeposits, cashand 103 (1) Formoreinformation see section18.2,18.3andnote 2.3.
Note 19: Financial instruments 104
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121

104 BlueNord
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19 Financial instruments continued

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 On 31.12.2022
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 USD million Levell Level2 Level3 Total
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7 Assets
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
N2 Terealie e a4 —_Deriva_tive instruments. interest svvap,_inef.feotive part - 111 - 111
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 I_:B:::v(;ltla\::;ztertsr:; r:tasl Tn":::;lset Q\Ievggmg instruments B 446 _ 446
ol RBuEmLE 88 —Derivative instruments price hedge - 108.9 - 108.9
Note 5:Production expenses 89 Total assets _ 164.6 _ 164.6
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Liabilities
NEDTFEIDIS @{peiEss % Financialliabilities at fair value through profitor loss
Note 8: Other operating expenses o1 —Embedded derivatives convertible bond BNOR13 - - 10.0 10.0
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 —Embedded derivatives convertible bond BNOR15 - - 38.9 38.9
e e 0 Financial Iiabilities at fair'value hedginginstruments
Note 1 Property, Plantand Equipment 9 — Derivative instruments price hedge - 166.8 - 166.8
Note 12: Impairments % Total liabilities - 166.8 48.9 2157
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97
Note 14: Tax o7 19.2 Financial instruments by category
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 On31.12.23
e sssetest  valuothrough  iniruments
USD million amortised cost profitorloss atfair value Total
Note 17:Inventories 103
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand Assets .
s LA 103 Convertible loan CarbonCuts 11 - - 1.1
Note 19: Financial instruments 104 Loa.n CgrbpnCuts . 26 B " 2.6
Derivative instruments interest swap - - 21.6 21.6
Note 20: Share capital 10 Derivative instruments price hedge - - 64.1 64.1
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Trade receivables and other current assets 88.7 - - 88.7
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 Restricted bank deposits 214.0 - - 214.0
Note 23: Borrowings 1 Cashand cash equivalents 166.7 - - 166.7
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 Total 473.1 - 85.7 558.8
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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19 Financial instruments continued

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Financial Liabilities at fair Hedging
) . . liabilities at value through instruments
Gonsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 7® USD million amortised cost profitorloss atfairvalue Total
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows s Liabilities
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Derivative instruments price hedge - - 39.2 39.2
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 Embedded derivatives convertible bond BNOR15" - 53.0 - 53.0
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Conyert|ble bondloan 201.7 - - 201.7
Note 2. Revente 88 Senior unsecured bo_nd Ioarjl 169.1 - - 169.1
: Reserve-based lending facility 820.8 - - 820.8
M DeFeel Bl s e Trade payables and other current liabilities 125.3 - - 125.3
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
P P Total 1,316.9 53.0 39.2 1,409.1
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90
NEHRAHOT ST E ISR e PAREEEs 91 (1) Formoreinformation see section18.1,18.3andnote 2.3.
Note 9: Intangible assets 91
- Financial Assets at fair Hedging
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 0On3112.2022 assetsat value through instruments
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 USD million amortised cost profitorloss atfairvalue Total
Note 12: Impairments 96 Assets )
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 Convertible loan CarbonCuts 0.2 B - 0.2
: Loan CarbonCuts 06 - - 0.6
Nt T I Derivative instruments interest swap - — 557 557
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 Derivative instruments price hedge - - 108.9 108.9
Note 16:Non-current receivables, trade Trade receivables and other current assets 128.6 — - 128.6
receivables and other current assets 102 Restricted bank deposits 2037 - - 2037
Note 17: Inventories 103 Cashandcash equivalents 2684 - - 2684
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand Total 6015 — 164.6 7661
cashequivalents 103
Note 19: Financial instruments 104 Financial Liabilities at fair Hedging
A . liabilities at value through instruments
Note 20: Share capital 1o USD million amortised cost profitorloss atfair value Total
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Liabilities
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations nz Derivative instruments price hedge - - 166.8 166.8
Note 23: Borrowings 114 Embedded derivatives convertible bond BNOR15 - 38.9 - 389
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18 Embedqed derivatives convertible bond BNOR13 - 10.0 - 10.0
Convertible bond loans 188.7 - - 188.7
Note 25: Guarantees 119 .
— Senior unsecured bond loan 166.9 - - 166.9
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 Reserve-based Iending faoility 764.0 _ _ 764.0
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Deferred consideration 250 — — 250
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 Trade payables and other current liabilities 115.6 - - 115.6
Note 29: Subsequent events 121 Total 1,260.2 489 166.8 1,476.0
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19 Financial instruments continued
19.3 Financial instruments - fair values

Setout below isacomparison of the carrying amounts and fair value of financial instruments on 31 December 2023:

Financial Report

Totalamount Carrying Fair
USD miillion outstanding amount value
Financial assets
Convertible loan CarbonCuts 1.1 11
Loan CarbonCuts 2.6 2.6
Derivative instruments interest swap 21.6 21.6
Derivative instruments price hedge 64.1 64.1
Trade receivables and other current assets 88.7 88.7
Restricted bank deposits 214.0 214.0
Cashand cashequivalents 166.7 166.7
Total 558.8 558.8
Financial liabilities
Derivative instruments price hedge 39.2 39.2
Embedded derivative convertible bond BNOR15®@ 53.0 53.0
Convertible bondloan 228.4 201.7 175.4
Senior unsecured bondloan 175.0 169.1 175.0
Reserve-based lending facility 850.0 820.8 850.0
Trade payables and other current liabilities 125.3 125.3
Total 1,253.4 1,409.1 1,417.9

(1) Totalamount outstanding on the bonds and under the RBL facility.
(2) Formoreinformationsee section19.1,19.2andnote 2.3.

The RBL facility is measured at amortised cost. Transaction costs are deducted from the amount initially recognised and are expensed over the period during
which the debt is outstanding under the EIR method. The capital outstanding is USD 850 million on 31 December 2023.

The senior unsecured bond loan is measured at amortised cost; a total of USD 7.6 million in transaction costs are deducted from the amount initially recognised.
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19 Financial instruments continued
The BNOR15instrument has been determined to contain embedded derivatives which are accounted for separately as derivatives at FVTPL, while the loan
element subsequent to initial recognition is measured at amortised cost and transaction costs are included in the amortised cost. The embedded derivative is
valued on an option valuation basis; the carrying value as on 31 December 2023 was USD 53.0 million. The assumptions in establishing the option value as on
31December 2023 are shown below.

The following tables list the inputs to the model used to calculate the fair value of the embedded derivatives:

BNOR15 2023
Valuation date (date)  31Dec23
Agreement execution date (date) 30Dec22
Par value of bonds (USD) 228,427,464
Reference share price at time of agreement (NOK) 413
Share price at 3112.2023 (NOK) 498
Fair value at grant date (USD) 38,928,552
Fair value at 3112.2023 (USD) 58,038,213
PlK interest rate (%) 8.00%
Expected remaining life (years) 2.0
Number of options # 4,441,461
Conversion price (NOK) 537
Fixed FX rate of agreement (USD:NOK) 10.440
Risk-free rate (based on government bonds) (%) 3.36%
Expected volatility (%) 45.39%
Model used Black - Scholes - Merton
19.4 Hedging

The Group actively seeks to reduce the market-related risks it is exposed to, including (i) commodity prices, (i) market-linked floating interest rates and (iii) foreign
exchange rates.

The Company has arolling hedge requirement under its RBL facility based on a minimum level of production corresponding to the RBLs production forecast. The
requirement is for the following volumes and time periods: (i) Year 1: 50% of oil volume and 20% of gas volume, or 50% of oil equivalent volume; (i) Year 2: 40
percent oil volume; and (jii) Year 3: 10 percent oil volume. The Company’s hedges are compliant with this requirement. Currently all the Company’s commodity
price hedging arrangements are forward contracts.

The Company has entered a USD 1.0 billion swap transaction with a Group of banks to fix the Company’s floating interest rate exposure under its RBL facility from
1November 2021 until 30 June 2024. From 1 January until 30 June 2024 the swap transaction is USD 900 million. As aresult, the Company pays interest onits
RBL cash drawings equal to 0.4041 percent plus the applicable margin (4.5% from February 2023) until expiry of the hedge contracts.

As aresult of the agreement to acquire Shell Olie- og Gasudvinding Danmark B.V. on 31 July 2019, BlueNord had a liquid volume protection agreement with Shell
that, from signing of the Sale and Purchase Agreement ('SPA) until the end of 2020 (the ‘Protection Period’), provided a monthly liquid production guarantee at
levels above the Company’s internal forecasts. For the period 2021to 2023 (the ‘Recovery Period’), a payment to Shell could have been required if actual
production exceeded the pre-agreed level. The production level at which any recovery payment would be made to Shell has consistently been above actual
production and therefore the Company does not have any payments due from this agreement as of 31 December 2023.
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In this report Contents for Notes continued

Consolidated Statements

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 19 Financial instruments continued
CorsoliikicaSetemante FenskFesiin 74 During Q1and Q3 2023 the Company entered foreign exchange hedges to secure fixed US dollar to Danish kroner exchange rates for selected future payments
inrelation to taxes, VAT and cash calls related to the Company's forecast cash flows.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows s

O ®DL

: ‘ — Hedge accounting is applied to allthe Company’s hedging arrangements. To the extent more than 100 percent of the market-related risk is hedged, the portion
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 8 above 100 percentis considered ineffective, and the value adjustment is treated as a financial item in the Income Statement. In 2023, the majority of the

Note 2: Financialrisk management 84 Company'’s arrangements in relation to commodity prices were effective; the minor part that exceeded the physical sale of oil was recognised as financial cost. No
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 part of the foreign exchange hedge was considered ineffective. However, the Company’s interest rate hedge above the drawn amount of the RBL, of USD 850
72-154 Note 4: Revenue 388 million, on 31 December 2023 was considered ineffective and the value adjustment is treated as a financial item in the Income Statement. Time Value related to
= —— Note 5:Production expenses 89 commodity hedging arrangements is considered insignificant and generally the valuation of the instruments do not take into consideration the time value.
Consolidated Statement Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Maturity w
of Comprehensive Income . Lessthan 1to3 3to6 6to9 9to12 More than =
Consolidated Statement NoteRersonnelexpenses Y Asat 31.12.2023 1month months months months months 12months %..
of Financial Position Note 8: Other .Opera“”g SHpes o Commodity forward sales contracts oil: %
Consolidated Statement Note & Intangible assets 91 Notional quantity (in mbbl) - 900.0 900.0 882.0 882.0 3,540.0 -
of Changes in Equity Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Notional amount (in USD million) - 55.2 55.2 63.3 63.3 259.8 8
Consolidated Statement Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Average hedged sales price (in USD/bbl) - 61.3 61.3 71.7 71.7 73.4 Q
of Cash Flows - -
Not Note 12:Impairments 96 Commodity forward sales contracts gas:
otes Note 13: Financialincome and expenses o7 Notional quantity (jn ml\/IWh). - 420.0 285.0 285.0 270.0 450.0 o
Statutory Accounts E—— 97 Notionalamount (in EUR million) - 41.8 14.6 14.6 14.8 229 o)
Income Statement : Average hedged sales price (in EUR/MWNh) - 99.4 51.3 51.3 54.7 50.9 &
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 =
Balance Sheet -]
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade %
CashFlow receivables and other current assets 102 Hedge reserve movement o]
Notes Note 17: Inventories 103 . . %
Independent Auditor’s Report Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand The table below shows the movement in the hedge reserve from changes in the cash flow hedges. 8
" cashequivalents 103 - o)
Statement of Compliance USD Million Hedge Reserve =
Alternative Performance Measures Nt e AEeE TSRS o Balance as of 01.01.2022 (67.5)
" 3 3 Note 20: Share capital 110 -
ﬁj‘:\gﬁ'ﬁ;{g’;‘ary°"a"d gasinformation RnE———" o - Realised cash flow hedge on revenue 2422 -n
: Ote ZRTosTemPIoymentbeneiis Realised cash flow hedge on financial items (175) 5
Appendices Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 Related tax —realised cash flow hedge (151 _2) g
Information about BlueNord Note 23: Borrowings 114 Changesin fair value cash flow hedge (40.4) 8.
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 Related tax — Changes infair value cash flow hedge 48.2 f—
X
Note 25: Guarantees 119 Balance as of 31.12.2022 13.9 %
Note 26: Investmentsin jointly owned assets 120 Realised cash flow hedge onrevenue (19.7) 2
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 Realised cash flow hedge onfinancial items (29.3) -~
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 Related tax— realised cashflowhedge 19.1
Note 29: Subsequentevents o Changesinfair value cash flow hedge 107.8
Related tax —changesin fair value cash flow hedge (66.8)
Balance as of 31.12.2023 24.9
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Notes continued

20 Share capital

BlueNord owns 100.521 of its own shares. All shares have equal rights. All shares are fully paid.

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74

EZ::Z::ZZEZ 2::::2::: ZZ gzzgile;quty ;i Changes in number of shares and share capital:

Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 No.of shares Share capital"
Note 2 Financial risk management 84 Number of shares and share capital as of 01January 2022 24,549,013 295
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 gzgﬁ;frzgi'ft?on approvedandregistered 1’159’411 © 91;1)
Note 4: Revenue 88

Note 5:Production expenses 89 Number of shares and share capital as of 31 December 2022 25,708,424 1.7
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Issue of shares 497’425 0.0
Note 7 Personnel expenses 90 Number of shares and share capital as of 31 December 2023 26,205,849 1.7
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 Treasury share
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 No.of shares reserve*
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Number of treasury shares and treasury share reserve as of 01 January 2022 (438,161) (0.5)
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Sale of treasury shares 300,999 0.3
Note 12:Impairments 96 Number of treasury shares and treasury share reserve as of 31 December 2022 (137162) 01
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 Sale of treasury shares 36,641 0.0
MEIE1 IS 97 Number of treasury shares and treasury share reserve as of 31 December 2023 (100,521) (0.1)
Note 15: Earnings per share 102

Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade * InUSD million.

receivables and other current assets 102

Note 17:Inventories 103 Changes in2023

Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cash and The Company received conversion notice from bondholders holding BNOR13 and BNOR15 bonds for total principal amount of USD 14.6 million in 2023, which
cashequivalents 108 pursuant to the bond terms are convertible into 497,425 new shares in the Company. The BNOR13 conversionin January had a conversion price of USD 28.9734,
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 the following conversions had a conversion price of USD 51.4307 according to the new bond terms. Following such conversions, the share capital is increased
Note 20: Share capital 110 withNOK 268.5/USD 32.7 thousands.

Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12

Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 The Company sold 36,641 of its own shares during the year, of which 23,641 shares was related to first award of the LTI programme. The shares price at transfer

Note 23: Borrowings T4 date was 475 NOK/share. In addition, 13.000 shares were sold to cover exercise of options held by former employees at strike price 160 NOK/share.

Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118

Note 25: Guarantees 19

Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120

Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions

121

Note 29: Subsequent events

121
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Notes continued

20 Share capital continued
Changesin 2022

Financial Report

The Company received conversion notice from bondholders holding NOR13 Bonds for total principal amount of USD 33.6 million, which pursuant to the bond

termwas convertible into 1,159,411 new shares in the Company at a conversion price of USD 28.9734. Following such conversions, the share capital was increased

withNOK 11.6/USD 1.4 million.

The share capital was reduced with NOK 24.3.2/USD 29.3 million by reducing the nominal value of the shares. The reduction amount was transferred to the share

premium fund. The share capital reduction was registered in the Norwegian Registry of Business Enterprises on 28 December 2022. Following the share capital

reduction, the Company’s share capital was NOK 13.9/USD 1.7 million divided on 25,708,424 shares, each with a nominal value of NOK 0.5398295.

Note 4: Revenue 88
Note 5:Production expenses 89 . ) . . . . .
- - The Company sold 300,999 of its own shares in relation to exercise of options held by former Director of the Board and former members of the Executive Team.
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
NoteRersonnelexpenses Y Overview of shareholders at 02 April 2024:
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91
Shareholder* Shareholding ~ Ownershipshare Voting share
Note 9: Intangible assets o1
= S R - Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V. 6,815,172 26.0% 26.0%
: 9 Goldman Sachs International 5,096,153 19.4% 19.4%
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Barclays Bank PLC 2105,007 8.0% 8.0%
Note 12:Impairments 96 SOBERAS 1,850,000 71% 71%
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 J.P.Morgan Securities LLC 1,459,883 5.6% 5.6%
Note 14: Tax 97 The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV 949,183 3.6% 3.6%
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 BNP Paribas 621,520 2.4% 24%
ey T S CLEARSTREAM BANKING S.A. 509,620 1.9% 1.9%
receivablesand other current aséets 102 Citibank, N.A. 499,653 1.9% 1.9%
N ; State Street Bank and Trust Comp 494,195 1.9% 1.9%
ote 17: Inventories 103 A
- - Sbakkejord AS 425,500 1.6% 1.6%
e e G R S e e 03 FINSNESINVEST AS 313,000 12% 12%
Note 19: Financial instruments 104 SOSYFRINVESTAS 308,070 1.2% 1.2%
: : HANASAND 263,150 1.0% 1.0%
Note 20:Share capital 0 ALTOHOLDINGAS 238,300 0.9% 0.9%
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 VELDE HOLDING AS 230,000 0.9% 0.9%
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 Morgan Stanley & Co. Int. Plc. 210,055 0.8% 0.8%
Note 23: Borrowings 114 JPMorgan Chase Bank,N.A.,London 200,872 0.8% 0.8%
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 OUSDALAS 200,000 0.8% 0.8%
SONGA CAPITALAS 185,735 0.7% 0.7%
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 Total 22,975,068 87.7% 87.7%
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 .
N P S o Other owners (ownership <0.67%) 3,230,781 12.3% 12.3%
Note 29: Subsequent events 121 Total number of shares at 02 April 2024 26,205,849 100.0% 100.0%

111 BlueNord
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Notes continued

21 Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plan
The Group has defined contribution plans for its employees. Pension costs related to the Company’s defined contribution plan amount to USD 732.2 thousand for
2023.For 2022, the corresponding costs were USD 512.9 thousand.

The Norwegian companies are obliged to have occupational pension in accordance with the Norwegian act related to mandatory occupational pension. All
Norwegian companies meet the Norwegian requirements for mandatory occupational pension (‘obligatorisk tienestepensjon’). Correspondingly, the affiliates in
Denmark and United Kingdom comply with the requirement for mandatory occupational pension by local legislation.

22 Asset retirement obligations

USD million 31.12.2023 3112.2022
Balance on 01.01. 955.8 1,029.2
Provisions and change of estimates made during the year 52.6 (107.0)
Accretionexpense 49.2 481
Incurred cost removal (8.7) (14.4)
Currency translation adjustment 01 01)
Total provision made for asset retirement obligations 1,049.0 955.8
Breakdown of short-term and long-term asset retirement obligations

Short-term 15.4 9.8
Long-term 1,033.7 9461
Total provision for asset retirement obligations 1,049.0 955.8

Estimates are based on executing a concept for abandonment in accordance with the Petroleum Activities Act and international regulations and guidelines. The
obligations are measured at net present value, assuming an inflation rate of 2.0 percent and anominal discount rate before tax of 5.5 percent. The credit margin
included inthe discount rateis 2.9 percent.

The change in estimate during the year includes anincrease of USD 24 million due to change in expected timing of close in of production from Gorm and Harald
and achange to cost estimates of USD 9 million mainly in relation to Dan. Further, the asset retirement estimate from the operator includes both US dollar and
Danish kroner costs and as aresult there is an increase of USD 16 million due to the strengthening of Danish kroner to US dollar. The liability towards Niniand
Cecilie licence partners increased by USD 3 million due to currency adjustment. Most of the removal activities are expected to be executed many years into the
future. This makes the ultimate asset retirement costs and timing highly uncertain. Costs and timing can be affected by changes in regulations, technology,
estimated reserves, economic cut-off date, etc. The provision at the reporting date represents management’s best estimate of the present value of the future
asset retirement costs required.

As part of the overallrestructuring in 2015, an agreement was reached that entails that the partners took over BlueNord's share of the Nini/Cecilie licences,
however BlueNord remains liable for the asset retirement obligation towards the licence partners. The liability related to Nini/Cecilie is capped at the escrow
amount, whichis currently USD 64.3 million/DKK 433.6 million.

The balance as per 31 December 2023 is USD 981.4 million for DUC, USD 64.3 million for Nini/Cecilie, USD 1.5 million for Lulita (non-DUC share) and
USD 1.9 millionfor Tyra F-3 pipeline.

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023

O ®DL

Joday oiberens

g)
<
@
=
2
o
=
Q
®
oy
®
O
e}
=
=

yoday [eloueuly




Inthisreport

72-154
Consolidated Statements

Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement
of Changesin Equity

Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows

Notes
Statutory Accounts

Income Statement

Balance Sheet

Cash Flow

Notes
Independent Auditor’s Report
Statement of Compliance
Alternative Performance Measures

Supplementary oil and gas information
(unaudited)

Appendices

Information about BlueNord

Contents for
Consolidated Statements

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78
Note 2: Financial risk management 84
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87
Note 4: Revenue 88
Note 5:Production expenses 89
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91
Note 9: Intangible assets 91
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95
Note 12: Impairments 96
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97
Note 14: Tax 97
Note 15: Earnings per share 102
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade

receivables and other current assets 102
Note 17:Inventories 103
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand
cashequivalents 103
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121

113 BlueNord

Notes continued

22 Assetretirement obligations continued
Sensitivity analysis

Financial Report

The table below shows how the asset retirement obligation excluding Nini/Cecilie would be affected by changes in the various assumptions, given that the

remaining assumptions are constant.

Sensitivity ($¢T1Rmo) Cphricgi)lg
Abandonment Cost Estimate 984.7

Abandonment Cost Estimate increase +40.0% 1,376.0 40.0%
Abandonment Cost Estimate increase +10.0% 1,081.1 10.0%
Abandonment Cost Estimate decrease -10.0% 884.6 -10.0%
Abandonment Cost Estimate decrease -30.0% 688.0 -30.0%
Discountrate +1.0% 8591 -13.0%
Discountrate -1.0% 1128.8 15.0%
Inflationrate +1.0% 11271 15.0%
Inflation rate -1.0% 8591 -13.0%

Annual Reportand Accounts 2023

O ®DL

Joday oiberens

g)
<
@
=
2
o
=
Q
®
oy
®
O
e}
=
=

yoday [eloueuly




Inthisreport

Contents for
Consolidated Statements

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73

Notes continued

23 Borrowings
23.1 Summary of borrowings

Financial Report

i
®
©

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74
Consolidated Statement of Changesin Equity 76 31.12.2023 3112.2022
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 N Principal Book Principal Book
USD million amount value amount value
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 -
—— BNOR13 Convertible Bond" - - 13.8 131
Note 2:Financialrisk management 84 BNORI5 Convertible Bond® 228.4 2017 2076 1757
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates andjudgements 87 BNOR14 Senior Unsecured Bond® 175.0 169.1 175.0 166.9
72-154 NeeAsizveLe 88 Totalnon-currentbonds 403.4 370.8 3965 3556
i Note 5:Production expenses 89 . .
CorpalEilEEnee & Reserve-based lending facility 725.0 695.8 800.0 764.0
Consolidated Statement Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
of Comprehensive Income Total non-current debt 725.0 695.8 800.0 764.0 %
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 o o
: _ H ity _ _ =
C;J':l_solld_atrg St_sta_tement Note 8: Other operating expenses o1 Reserve basec_j Iend!ng 1;aC|I|ty 125.0 125.0 8
CAMENEE | MEEU e N —— ; o Deferred Consideration® - - 25.0 25.0 =
Consolidated Statement SR
2 : , Total current debt 125.0 125.0 250 250 By
of Changesin Equity Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 8
Consolidated Statement e T e e e o5 Total borrowings 1,253.4 1,191.6 1,2215 1144.6 o
of Cash Flows 3
Note 12: Impairments 96 . B
Notes Note: Book values reported on the basis of amortised cost for BNOR14, the RBL facility and the convertible bond loan element of BNOR13 and BNOR15.
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97
Statutory Accounts ()
Note 14: Tax 97 (1) The Companyissued aconvertible bondloan of USD 158 millionin 2019 where the lender was granted aright to convert the loan into new shares in the Company by way of set-off against the claim onthe 2
Income Statement Note 15. Earmin " 102 Company. The loan carries aninterest of 8 percent p.a. ona PIK basis, with an alternative option to pay cash interest at 6 percent p.a., payable semi-annually. In December 2022, the majority of the remaining o)
Balance Sheet ST M A convertible loan was transferred into the new convertible instrument, BNOR15 and, of the remaining USD 13.8 million outstanding on 31 December 2022, USD 14.2 million was converted into equity by 26 January 3
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade 2023, whichincludes conversion of USD 0.5 millionin accumulated interests. The remaining BNOR13 bond was then subject to the amendments as proposed by the Company in November 2022 and USD 48.2 %
Cash Flow receivables and other current assets 102 thousand compensation bonds were issued on 26 January. The amendment to BNOR13 terms aligns the terms of the remaining bond with that of the BNOR15 bond. In December 2023, USD 195,723 was e}
Notes Nei 7 mvaienes 103 converted into equity and so the outstanding value of BNOR13is USD 63 as per 31 December 2023. Given the insignificant amount outstanding on BNOR13, this has been assumed as nilin the reporting. ®
—— . (2) The Companyissueda convertible bond loan of USD 207.6 millionin December 2022, with a five-year tenor and a conversion to equity or cash settlement after three years (31 December 2025). BNOR15 is made up of X0
Independent Auditor’s Report Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cash and atransfer from BNOR13 of USD 151.4 million plus additional compensation bonds of USD 56.2 million. In the same way as BNOR13, the lender was granted a right to convert the loan into new shares in the Company by 8
Statement of Compliance cashequivalents 103 way of set-off against the claim on the Company. The loan carries aninterest of 8 percent p.a. on a PIK basis, with an alternative option to pay cashinterest at 6 percent p.a., payable semi-annually. Conversion price of @)
—_— Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 USD 51.4307 per share.InQ12023, USD 0.1 million was converted into equity. For more information on the bond terms see www.bluenord.com/debt. —~
Alternative Performance Measures : (3) The Companyissued asenior unsecured bond of USD 175 million in 2019, due in June 2026. The bond carries aninterest of 9 percent p.a., payable semi-annually. In July 2021, BlueNord's written resolution regarding
Supplementary oil and gas information Note 20: Share capital 1o the addition of further headroomunder the Leverage Ratio covenant through to the end of 2023 was resolved and approved by the Company’s BNOR14 bondholders. Based on this written resolution, the maximum
(unaudited) Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12 Leverage Ratio has been amended to 7.0x (from 5.0x) ending Q2 2023, 6.0x (from 3.0x) during Q3 2023 and 5.0x (from 3.0x) during Q4 2023. From Q1 2024 onwards, the maximum Leverage Ratio will revert to 3.0x 11
- - — per the original bond terms. In addition to the change in maximum permitted leverage, BlueNord’s minimum bank deposits threshold has increased to USD 75 million until the end of 2023 (from USD 50 million untilend =}
Appendices Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 Q22023 and USD 25 million during Q3 and Q4 2023). Both the leverage covenant and minimum liquidity threshold have been satisfied as at end of 2023. Leverage is 2.18x (against a threshold of 5.0x) g
Information about BlueNord Note 23: Borrowings 14 (4) The Company enteredinto anincreased RBL facility in Q2 2021. The facility has a seven-year tenor with a maximum limit of USD 1.1 billion, with a maximum of USD 1.0 billion available for cash drawdown by the 0
- Company. Interestis accrued on the drawn amount with aninterest rate comprising the aggregate of SOFR and 4 percent per annum, 4.5 percent per annum from February 2023. The amount outstanding as at [\
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18 31Decemberis USD 850 million. 5
Note 25: Guarantees 19 (5) Inaccordance withthe Sales Purchase Agreement USD 25 million of the consideration was paidin March 2023. Included in Trade payables and other current liabilities, see note 24. )
e
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 2
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 ~
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Cashflows Non-cash changes
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Receipts/ Interestand Conversion Move from
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Movementsininterest-bearing liabilities 3112.22 payments financing cost toshares LTtoST Amortisation 31.12.23
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 BNORI13 Convert?ble Bond 131 - - (13.2) B 01 (0.0)

BNOR15 Convertible Bond 175.7 - - (01) - 26.2 201.7
Note 2:Financialrisk management 84 BNOR4 Senior Unsecured Bond 166.9 - (15.8) - - 179 169.1
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates andjudgements 87 Reserve-based lending facility!” 764.0 50.0 (37.9) - (125.0) 44.6 695.8
ol RBuEmLE 88 Total movement non-current
Note 5:Productionexpenses 89 interest-bearing liabilities 1119.6 50.0 (53.6) (13.3) (125.0) 88.9 1,066.6
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Reserve-based Iending facility _ _ _ _ 125.0 _ 125.0 Q
Note 7:Personnel expenses 90 Deferred Consideration® 25.0 (25.0) - - - - - o
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 Total movement current g
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 interest-bearing liabilities 250 (25.0) - - 125.0 - 125.0 %
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Totalmovementin 8
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 interest-bearing liabilities 11446 25.0 (53.6) (13.3) - 88.9 1,191.6 Q
Note 12: Impairments 96 -
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 (1) Thecash outflow frominterest and financing cost of USD 37.9 million and the change in amortisation of USD 44.6 million on the reserve-based lending facility is net of realised gain oninterest swap of USD 46.4 million.
Note 14: Tax o7 (2) Classified asinvesting activity inthe Cash Flow asitis related to the acquisitionin 2019. g
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 ‘ Cash flows ' : Non-cashchanges %
Il’\(le(():teei\lgiall\‘e(;na;r?ggtehngrriﬁfri;ﬁtbel-l?sg;:de 102 Movementsininterest-bearing liabilities 3112.21 Sa?ycr?grt]?g fm:rt]iriigtsgg CotgvsehraSIrOeg Cog\!/\leéslflﬁg Amortisation 3112.22 %
Note 17. Inventoris 103 BNOR13 Convert?ble Bond 1571 - - (29.6) (143.3) 28.8 1341 (0]
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand BNOR15 Con-vertlble Bond - - “.4) B 1801 _ 1757 g
cashequivalents 103 BNOR14 Senior Unsecured Bond 164.9 - (15.8) - - 177 166.9 g
Note 19: Financial instruments 104 Reserve-based lendmg facmty 857.3 (100.0) (414) — — 481 764.0 -
Note 20: Share capital 10 T?tal moveme'_‘t no_n'(_:':"_rent
Nofe 21 Post-employment benefts - interest-bearing liabilities 1,179.3 (100.0) (61.6) (29.6) 36.8 94.6 1119.6 o
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 Deferred Consideration 250 — — — - - 250 §
Note 23:Borrowings 114 Total movement current 0.
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 interest-bearing liabilities 250 _ — — — — 250 2
Note 25: Guarantees 119 Totalmovementin %
Note 26:Investrments injointly owned assets 20 interest-bearing liabilities 1,204.3 (100.0) (61.6) (29.6) 36.8 94.6 1144.6 'g
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 -+
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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Notes continued

23 Borrowings continued
23.2 Details on borrowing
Details on borrowings outstanding on 31 December 2023
Reserve based lending facility
In April 2021, BlueNord amended its existing senior secured reserve-based credit facility to commit to a seven-year senior reserve-based credit facility of USD 1.1
billion. The facility is a reserve-based credit facility secured against certain cash flows generated by the Group. The amount available under the facility is
recalculated every six months based upon the calculated cash flow generated by certain producing fields and fields under development at an oil price and
economic assumptions agreed with the banking syndicate providing the facility. The facility is secured by a pledge over the shares of certain Group companies, a
pledge over the Company's working interest inits share of the DUC licence and security over insurances, hedging contracts, project accounts, intercompany
loans and material contracts. The pledged assets on 31 December 2023 amounted to USD 1,355 million and represented the carrying value of the pledge of the
Group companies whose shares are pledged as described in the section 5 below (Assets pledged as security for interest-bearing debt).

Pledge value: carrying value of shares held in Altinex AS, BlueNord Denmark A/S, BlueNord Energy Denmark A/S, BlueNord Gas Denmark A/S by BlueNord ASA.

BNOR13

InJuly 2019, BlueNord issued a subordinated convertible bond loan of USD 158 million with a tenor of eight years where the lender was granted a right to convert
the loan into new shares in the Company at a conversion price of NOK 240 (USD 29.3) per share by way of set-off against the claim on the Company. The loan has
amandatory conversion to equity after five years and carries an interest of 8 percent p.a. on a PIK basis, with an alternative option to pay cash interest at 6 percent
p.a., payable semi-annually. Should the instrument be in place beyond the five-year conversion period, the interest rate on BNOR13 will be reduced to 0.0 percent
for the remaining term of the loan.

InNovember 2022, BlueNord had proposed for some amendments to the BNOR13 bond which includes a two-year delay in the mandatory conversion date

(8 November 2023 to 31 December 2025) following the expected Tyra first gas date and aninclusion of a call option to allow the Company to redeem the BNOR13
bond with cashin December 2025. To reflect the premium of the then share price relative to the BNOR13 previous conversion price, the principal amount has been
updated from approximately USD 165 million to approximately USD 227 million by way of issuance of compensation bonds. Conversion price has beenreset to
USD 51.4307 per share and interest rate remains unchanged.

InDecember 2022, the majority of the convertible was transferred into a new convertible instrument, BNOR15, with the remaining BNOR13 bond still being subject
to the amendments proposed by the Company in November 2022. The value of the BNOR13 convertible bond at year end is USD 63.

BNOR14
In December 2019, BlueNord successfully completed the issue of a USD 175 million unsecured bond. The proceeds are utilised for general corporate purposes
and the bond carries an interest of 9 percent p.a., payable semi-annually, with a six and a half-year tenor.

BNOR15

InDecember 2022, BlueNord launched an exchange offer for the BNOR13 bondholders in exchange for a new subordinated convertible bond of USD 208 million,
with revised terms and a later and more flexible conversion date in 2025. The Company issued a total of 207,641,201 new BNOR15 bonds, each with a nominal
value of USD 1. The BNOR15 bond terms mirror the amendments of the BNOR13 bond except that, inter alia, a tap issue mechanism has been included. Interest
payments are on similar terms with BNOR13, which is aninterest of 8 percent p.a. on a PIK basis, with an alternative option to pay cashinterest at 6 percent p.a.,
payable semi-annually.
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Notes continued

23 Borrowings continued
23.3 Covenants
Covenants relating to interest bearing debt
Reserve-based lending facility
Thereserve-based credit facility constitutes senior debt of the Company and is secured on afirst priority basis against certain of the Company’s subsidiaries and
their assets. The reserve-based credit facility agreement contains a financial covenant that the ratio of Net Debt to EBITDAX (earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and exploration) shall be: less than 6.0:1.0 at the end of financial years 2021and 2022; less than 3.5:1.0 at the end of financial year 2023;
andless than 3.0:1.0 at the end of financial year 2024 onwards until the expiry of the facility. Each test is carried out on the audited full-year financial statements of
BlueNord ASA. BlueNord must also demonstrate minimum liquidity on a look forward basis of USD 50 million during the relevant period, which s the latest of

Note 4: Revenue 88
Note 5:Production expenses 89 completion of the Tyraredevelopment project and following 12-month period. The agreement also includes special covenants which, among other, restrict the
- - Company from taking on additional secured debt, provide parameters for minimum and maximum hedging requirements and restrict declaration of dividends or
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 L . . . .
other distributions. BlueNord s in compliance with these covenants at the end of 2023.
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 BNOR14
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 InJuly 2021, BlueNord's written resolution regarding the addition of further headroom under the Leverage Ratio covenant through to the end of 2023 was resolved
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 and approved by the Company’'s BNOR14 bondholders. Based on this written resolution, the maximum Leverage Ratio has been amended to 7.0x (from 5.0x)
e B e o o during the Tyra Redevelopment Period ending Q2 2023, 6.0x (from 3.0x) during Q3 2023 and 5.0x (from 3.0x) during Q4 2023. From Q12024 onwards, the
= y—— % maximum Leverage Ratio will revert to 3.0x per the original bond terms. In addition to the change in maximum permitted leverage, BlueNord's minimum liquidity
— P — threshold has increased to USD 75 million until the end of 2023 (from USD 50 million untilend Q2 2023 and USD 25 million during Q3 and Q4 2023). BlueNord s in
e ETHEANEEIMERMEETe aensss & compliance with the covenants at the end of 2023.
Note 14: Tax 97
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 23.4 Payment structure
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade Payment structure (USD million) at 31.12.2023:
receivables and other current assets 102
- Reserve—Based

Note 17:Inventories 103 Year BNOR150 BNOR14  LendingFacility Total
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand 2024 _ _ 125.0 125.0
cashequivalents 103 ’ ’

a 2025 - - 2750 2750
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 2026 _ 175.0 2750 450.0
Note 20: Share capital 10 2027 - - 1375 1375
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 2028 - - 375 375
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 Total - 175.0 850.0 1,025.0
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18 (1) Anyredemptionandrepurchase of bonds are acted by BlueNord as Issuer. The Bondholders will have the right of amandatory redemption but only in a case of a Change of Control event (which will be notified by

BlueNord). Inthe table itis assumed that it will be no cash payments on BNOR15.

Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121

117 BlueNord
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23 Borrowings continued

Financial Report

Reserve—Based

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 Year BNOR14 Lending Facility Total
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Interest rate 9.0% SOFR**
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows s
2024 15.8 855 101.3
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 2025 15.8 63.4 792
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 2026 79 36.0 439
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 2027 - 96 96
Note 4: Revenue 88 2028 - 03 03
Note 5:Production expenses 89 Total 394 194.9 234.3
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 * BNORI13/BNOR15 carries avariable interest charge of: (i) 6 percent per annumin cash, payable semi-annually, or; (i) 8 percent per annum PIK cumulative interest, rolled up semi-annually, to add to BNOR13/BNOR15 capital
- onconversionatexpiry of the bond. Currently, the Company has elected the PIK interest of 8 percent and is therefore forecasting no cashinterest payments on BNOR13/BNOR15in the above table.
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 **InQ82021, the Company entered a USD 1.0 billion swap transaction with a group of banks to fix the Company's floating interest rate (LIBOR/SOFR from 01 November 2021) exposure under its Reserve Lending
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 Facility from November 2021 until 30 June 2024. BlueNord will, as aresult, pay interest on its RBL cash drawings equal to 0.4041 percent plus the applicable margin.
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 . . .
_ 23.5 Assets pledged as security for interest-bearing debt
Note ft: Property, Plant and Equipment 9% Net book value in the separate financial statements of assets pledged as securities
Note 12: Impairments 96 The Group has the following pledged assets for the Reserve Based Lending facility:
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 .
USD million 2023 2022
Note 14: Tax 97 - -
N - . , BlueNord ASA shares in Altinex AS 396.8 3935
ote 15:Earmings per share 10 Altinex AS shares in BlueNord Energy 8/06 Denmark BV and other companies 614.7 6147
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade Loans from Parent to subsidiaries 343.2 308.3
receivables and other current assets 102
Note 17:Inventories 103 Totalnetbook value 1,354.7 1,316.5
Note 18: Bestricted bank deposits, cashand
cashequivalents 103 24 Trade payables and other payables
Note 19: Financial instruments 104 .
USD million 2023 2022
Note 20: Share capital 110
: Trade payable 17.5 170
NEIORH et Cmple e SEr S L Liabilities to operators relating to joint venture licences 70.9 66.8
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 Accrued interest 1.3 3.3
Note 23: Borrowings 114 Salary accruals 24 25
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 Public duties p_ayablg 12.8 8.3
= — s Deferred consideration - 250
: Other current liabilities 20.3 177
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 .
- - - Total trade payables and other current liabilities 125.3 140.6
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121

118 BlueNord
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24 Trade payables and other payables continued
Trade and other payables held in currency

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 USD million 2023 2022
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 USD 40.2 547
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 DKK 70.3 712
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 EUR 12.3 n3

" — : GBP 0.8 0.8
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 NOK 17 25
Note 4: Revenue 88

Total 125.3 140.6
Note 5:Production expenses 89
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 25 Guarantees
: ? Overview of issued guarantees on 31 December 2023

HeedOlier gpeiiing g s The parent company of the Group, BlueNord ASA (‘BlueNord’), hasissued a parent company guarantee to the Danish Ministry of Climate, Energy and Building on
Note 9:Intangible assets a1 behalf of its subsidiary BlueNord Energy Denmark A/S and BlueNord Gas Denmark A/S.
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 The Company has provided a parent company guarantee to the Danish Ministry of Climate, Energy and Utilities related to the Group’s activities on the Danish
Note 12:Impairments 96 continental shelf,including BlueNord's participation in the Tyra West Pipeline and the Lulita licence. The Company has also provided a parent company guarantee

S towards the lenders in relation to the Company’s USD 1.1 billion reserve-based lending facility and customary obligations/guarantees under joint operating
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 ) . . . . .

agreements. BlueNord has also provided a parent company guarantee to Shell Energy Europe Limited in relation to its subsidiary BlueNord Energy Denmark
MEIE1 IS 2 A/S's obligations under a gas offtake and transportation agreement capped at EUR 30 million.
Note 15: Earnings per share 102
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade Furthermore, the Company has provided a parent company guarantee to Total E&P Denmark A/S for its obligations under the JOA together with a guarantee
receivablesand other currentassets 192 from Shell. BlueNord has provided standby letters of credit of USD 100 million, issued under the USD 100 million sub-limit of the RBL facility for the benefit of Shell
Note f7:Inventories 103 in connection with this guarantee.
Note 18: Bestricted bank deposits, cashand
G E LS Inrelation to BlueNord's historic operations in the UK North Sea, the Company hasissued a parent company guarantee on behalf of its subsidiaries BlueNord UK
Note 19: Financial instruments 104 Ltd and BlueNord Energy UK Limited.
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 On 31December 2012, BlueNordissued a parent company guarantee on behalf of its subsidiary Noreco Norway AS. BlueNord guarantees that, if any amounts
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 2 become payable by Noreco Norway AS to the Norwegian Secretary of State under the terms of the licences and the company does not repay those amounts on
Note 23: Borrowings o firstdemand, BlueNord shall pay to the Norwegian Secretary of State on demand an amount equal to all such amounts. Noreco Norway AS was liquidated in 2018,
' however as per 31 December 2023, the guarantee has not been withdrawn.

Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 119
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121

Note 29: Subsequent events

121
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Financial Report

Notes continued

26 Investmentsinjointly owned assets
Investmentsinjointly own assets are included in the accounts by recognising the Group's share of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses related to the
joint operation.

The Group holds the following licence equities on 31 December 2023:

Licence Field Country  Ownershipshare
DUC DUC Denmark 36.8%
1/90 Lulita Part Denmark 20.0%
7/86 Lulita Part Denmark 20.0%
8/06B Denmark 36.8%

27 Contingencies and commitments
Financial commitments
As apartnerinthe DUC, the Company has acommitment to fund its proportional share of the budget and work programmes of the DUC. In December each year,
the operating budget (which includes operating expenditures, capital expenditure related to production, exploration and abandonment) for the following year is
agreed amongst the DUC partners. For the coming four years, the average operating budget for BlueNord is expected to be around USD 310 million per year.
Capital and abandonment expenditure for individual projects, such as Tyra, are approved separately.

BlueNord's capital commmitments are principally related to the ongoing Tyra redevelopment project. The gross capital and abandonment expenditure budget for
the Tyraredevelopment project at the time of the investment decision was DKK 21 billion whichin 2024 has beenincreased to DKK 274 billion of which DKK 24.8
billion had beenincurred by the end of 2023. Based on the current project schedule, BlueNord will be required to fund its proportional share of DKK 2.6 million of
this remaining expenditure over the coming year. Further, BlueNord has capital commitments to a well to be drilled on Harald East in 2024 with a gross DUC
budget of DKK 506 million.

The DUC is obliged to use the specially constructed oil trunk line, pumps and terminal facilities and to contribute to the construction and financing costs thereof as
aresult of anagreement entered into with the Danish government. This obligation is approximately USD 19 million per year (2023: USD 19 million) BlueNord share.

Inaddition to the above and in order to obtain the consent of TotalEnergies EP Danmark A/S to the acquisition, BlueNord Energy Denmark A/S agreed to deposit
cashinasecured cash call security account in favour of TotalEnergies EP Danmark A/S (the concessionaire in respect of the Sole Concession). On 31 December
2023, the escrow account was USD 149.6 million. All payment obligations from BlueNord to the cash call security account have been made and there willbe no
further increase. The cash call security amount will then decrease to USD 100 million following the year in which the Tyra redevelopment project is completed and
can, on certain terms and conditions, be replaced with a Letter of Credit or other type of security.
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Financial Report

Notes continued

27 Contingencies and commitments continued
Contingent liabilities
Inrelation to the Niniand Cecilie fields, BlueNord was in 2015 prevented from making payments for its share of production costs and was consequently in breach
of the licence agreements. In accordance with the JOAs, the Nini and Cecilie licences were forfeitured and the licences were taken over by the partners, whereas
the debt remained with BlueNord, but the liability is in any and all circumstances limited to a maximum amount equal to the restricted cash account of USD 64.3
million (DKK 433.6 million), adjusted for interest. The total provision made for the asset retirement obligations reflects this.

The Company has received a claim regarding the level of @rsted pipeline tariffs charged since 2013. As the relevant authority (Forsyningstilsynet) is currently
reassessing their view, BlueNord believes that there is no basis for this claim prior to a new ruling setting the appropriate level of these tariffs. Given the outcome of
this and any consequent liability is not yet known, the Company has not recognised a provision for this claim.

During the normal course of its business, the Company may be involved in disputes, including tax disputes. The Company has not made accruals for possible
liabilities related to litigation and claims based on management’s best judgement.

BlueNord has unlimited liability for damage inrelation to its participationin the DUC. The Company hasinsured its pro rata liability in line with standard market practice.

Apart from the issues discussed above, the Group is not involved in claims from public authorities, legal claims or arbitrations that could have a significant negative
impact on the Company’s financial position or results.

28 Related party transactions
Other than fees to Directors of the Board the Group did not have any transactions with related parties during 2023.

29 Subsequentevents
There are no events with significant accounting impacts that have occurred between the end of the reporting period and the date of this report.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 USDmilion Note 2023 2022
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 ;°ta| revfnues 213 3.7 26
ersonnel expenses 5.8 4.4
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 .p 1018 ( ) (44)
Other operating expenses 12,13 (3.5) 4
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7 -
: . = Total operating expenses (9.3) (8.5)
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78
Note2: Financial risk management = Operating result before depreciation, amortisation and impairment (‘EBITDA’) (5.6) (5.9
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Depreciation, amortisationand impairment (0'1) (0.0)
Note 4: Revenue 88 Net operatingresult (‘EBIT’) (5.7) (6.0)
Note 5:Production expenses 89 Reversal of financial assets 10 0.5 -
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Interests received from Group companies 34.7 251
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 lmer,eSt Income . 1.2 0.2
: Foreign exchange gains 2.0 01
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91
- Total financialincome 38.4 254
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 A )
_ Extinguishment of bond loans 5 1.7) (57.5)
Moo Resiteisent eilvsires g ol c2 Amortised cost frombond loans (36.5) (32.8)
Note 1t:Property, Plantand Equipment 95 Interest expenses current liabilities (0.0) (0.0
Note 12: Impairments 96 Issue of compensation bonds (0.0) -
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 rorelgn eXCh?Pge Iossies (1'7) (1;-5)
E—— 97 mpawmentq inancial assets 10 (0.5) (27)
Other financial expenses (2.7) 25
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 " -
- Total financial expenses (43.1) (101.9)
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade
receivables and other current assets 102 Net financial items 4.7) (76.5)
Note f7:Inventories 103 Resultbefore tax (EBT’) (10.4) (82.5)
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand T
cashequivalents 103 ax 1 - -
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 Netresult for the year (10.4) (82.5)
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Appropriation: .
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 Allocated to/(from) other equity (10'4) (829)
Note 23: Borrowings 114 Total appropriation (10.4) (825)
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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Balance Sheet for BlueNord ASA
(Parent Company) for the year ended 31 December

Financial Report

USDmillion Note 31.12.23 3112.22
ASSETS

Non-current assets

Financial non-current assets

Investment in subsidiaries 3 396.8 3935
Loan to Group companies 10 3421 3110
Restricted bank deposits 4 64.3 61.1
Machinery and equipment 0.0 01
Other non-current assets 0.0 0.0
Total non-current assets 803.2 765.7
Current assets

Tradereceivables 0.0 0.0
Other current receivables 0.3 0.7
Total currentreceivables 0.3 0.7
Financial current assets

Restricted bank deposits 0.1 01
Cashand cash equivalents 0.3 6.0
Total financial current assets 0.5 61
Total current assets 0.8 6.9
Total assets 804.0 7725
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In this report Contents for Balance Sheet for BlueNord ASA continued

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 USDmillion Note 11223 stiz22
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 EQL!ITY ANDLIABILITIES
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 ’E:g::;fx, equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Share capital 1.7 17
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Share premium fund 782.9 768.4
Note 2: Financialrisk management 84 Treasury sharereserve (0.1) (01)
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Total paid-in capital 784.5 769.9
72-154 Note 4: Revenue 88 Retained earnings
Consolidated Statements Note 5:Production expenses 89 Other equity (395.6) (390.7)
Consolidated Statement Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Total retained earnings (395.6) (890.7) w
i Com.prehensive Lsrine Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 Total equity 7 388.9 379.2 g
gﬁ?;g':‘iiaatleg os;i?it::ln (i Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 8
Consolidated Statement Note 9: Intangible assets 91 Non-current liabilities %
of Changes in Equity Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Convertible bondloans 5 228.4 223.2 [0)
Consolidated Statement Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Bondloan 169.1 166.9 8
of CashFlows : Other non-current liabilities 0.0 - -~
iz roeE parment - Total non-currentliabilities 397.5 3901
PR y—— Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 — " i o
Income Statement Note4: Tax i ?r:geegat;:b?égtles 161 16 %
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 co ) ' =
Balance Sheet Other current liabilities 1.4 17 >
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade [
CashFlow receivablesand other current assets 102 Total current liabilities 17.6 3.3 8
B Note 17:Inventories 103 Total liabilities 4151 393.3 %
:t:::r::?:: z:::::::po” ’C\‘;Stﬁ ;%Efjlgﬁfd bankdeposits, cashand - Total equity and liabilities 804.0 7725 '(SD
Alternative Performance Measures Mo FrangE s meris iiea -
Supplementary oil and gas information Note 20: Share capital no ?151_'\:'.“ 2024
(unaudited) Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 %1
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Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 Riulf Rustad Tone Kristin Omsted Marianne Lie Colette Cohen =
Note 25. Guarantees 19 Executive Chair Board member Board member Board member %
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 g
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments (20 Robert J. McGuire Jan Lernout Peter Coleman Euan Shirlaw -
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 Board member Board member Board member Chief Executive Officer
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125 BlueNord

Cash Flow for BlueNord ASA

(Parent Company) for the year ended 31 December

Financial Report

USD million Note 2023 2022
Net result for the period (10.4) (82.5)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation/impairment 10 0.1 0.0
Share-based payments expenses 1.9 05
Net financial cost/(income) 4.7 765
Interest received 0.1 0.2
Other financial items paid (0.0) (0.2)
Changesin:

Tradereceivable 0.1 (0.1)
Trade payables 14.6 1.8
Prepayments 0.0 (0.2)
Other current balance sheet items (0.6) (0.9
Net cash flow from operations 10.6 47)
Cash flows frominvesting activities

Loans to Group companies (0.7) 76
Investment in furniture, equipment and machinery (0.0) (0.0)
Net cash flow frominvesting activities (0.7) 76
Cash flows from financing activities

Sale of shares 7 0.2 54
Interest and financing costs (15.8) (20.2)
Net cash flow from (used) in financing activities (15.5) (14.8)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (5.7) (11.9)
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 6.0 179
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 0.3 6.0
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Financial Report

Notes

1 Accounting principles
BlueNord ASA is a public limited liability company registered in Norway, with headquartersin Oslo (Nedre Vollgate 1, 0158 Oslo).

The annual accounts for Blue Nord ASA (‘BlueNord' or the ‘Company’) have been prepared in compliance with the Norwegian Accounting Act (Accounting Act)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Norway (NGAAP’) as of 31 December 2023.

The Company is listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange under the ticker BNOR'. The financial statements for 2023 were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April
2024 and willbe presented for approval at the Annual General Meeting on 14 May 2024.

Going concern

The Board of Directors confirm that the financial statements have been prepared under the presumption of going concern, and that this is the basis for the
preparation of these financial statements. The financial solidity and the Company’s working capital and cash position are considered satisfactory in regards of the
planned activity level for the next 12 months.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. The subtotals and totals in some of the tables may not equal the sum of the amounts shown due
torounding.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with the Accounting Act requires the use of estimates. The application of the Company’s accounting
principles also require management to apply judgement. Areas, which to a great extent contain such judgements, a high degree of complexity, or areas in which
assumptions and estimates are significant for the financial statements, are described in the notes.

Revenues
Income from sale of services is recognised at fair value of the consideration, net after deduction of VAT. Services are recognised in proportionto the
work performed.

Classification of balance sheetitems

Assets intended for long-term ownership or use have been classified as fixed assets. Receivables are classified as current assets if they are to be repaid within
one year after the transaction date. Similar criteria apply to liabilities. First year's instalment on non-current liabilities and non-current receivables are classified
as current liabilities and assets. For interest-bearing debt where the Company is required to be in compliance with financial covenants, the loans are classified as
current liabilities if BlueNord is in breach with the covenants to that extent that the loan would be payable on the demand of the creditor. If a waiver is agreed with
the creditor prior to approval of these financial statements, the classification is carried forward in accordance with the payment schedule of the initial

borrowing agreement.

Investments in subsidiaries

Forinvestmentsin subsidiaries, the cost method is applied. The cost price is increased when funds are added through capital increases or when Group
contributions are made to subsidiaries. Dividends received are initially taken as income. Dividends exceeding the portion of retained profit after the acquisition
arereflected as areduction to book value.

Dividend/group contribution from subsidiaries are reflected in the same year as the subsidiary makes a provision for the amount.
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receivables and other current assets 102
Note 17:Inventories 103
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand
cashequivalents 103
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
Note 29: Subsequent events 121
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Financial Report

Notes continued

1 Accounting principles continued
Assetimpairments
Impairment tests are carried out if there is indication that the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount. The testis performed on the
lowest level of non-current assets at which independent cash flows can be identified. If the carrying amount is higher than both the fair value less cost to selland
recoverable amount (net present value of future use/ownership), the asset is written down to the highest of fair value less cost of disposal and the recoverable amount.

Previous impairment charges are reversed in later periods if the conditions causing the write-down are no longer present.

Foreign currencies
The functional currency and the presentation currency of the company is US dollars (USD’).

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are valued at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses relating to sales and purchases in
foreign currencies are recognised as other financial income and other financial expenses.

Interest-bearing bond loans, convertible bond loans and other debt to financial institutions

Interest-bearing bond loans, convertible bond loans and borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and the conversion
optionis not separated. Subsequently, loans and borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses arising on the repurchase,
settlement or cancellation of liabilities are recognised either ininterest income and other financial items or in interest and other finance expenses within net
financial items. Financial liabilities are presented as current if the liabilities are due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date, or if they are held for
the purpose of being traded.

Other liabilities
Liabilities, with the exception of certain liability provisions, are recognised in the balance sheet at nominal amount.

Taxes

The taxin the income statement includes payable taxes for the period, refundable tax and changes in deferred tax. Deferred tax is calculated at relevant tax rates
onthebasis of the temporary differences which exist between accounting and tax values, and any carryforward losses for tax purposes at the year-end. Tax
enhancing or tax reducing temporary differences, which are reversed or may be reversed in the same period, have been offset. Deferred tax and tax benefits
whichmay be shownin the balance sheet are presented net. Net deferred tax assets are not recognised due to uncertainty about future taxable profits.

Tax reduction on Group contributions given and tax on Group contribution received, recorded as a reduction of cost price or taken directly to equity, are recorded
directly against tax in the balance sheet (offset against payable taxes if the Group contribution has affected payable taxes, and offset against deferred taxesiif the
Group contribution has affected deferred taxes).

Deferred taxisreflected at nominal value.

Cash flow statement
The cash flow statement has been prepared according to the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents include cash, bank deposits, and other current investments
whichimmediately and with minimal exchange risk can be converted into known cash amounts, with due date less than three months from purchase date.

Share-based payments
The Company operates anumber of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options and shares) of the Company. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised

as anexpense.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73 1 Accounting principles continued
Consaltkic SeEmee FemsE Feien 74 The totalamount to be expensed s determined by reference to the fair value of the options and shares granted:
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 .
Consolidated Stat tof CashFl 77 Fairvalue:
onsolated Statement of--ash Fiows includes any market performance conditions; and
Note1: Summary of material accounting policies 8 excludes the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
Note 2: Financialrisk management 84 employee of the entity over a specified time period).
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87
72-154 Note 4: Revenue 388 Non—market performance and servic_:e Conqmons are ilncluded in assumptigns aboutthe nur_ﬁber of olptions anq sharesthatare preoted tovest. The total
s ) Note 5:Production expenses 89 expen;e is re_cogmsed over the_ vespng p(_enod (whichis the period ovgr which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied). At the Qnd of eaph
- @ Note 6 Explorat Sevaluat % reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options and shares that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions.
i Ote b: EXploration and evaluation expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . .
g:’é‘zﬂ:;’r"etﬁgnitisgrf:; . P P It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. When the options are g
Consolidated Stat : NoteRersonnelexpenses Y exercised, the Company issues new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) L
onsolidate: atemen . . . . . . . . . . . .
of Financial Position Note 8: Other operating expenses 9 and share premium. The social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options and shares are considered an integral part of the 8_
— — . i i i - ' 9]
Consolidated Statement Note 9: Intangible assets 91 grantitself,and the charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction. 5
of Changesin Equity Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 ®
Consolidated Statement b ; 2 Revenue -8
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 1
of Cash Flows . ™
— Note 12: Impairments 96 USD million 2023 2022
otes
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 Management fee subsidiaries 3.7 2.6
Statutory Accounts g)
Note 14: Tax 97
Income Statement Totalrevenue 3.7 26 6
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 =
Balance Sheet g
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade H Fiae
CashFlow receivables and other current assets 102 3 InveStments ,m, Sl,'leIdla"es ) 8
- . Investments in subsidiaries are booked according to the cost method. @
Notes Note 17: Inventories 103 -
Independent Auditor’s Report Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand USD milion Ownership/ Equity Net Book ()
— cashequivalents 103 Subsidiaries Location voting right 31December loss value O
Statement of Compliance : o Q
Alternative Performance Measures el teA T ek TS L AlliNex AS QSl-O 100% 2813 (34 3968 -
N —— B s BlueNord UK Ltd Great Britain 100% (2.0) (0.4) -
Supplementary oil and gas information ote L Share capita BlueNord AS Oslo 100% 00 (0.0) —
(unaudited) Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Book value 31.12.23 396.8 %1
A A v A2, .
Appendices Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 ookvalue g
Information about BlueNord Note 23: Borrowings 14 0.
Theimpairment test as of 31 December 2023 justifies the overall value of Altinex and its subsidiaries. o
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 -
Note 25: Guarantees 19 . . (1)
4 Restricted bank deposits ]
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120 2
USD mill 202 2022
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 miton 023 ~
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 . . . o o .
Restricted bank deposits pledged as security for abandonment obligation related to Nini/Cecilie" 64.3 61.1
Note 29: Subsequent events 121 . v
Other restricted bank deposits 0.1 01
Total restricted bank deposits 64.4 61.2

(1) Inconnectiontothe asset retirement obligation of USD 64.3 million (DKK 434 million) in the Group Company BlueNord Energy Denmark.

(2) TaxWithholding Account.
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Notes continued

5 Borrowings
5.1 Summary of borrowings

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 USD million 2023 2022
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7 BNOR13 Convertible Bond - 14.2
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 BNOR15 Convertible Bond 228.4 209.0
N2 Terealie e a4 BNOR?14 Senior Unsecured Bond 169.1 166.9
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 Total non-currentbonds 397.5 3901
Note 4: Revenue 88 Total borrowings 397.5 3901
Note 5:Production expenses 89
Note 6: Explorationand evaluation expenses 90 Details on borrowings outstanding on 31 December 2023
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 BNOR13
Note 8: Other operating expenses 9 InJuly 2019, BlueNord issued a subordinated convertible bond loan of USD 158 million with a tenor of eight years where the lender was granted a right to convert
Note 9: Intangble assets o1 theloaninto new sharles inthe Qompany ataconversion price of NOK 240 (USD 29.3) per share by vvlay of set-off again;t the (_:Iaim onthe Company. Theloanhas
S —————— ” amandatory conversion to equity after five years and carries an interest of 8 percent p.a. on a PIK basis, with an alternative option to pay cash interest at 6 percent
- p.a., payable semi-annually. Should the instrument be in place beyond the five-year conversion period, the interest rate on BNOR13 will be reduced to 0.0 percent
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 for the remaining term of the loan.
Note 12: Impairments 96
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 InNovember 2022, BlueNord had proposed for some amendments to the BNOR13 bond which includes a two-year delay in the mandatory conversion date
Note 14: Tax 97 (08 November 2023 to 31 December 2025) following the expected Tyrafirst gas date and an inclusion of a call option to allow the Company to redeem the
Note 15: Earmin h BNOR13 bond with cashin December 2025. To reflect the premium of the then share price relative to the BNOR13 previous conversion price, the principal amount
B gs pershare 102
- has been updated from approximately USD 165 million to approximately USD 227 million by way of issuance of compensation bonds. Conversion price has been
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade ) .
EeEivEbEsEm cihEr U FEsEs 102 reset to USD 51.4307 per share and interest rate remains unchanged.
Note 17:Inventories 103 o o . . o o -
Noto 8- Restricted bank deposits, cashand InDecember 2022, the majority of the remaining convertible loan was transferred into the new convertible instrument, BNOR15 and, of the remaining USD 13.8 million
cashequivalents ' 103 outstanding on 31 December 2022, USD 14.2 million was converted into equity by 26 January 2023, including conversion of USD 0.5 millioninaccumulated interests.
Note19: Financialinstruments 104 The remaining BNOR13 bond was then subject to the amendments as proposed by the Company in November 2022 and USD 48.2 thousand compensation bonds
Nole20:Share capital o wereissued on 26 January. The amendment to BNOR13 terms aligns the terms of the remaining bond with that of the BNOR15 bond. In December 2023, USD
. 195,723 was converted into equity and so the outstanding value of BNOR13is USD 63 in Q4 2023. Given the insignificantamount outstanding on BNOR(13, this has
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12 beenassumed as nilinthe reporting.
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 114 BNOR14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 The Company issued a senior unsecured bond of USD 175 millionin 2019, due in June 2026. The bond carries an interest of 9 percent p.a., payable semi-annually. In
Note 25 Guarantees 19 July 2021, BlueNord's written resolution regarding the addition of further headroom under the Leverage Ratio covenant through to the end of 2023 was resolved
Noto 26: Investmentsinjointly owned assets - andapproved by the Company’'s BNOR14 bondholders. Based on this written resolution, the maximum Leverage Ratio has been amended to 7.0x (from 5.0x)
ending Q2 2023, 6.0x (from 3.0x) during Q3 2023 and 5.0x (from 3.0x) during Q4 2023. From Q12024 onwards, the maximum Leverage Ratio will revert to 3.0x per
Moite 2 Gl e sinelesie id Quimmlis Y the original bond terms. In addition to the change in maximum permitted leverage, BlueNord's minimum bank deposits threshold has increased to USD 75 million
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 untilthe end of 2023 (from USD 50 million untilend Q2 2023 and USD 25 million during Q3 and Q4 2023).
Note 29: Subsequent events 121

129 BlueNord
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Notes continued

5 Borrowings continued
BNOR15
The Company issued a convertible bond loan of USD 207.6 millionin December 2022, with a five-year tenor and a conversion to equity or cash settlement after
three years (31 December 2025). BNOR15 is made up of a transfer from BNOR13 of USD 151.4 million plus additional compensation bonds of USD 56.2 million.
Similarly, to BNOR13, the lender was granted a right to convert the loan into new shares in the Company by way of set-off against the claim on the Company. The
loan carries aninterest of 8 percent p.a. on a PIK basis, with an alternative option to pay cash interest at 6 percent p.a., payable semi-annually. In Q12023,USD 0.1
million was converted into equity.

5.2 Covenants

Note 4: Revenue 88

Note 5:Production expenses 89 Reserve-based 'e“di"9 fa‘:_i!ity . . . ) o . . . ) o

Nota 6. Exploralion and evallation expenses % Thg reserve-based credit facility Congtltutgs senior debt of the Qompany a.nd issecured onafirst prlorlty basis against certain of the Company s subsidiaries and

their assets. The reserve-based credit facility agreement contains a financial covenant that the ratio of Net Debt to EBITDAX (earnings before interest, tax,

NoteRersonnelexpenses Y depreciation, amortisation and exploration) shall be: less than 6.0:1.0 at the end of financial years 2021 and 2022; less than 3.5:1.0 at the end of financial year 2023;

Note 8: Other operating expenses 91 and less than 3.0:1.0 at the end of financial year 2024 onwards until the expiry of the facility. Each test is carried out on the audited full-year financial statements of

Note 9: Intangible assets 91 BlueNord ASA. BlueNord must also demonstrate minimum bank deposits on alook forward basis of USD 50 million during the relevant period, whichis the latest

Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 of completion of the Tyraredevelopment project and following 12-month period. The agreement also includes special covenants which, among other, restrict the

e T e e e o5 Company from taking on additional secured debt, provide parameters for minimum and maximum hedging requirements and restrict declaration of dividends or
- other distributions. BlueNord is in compliance with these covenants at the end of 2023.

Note 12: Impairments 96

Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 BNOR14

Note 14: Tax o7 InJuly 2021, BlueNord's written resolution regarding the addition of further headroom under the Leverage Ratio covenant through to the end of 2023 was resolved

Note 15: Earnings per share 102 and approved by the Company’s BNOR14 bondholders. Based on this written resolution, the maximum Leverage Ratio has been amended to 7.0x (from 5.0x)

Note 16:Non-current receivables, trade during the Tyra Redevelopment Period ending Q2 2023, 6.0x (from 3.0x) during Q3 2023 and 5.0x (from 3.0x) during Q4 2023. From Q1 2024 onwards, the

receivables and other current assets 102 maximum Leverage Ratio will revert to 3.0x per the original bond terms. In addition to the change in maximum permitted leverage, BlueNord's minimum bank

Note 17: Inventories 103 deposits threshold has increased to USD 75 million until the end of 2023 (from USD 50 million untilend Q2 2023 and USD 25 million during Q3 and Q4 2023).

Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand BlueNordis in compliance with the covenants at the end of 2023.

cashequivalents 103

Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 5.3 Payment structure

Note 20: Share capital 110 Principal BNOR14 Total

Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12 2026 175.0 175.0

Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12 Total 175.0 175.0

Note 23: Borrowings 14

Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 18 Interest payments at 31.12.2023 BNOR15* BNOR14 Total

Note 25: Guarantees 19 Interestrate — 9.00%

Note 26: Investmentsin jointly owned assets 120 2024 - 15.8 15.8

Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 2025 - 15.8 15.8

Note 28: Related party transactions 121 2026 _ £ (£

Note 29: Subsequent events 121 Total - 39.4 39.4

130 BlueNord

* BNOR15carries avariable interest charge of: (i) 6 percent per annumin cash, payable semi-annually, or; (i) 8 percent per annum PIK cumulative interest, rolled up semi-annually, to add to BNOR15 capital on conversion
atexpiry of the bond. Currently, the Company has elected the PIK interest of 8 percent andiis therefore forecasting no cashinterest payments on BNOR15in the above table.
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Financial Report

Notes continued

5 Borrowings continued
5.4 Pledged assets
Pledged assets relate to the carrying value of the pledged shares under the reserve-based lending facility entered into by the wholly owned subsidiary Altinex AS, please
see note 23in the Consolidated financial statements.

6 Guarantees
Overview of issued guarantees on 31 December 2023
The parent company of the Group, BlueNord ASA (‘BlueNord’), has issued a Parent Company guarantee to the Danish Ministry of Climate, Energy and Building on
behalf of its subsidiary BlueNord Energy Denmark A/S and BlueNord Gas Denmark A/S.

The Company has provided a parent company guarantee to the Danish Ministry of Climate, Energy and Utilities related to the Group’s activities on the Danish
continental shelf,including BlueNord's participation in the Tyra West Pipeline and the Lulita licence. The Company has also provided a parent company guarantee
towards the lenders in relation to the Company’'s USD 1.1 billion reserve-based lending facility and customary obligations/guarantees under joint operating
agreements. BlueNord has also provided a parent company guarantee to Shell Energy Europe Limited inrelation toits subsidiary BlueNord Energy Denmark
A/S’s obligations under a gas offtake and transportation agreement capped at EUR 30 million.

Furthermore, the Company has provided a parent company guarantee to Total E&P Denmark A/S for its obligations under the JOA together with a guarantee
from Shell. BlueNord has provided standby Letters of Credit of USD 100 million, issued under the USD 100 million sub-limit of the RBL facility for the benefit of Shell
inconnection with this guarantee.

Inrelation to BlueNord's historic operations in the UK North Sea, the Company hasissued a parent company guarantee on behalf of its subsidiaries BlueNord
UK Ltd and BlueNord Energy UK Limited.

On31December 2012, BlueNord issued a parent company guarantee on behalf of its subsidiary Noreco Norway AS. BlueNord guarantees that, if any amounts
become payable by Noreco Norway AS to the Norwegian Secretary of State under the terms of the licences and the Company does not repay those amounts on
firstdemand, BlueNord shall pay to the Norwegian Secretary of State on demand an amount equal to all such amounts. Noreco Norway AS was liquidated in 2018,
however as per 31 December 2023, the guarantee has not been withdrawn.

7 Shareholders’ equity

Changesinequity Share Share Treasury Other

Allfiguresin USD million capital premium reserve equity Total
Equity 31 December 2022 1.7 768.4 (0.) (890.7) 379.2
Issue of shares 0.0 14.5 - - 14.6
Conversionbonds - - - 0.5 0.5
Share-based incentive program - - 0.0 5.0 5.1
Net result for the period - - - (10.4) (10.4)
Equity 31 December 2023 1.7 782.9 (0.1) (395.6) 388.9
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8 Share capital and shareholder information

Financial Report

2023 2022
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Ordinary shares 26,205,849 25708 424
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Treasury shares (100,521) (137162)
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Total shares 26,105,328 25,571,262
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 Par value in NOK 10 10
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87
Note 4: Revenue g8 BlueNord owns 100,521 of its own shares. All shares have equal rights. All shares are fully paid.
Note 5:Production expenses 89
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 Changes in number of shares and share capital:
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 No.of shares Share capital
Note 8: Oth ti 91 )
ot er?pera IMgJSAPSEE Number of shares and share capital as of 1 January 2022 24,549,013 29.5
NGB HTEld ESel 9 Issueofshares 1159411 14
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 Capital reduction, approved and registered - (29.9)
Note 11: Property, Plantand Equipment 95 Share capital as of 31.12.22 25,708,424 1.7
Note12:Impairments %  |ssueofshares 497,425 0.0
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 B
P Share capital as of 31.12.23 26,205,849 1.7
Note 14: Tax 97
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 Treasury
Note 16:Non-current receivables, trade No.ofshares sharereserve
receivablesand other currentassets 102 Treasury shares as of 1 January 2022 (438,161) (0.5)
Note 17:Inventories 103 Sale of Treasury shares 300,999 0.3
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand Treasury shares as of 31.12.22 (137162) (0.)
cashequivalents 103 SaleorT h
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 ale ot Ireasury shares 36,641 0.0
Note 20-Share capital 10 Treasury shares as of 31.12.23 (100,521) (0.1)
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12 .
* InUSD million.
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 14 Changesin 2023
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 The Company received conversion notice from bondholders holding BNOR13 and BNOR15 bonds for a total principal amount of USD 14.6 million in 2023, which
Note 25: Guarantees 119 pursuant to the bond terms are convertible into 497,425 new shares in the Company. The BNOR13 conversionin January had a conversion price of USD 28.9734, the
e 205 s e T Tl G 5 E 120 following conversions had a conversion price of USD 51.4307 according to the new bond terms. Following such conversions, the share capital isincreased with NOK
- - - 268.5/USD 32.7 thousands.
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions

121

Note 29: Subsequent events

121

132 BlueNord

The Company sold 36,641 of its own shares during the year, of which 23,641 shares was related to first award of the Long-Term Incentive program (LTI).
The shares price at transfer date was 475 NOK/share. In addition, 13,000 shares were sold to cover exercise of options held by former employees at strike

price 160 NOK/share.
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8 Share capital and shareholder information continued

Overview of shareholders at 02 April 2024:

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Shareholder* Shareholding ~ Ownershipshare Voting share
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. 6,815,172 26.0% 26.0%
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Goldman Sachs International 5,096,153 19.4% 19.4%
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 Barclays Bank PLC 2105,007 8.0% 8.0%
N o ; ; ; SOBERAS 1,850,000 71% 71%
ote 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87 .
J.P.Morgan Securities LLC 1,459,883 5.6% 5.6%
Note:Revenue 8 TheBankof New York Mellon SA/NV 949183 3.6% 3.6%
Note 5:Production expenses 89 BNP Paribas 621520 2 4% 2 4%,
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90 CLEARSTREAMBANKINGS.A. 509,620 1.9% 1.9%
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 Citibank, N.A. 499,653 1.9% 1.9%
Noie 8 Oiher operating expenses o State Stlreet Bankand Trust Comp 494195 1.9% 1.9%
R, - Sbakkejord AS 425,500 1.6% 1.6%
Sang _ FINSNES INVEST AS 313,000 1.2% 1.2%
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 SOSYFRINVEST AS 308,070 1.2% 10%
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 HANASAND 263150 1.0% 1.0%
Note 12: Impairments 96 ALTOHOLDINGAS 238,300 0.9% 0.9%
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 VELDEHOLDINGAS 230,000 0.9% 0.9%
NotorZ Tax o7 Morgan Stanley & Co. Int. Plc. 210,055 0.8% 0.8%
Note 15 Ear . 102 JPMorgan Chase Bank,N.A.,London 200,872 0.8% 0.8%
Ore o =amings pershare OUSDALAS 200,000 0.8% 0.8%
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade SONGA CAPITAL AS 185.735 07% 07%
receivables and other current assets 102 ’ : ’
Y —— 03  Total 22,975,068 87.7% 87.7%
Note 18: Bestricted bank deposits, cashand
casheqlivalents 103 Other owners (ownership <0.67%) 3,230,781 12.3% 12.3%
Note 19: Financialinstruments 194" Total number of shares at 02 April 2024 26,205,849 100.0% 100.0%
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 112 Nominee holder.
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions

121

Note 29: Subsequent events

121
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73

Financial Report

Notes continued

9 Payroll expenses and remuneration

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74 USD million 2023 2022
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 Salaries (incl. Directors’ fees) (2.6) (31)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 77 Social security tax (0.9) (0.5)
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Pension CQStS“’ (0.1) (0.)
Note2: Financial risk management = Costs relating to share-based payments (1.9) (0.5)
Other personnel expenses (0.2) (0.2)
Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87
Ny - Total personnel expenses (5.8) (4.4)
Note 5:Production expenses 89 Average number of employees 8.0 76
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
(1) Norwegian companies are obliged to have an occupational pensionin accordance with the Norwegian Act related to mandatory occupational pension. BlueNord ASA meets the Norwegian requirements for
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90 ) B L o
mandatory occupational pension (‘obligatorisk tienestepensjon’).
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 For further information on remuneration to key management personnel and Board of Directors, please see note 7 in the Consolidated financial statements.
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92
Note 1t: Property, Plantand Equipment 95 10 Write-down and reversal of financial assets
Note 12: Impairments 96 USD million 2023 2022
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 Netimpairment loans to subsidiaries (0.5) (2.7)
Note 14: Tax 97 Net reversal of prior years' impairments on loans to subsidiaries 0.5 -
Note 15: Earnings per share 102 Netimpairment of financial assets (0.0) 27)
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade
receivables and other current assets 102 . o . . ) ) ) . . .
Noto T Imventon 103 Write-down of loans to subsidiaries in 2023 consists of impairment of loans in BlueNord UK Ltd. The reversal of previous years'impairment is related to BlueNord
ote Ir-inventories Energy UK Ltd. The intercompany loans to the UK investment are impaired to zero.
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand
cashequivalents 103 . . . . . . .
— Write-down of loans to subsidiaries in 2022 consists of impairment of loans to BlueNord UK Ltd. and BlueNord Energy Ltd. The intercompany receivables to the
Note 19: Financial instruments 104 . . )
UKinvestment are impaired to zero.
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12 11 Tax
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 112 Reconciliation of nominal to actual tax rate:
Note 23: Borrowings 14 USD million 2023 2022
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118 Result before tax (10 4) (82.5)
Note 25: Guarantees 19 . .
Corporationincome tax of income (loss) before tax -22% (2.3) (18.2)
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
: : : Calculated tax expense (2.3) (18.2)
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120 -
Note 28: Related party transactions 121 Permanerjt differences . 1.0 125
Changesin deferred tax assets —not recognised 1.3 37
Note 29: Subsequent events 121 Prior year adjustments _ 20
Income tax expense - -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 73

Notes continued

11 Tax continued
Deferred tax liability and deferred tax assets:

Financial Report

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 74
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 76 USD million 2023 2022
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 7 Net operating loss deductible 08.1 08.8
Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78 Interest limitation carried forward 34.7 35.8
Note 2: Financial risk management 84 Fixedassets 0.0 00
Now 3 Critia i estimates andud <o Currentassets (24.2) (21.8)
ote 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements Liabilities 34.5 181
Note 4: Revenue 88 .
Tax base deferred tax liability/deferred tax asset 143.1 130.9
Note 5:Production expenses 89
oy o
Note 6 Explorationand evaluation expenses - Net deferred tax liability/(deferred tax asset) (22%) (31.5) (28.8)
Note TiPersonnel expenses 2 Unrecognised deferred tax asset 31.5 28.8
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91
Note 9: Intangible assets 91 12 Other operating expenses and audit fees
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92 USD million 2023 2022
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95 Lease expenses (0.1) (0.2)
Note 12:Impairments 96 IT expenses (0.7) (0.2)
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97 Travel expenses o ) (0'2) ©.2)
Generaland administrative costs (0.2) 0
Note 14: Tax 97
‘ Consultant fees (1.8) (2.9
Notejis: Earmings pershare oz Other operating expenses (0.5) (0.5)
Note 16: Non-current receivables, trade -
receivables and other current assets 102 Total other operating expenses (3.5) 49
Note 17:Inventories 103
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cash and Expensed audit fee:
cashequivalents 103
USD1000, excl. VAT 2023 2022
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104 Auditorst (232.7) 3130)
uartorsiees . .
Note 20: Share capital 110 .
P Other services (86.1) (65.4)
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12 .
- — Total audit fees (318.8) (378.4)
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120

Note 28: Related party transactions

121

Note 29: Subsequent events

121
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Note 1: Summary of material accounting policies 78
Note 2: Financial risk management 84

Note 3: Critical accounting estimates and judgements 87

Note 4: Revenue 88
Note 5:Production expenses 89
Note 6: Exploration and evaluation expenses 90
Note 7: Personnel expenses 90
Note 8: Other operating expenses 91
Note 9: Intangible assets 91
Note 10: Restatement of borrowing cost 92
Note 11: Property, Plant and Equipment 95
Note 12: Impairments 96
Note 13: Financialincome and expenses 97
Note 14: Tax 97
Note 15: Earnings per share 102
Note 16:Non-currentreceivables, trade

receivables and other current assets 102
Note 17:Inventories 103
Note 18: Restricted bank deposits, cashand
cashequivalents 103
Note 19: Financialinstruments 104
Note 20: Share capital 110
Note 21: Post-employment benefits 12
Note 22: Asset retirement obligations 12
Note 23: Borrowings 14
Note 24: Trade payables and other payables 118
Note 25: Guarantees 19
Note 26: Investments injointly owned assets 120
Note 27: Contingencies and commitments 120
Note 28: Related party transactions 121
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13 Related party transactions

Transactions withrelated party
USD million

Financial Report

a) Allocation of cost to Group companies, Management fee
b) Allocation of cost to Group companies, IT expenses

c) Purchases of services
d) Sale of assets

2023 2022
3.7 26
0.7 05

Interestincome and interest expenses to Group companies are presented separately in the income statement.

Services are charged between Group companies at an hourly rate which corresponds to similar rates between independent parties. Allocation of IT and

management fee to Group companies amounts to USD 4.4 million for 2023.

Balances with Group companies

Carrying value of balances with Group companies are stated on the face of the balance sheet and are all related to 100 percent controlled subsidiaries.

BlueNord did not have any other transactions with any other related parties during 2023. Please see the Executive Remuneration Report 2023 for Director's fee paid

to shareholders and remuneration to management.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

To the General Meeting of BlueNord ASA

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlueNord ASA, which comprise:
the financial statements of the parent company BlueNord ASA (the Company), which comprise the
balance sheetas at 31 December 2023, the income statement and cash flow statement for the year
thenended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies,and
the consolidated financial statements of BlueNord ASA and its subsidiaries (the Group), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

Inour opinion
the financial statements comply with applicable statutory requirements,
the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
31December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then endedin
accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices generally
acceptedin Norway, and
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as
at 31December 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the EU.

Our opinionis consistent with our additional report to the Audit Committee.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit inaccordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company and the Group as
required by relevant laws and regulations in Norway and the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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To the best of our knowledge and belief, no prohibited non-audit services referred to in the Audit
Regulation (537/2014) Article 5.1 have been provided.

We have been the auditor of the Company for 16 years from the election by the general meeting of the
shareholders on 25 April 2008 for the accounting year 2008.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
aseparate opinion on these matters.

Impairment trigger assessment
Refer to note 3.2, critical accounting estimates and assumptions (section d), note 9 Intangible assets,
note 11 Property, plant and equipment and note 12 Impairments.

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has

For the cash-generating unit we critically assessed

Property, plant and equipment of USD 2,427.9 and challenged the assumptions usedin

million and intangible assets of USD 151.6 million. managements impairment trigger assessment,
The Group did not recognise any impairment including:

chargein2023. comparison of the Group equity against market

capitalisationincluding an assessment as to how

Therecoverable amounts of producing assets
and assets under construction are sensitive to
changesinassumptions, in particular oiland gas
prices, potential cost overruns, discount rate and
oiland gasreserves. Any negative developments
inthese assumptions and forecasts may be an

much of the headroom should be contributed to
the cash-generating unit

Assessed whether the capitalisation of interest
forthe current and previous years should be
considered animpairment trigger

impairment trigger. We also evaluated the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures inthe
financial statements.

Significant auditor judgment is required
when evaluating managements impairment
trigger assessment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Assets retirement obligations

Refer to note 3.2 Critical accounting estimates (section ¢) and assumptions and note 22 Assets

retirement obligations.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has
non-current Assets retirement obligations of
USD1,033.7 millionand current Asset retirement
obligations of USD 15.4 million.

The determination of the asset retirement
obligations ("ARQ”) involves judgement related to
the estimation of future costs, the discount rate
applied, the economic cut-off date for fields and
the related timing of the expected costs.

Significant auditor judgment is required when
evaluating the asset retirement obligations
and to determine whether there is sufficient
evidence available to support the estimates
and judgments made.

Our audit proceduresin this area included:

Assessing management’s process to determine
the present value of the estimated future
decommissioning and removal expenditures
required by local conditions and requirements.
We critically assessed and challenged the link
between the economic cut-off date for fields for
consistency to the reserves estimate, for which
athird party assessment has been obtained.
We assessed and challenged managements
expected future costs estimates by comparing
these toreports from the operator company
and evaluating the historical accuracy of the
cost estimates.

Assessing the discount and inflation rate applied
with reference to industry practice along with
market and Company data.

We assessed the mathematical and
methodological integrity of management's
valuation model.

We also evaluated the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosuresin the
financial statements.

Other Information

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director (management) are responsible for the information
inthe Board of Directors’ report and the other information accompanying the financial statements.
The other information comprises informationin the annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the informationin the Board of Directors’report nor the other information accompanying the

financial statements.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Board of Directors’

report and the other information accompanying the financial statements. The purpose is to consider if
there is materialinconsistency between the Board of Directors' report and the other information
accompanying the financial statements and the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or whether the Board of Directors’ report and the other information accompanying the financial
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statements otherwise appears to be materially misstated. We are required to report if there is a material
misstatement in the Board of Directors' report or the other information accompanying the financial
statements. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Based on our knowledge obtained inthe audit, it is our opinion that the Board of Directors’report
is consistent with the financial statements and
contains the information required by applicable statutory requirements.

Our opinion onthe Board of Director’s report applies correspondingly to the statements on Corporate
Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Company that give a true
and fair view in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices
generally acceptedin Norway, and for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group that give a true and fair view inaccordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the
EU.Managementis responsible for such internal control as management determinesis necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s and the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern.
The financial statements of the Company use the going concern basis of accounting insofar as it is not
likely that the enterprise will cease operations. The consolidated financial statements of the Group use
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thatan
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or inaggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. We design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s and the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates andrelated disclosures made by management.

conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s and the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attentionin
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
amanner that achieves a true and fair view.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We areresponsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies ininternal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on Compliance with Requirement on European Single Electronic Format (ESEF)
Opinion

As part of the audit of the financial statements of BlueNord ASA, we have performed anassurance
engagement to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements included in the
annual report, with the file name bluenordasa-2023-12-31-en, have been prepared, in all material
respects, in compliance with the requirements of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2019/815
on the European Single Electronic Format (ESEF Regulation) and regulation pursuant to Section 5-5 of
the Norwegian Securities Trading Act, which includes requirements related to the preparation of the
annual reportin XHTML format, and iXBRL tagging of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements, included in the annual report, have been prepared, in all material
respects, incompliance with the ESEF regulation.

Management’s Responsibilities

Management s responsible for the preparation of the annual report in compliance with the ESEF
regulation. This responsibility comprises an adequate process and such internal control as management
determinesis necessary.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

Our responsibility, based on audit evidence obtained, is to express an opinion on whether, in all material
respects, the financial statements included in the annual report have been prepared in compliance with
ESEF. We conduct our work in compliance with the International Standard for Assurance Engagements
(ISAE) 3000 - "Assurance engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial information”.
The standard requires us to plan and perform procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements included in the annual report have been prepared in compliance with
the ESEF Regulation.

As part of our work, we have performed procedures to obtain an understanding of the Company’s
processes for preparing the financial statements in compliance with the ESEF Regulation. We examine
whether the financial statements are presented in XHTML-format. We evaluate the completeness and
accuracy of the iIXBRL tagging of the consolidated financial statements and assess management's use
of judgement. Our procedures include reconciliation of the iXBRL tagged data with the audited financial
statements in human-readable format. We believe that the evidence we have obtained s sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Oslo,
11 April 2024
KPMGAS

Monalrene Larsen

State Authorised Public Accountant
(This document is signed electronically)
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Statement of Compliance

Board and management confirmation
Today, the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer reviewed and approved the Board of
Directors' Report and the BlueNord ASA consolidated and separate annual financial statements as
of 31December 2023.

To the best of our knowledge, we confirm that:
the BlueNord ASA consolidated annual financial statements for 2023 have been preparedin
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as adopted by the EU, and additional Norwegian
disclosure requirements in the Norwegian Accounting Act;
the financial statements for BlueNord ASA have been prepared in accordance with the Norwegian
Accounting Act and Norwegian Accounting Standards;
that the Board of Directors’ Report for the Group and the parent company is in accordance with the
requirements in the Norwegian Accounting Act and Norwegian Accounting Standard no 16;
that the information presented in the financial statements gives a true and fair view of the Company’s
and the Group's assets, liabilities, financial position and results for the period viewed in their entirety;
and
that the Board of Directors' Report gives a true and fair view of the development, performance,
financial position, principle risks and uncertainties of the Company and the Group.

Oslo

11 April 2024

Riulf Rustad Tone Kristin Omsted Marianne Lie Colette Cohen
Executive Chair Board member Board member Board member
Robert J. McGuire JanLernout Peter Coleman Euan Shirlaw

Board member Board member Board member Chief Executive Officer
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Alternative Performance Measures

BlueNord chooses to disclose Alternative Performance Measures as part of its financial reportingas a
supplement to the financial statements prepared in accordance with the IFRS. This informationis provided
as useful supplementalinformation to investors, security analysts and other stakeholders to provide an
enhanced insightinto the financial development of BlueNord's business operations and toimprove
comparability between periods.

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, depletion, amortisation and impairments. EBITDA
assists in comparing performance on a consistent basis without regard to depreciation and amortisation,
which can vary significantly depending on accounting methods or non-operating factors and provides a
more complete and comprehensive analysis of our operating performance relative to other companies.

Adj. EBITDA is EBITDA adjusted for the cost based on fair value of the share-options programme and
Non-payment insurance as these costs are related to the DUC acquisition and not directly related to the
operational result for the year.

USD million 2023 2022
EBITDA 4214 611.2
Non-paymentinsurance 6.4 47
Share-option programme" 0.0 01
Adj.EBITDA 427.8 616.0

(1) Corrected prior year to only include the share option programme awarded after the DUC acquisition, hence the LTI Programme is not
adjusted for.

Cash flow from operations is defined as Net cash flow from operating activities excluding

tax payments.

USDmillion 2023 2022
Cash flow from operating activities 479.7 5729
Tax received/(paid) (229.8) (11.6)
Net cash flow from operating activities 249.9 561.3

Interest-bearing debt defined as the book value of the current and non-current interest-bearing debt.

UsDmillion 3112.2023 3112.2022
Convertible bondloans (201.7) (188.7)
Senior Unsecured bondloan (169.1) (166.9)
Reserve-based lending facility (820.8) (764.0)
Other interest-bearing debt - (25.0)
Interest-bearing debt (1,191.6) (1144.6)
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Netinterest-bearing debt is defined by BlueNord as cash and cash equivalents reduced by current
and non-current interest-bearing debt. The RBL facility and bond loans are included in the calculation
with the total amount outstanding and not the amortised cost including transaction cost.

USD million 31.12.2023 31.12.2022
Cashand cash equivalents 166.7 2684
Convertible bondloan (228.4) (2215)
Senior Unsecured bondloan (175.0) (175.0)
Reserve-based lending facility (850.0) (800.0)
Other interest-bearing debt - (25.0)
Netinterest-bearing debt (1,086.7) (953.1)
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Financial Report

InMarch 2024, the Group reported oiland gas 2P reserves and near-term 2C resources, the report is reported separately from the Annual Report 2023. The Reserves Evaluator ERC Equipoise Ltd (ERCE’)
has carried out anindependent evaluation of the hydrocarbon Reserves and certain Contingent Resources held by BlueNord Energy Denmark A/S in the DUC Sole Concession area, offshore Denmark.
ERCE has carried out this work in accordance with the June 2018 SPE/WPC/AAPG/ SPEE/SEG/SPWLA/EAGE Petroleum Resources Management System (PRMS’) as the standard for classification

and reporting.

Inline with the Annual Statement of Reserves and Resources, the reported reserves include remaining volumes expected to be recovered based on reasonable assumptions about future technical, economic,
fiscal, and financial conditions based on year end 2023 data. The calculations of recoverable volumes are associated with significant uncertainties. The 2P estimate represents a best estimate of reserves.

The reported contingent resources (near-term 2C) are potentially recoverable volumes from known accumulations for which development plans are being matured or further evaluationis under way with a
view to developmentinthe near term. This does not include the full portfolio of BlueNord's 2C resources.

The 2P reserves and near-term 2C resources for the DUC portfolio are shown below using the figures from the Annual Statement of Reserves and Resources issued in March 2024 as basis.

Total reserves as of 31.12.2023

Liquids Gas OilEq. Interest QOilEq.
Field Hub Status (mmbbl) (mmboe) (mmboe) % (mmboe)
Dan Dan OnProduction 60.4 45 64.9 36.8% 239
Kraka Dan OnProduction 6.9 01 71 36.8% 26
Gorm Gorm On Production 144 - 14.4 36.8% 53
Skjold Gorm On Production 224 1.2 237 36.8% 87
Rolf Gorm On Production 24 - 24 36.8% 09
Halfdan (incl. Halfdan North East) Halfdan OnProduction 776 24.9 102.6 36.8% 377
Tyra Tyra Under Development 316 83.2 114.8 36.8% 422
Valdemar Tyra Under Development 384 21.3 597 36.8% 220
Roar Tyra Under Development 7.0 16.1 231 36.8% 85
Harald Tyra Under Development 1.0 55 6.7 36.8% 25
Lulita Tyra Under Development 11 0.6 16 28.4% 04
Halfdan HCA Gas Lift Project Halfdan Approved for Development 0.6 74 8.0 36.8% 29
Halfdan Ekofisk Infills Halfdan Justified for Development 57 51 10.8 36.8% 4.0
Valdemar Bo South Tyra Justified for Development 17.2 77 249 36.8% 9.2
Adda (Phase 1) Tyra Justified for Development 17.2 23.0 40.2 36.8% 14.8
Total 2Preserves 304.0 200.6 504.6 185.6
Field
Halfdan Tor NE Infill #2 14 1.0 24 36.8% 0.9
Adda (Phase 2) 34 10.5 14.0 36.8% 51
Svend 3114 17 131 36.8% 4.8
Halfdan North 384 59 443 36.8% 16.3
Total 2Cresources 54.7 19.0 73.7 2741
Total 2P reserves and near-term 2C Resources 358.7 219.7 578.3 212.7
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Appendix 1. Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD’)

BlueNord’s TCFD reporting is fully compliant with the requirements shown below.

Thereis agrowing demand for decision-useful, climate-related information, and creditors and investors
are increasingly demanding access to risk information that is consistent, comparable, and clear.

The Financial Stability Board created the TCFD to improve and increase reporting of climate-related
financial information. Additionally, TCFD encourages the standardised reporting structure for financially
material climate-related risks and opportunities to give investors, lenders, and insurers enhanced
comparability when assessing and pricing pertinent companies.

The TCFD framework is made up of 11 recommended disclosures divided into four pillars that represent
core elements of how organisations operate. The four pillars are: governance, strategy, risk management,
and metrics and targets. Moreover, the framework separates into three main categories: risks related to
the physicalimpacts of climate change, risks related to the transition to alower-carbon economy, and
climate-related opportunities. TCFD has also incorporated financialimpact as anintegral part of its
disclosure recommendations.

Inline with the TCFD recommendations, areport in accordance with TCFD is as of 2022 anintegrated
part of BlueNord's annual financial reporting, and the report is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee,
ESG Committee and the Board.

Core elements of recommended Climate-related Financial Disclosures

Governance
The organisation’s governance around climate-related risks and opportunities.

Strategy
The actual and potentialimpacts of climate-related risks and opportunities on the organisation’s business, strategy,

and financial planning.

Risk management
The processes used by the organisation to identify, assess and manage climate-related risks.

Metrics and targets
The metrics and targets used to assess and manage relevant climate-related risks and opportunities.

143 BlueNord

Governance

Recommended Disclosures

Financial Report

Disclose the organisation’s
governance around
climate-relatedrisks

and opportunities.

a) Describe the Board's
oversight of climate-related
risks and opportunities.

b) Describe management’s

roleinassessingand managing

climate-relatedrisks and
opportunities.

Strategy

Recommended Disclosures

Disclose the actual and
potentialimpacts of
climate-related risks and
opportunities onthe
organisation’s business,
strategy, and financial
planning where such
information is material.

a) Describe the climate-related
risks and opportunities the
organisation has identified
over the short, medium,and
longterm.

b) Describe the impact of
climate-relatedrisks and
opportunitiesonthe
organisation'sbusinesses,
strategy, and financial planning.

c) Describe the resilience of
the organisation’s strategy,
takinginto consideration
different climate-related
scenarios, includinga2°c
orlower scenario.

Risk management

Recommended Disclosures

Disclose how the
organisationidentifies,
assesses, and manages
climate-relatedrisks.

a) Describe the organisation’s
processes for identifyingand
assessing climate-related risks.

b) Describe the organisation’'s
processes for managing
climate-related risks.

¢) Describe how processes
foridentifying, assessing,and
managing climate-related
risks areintegratedinto

the organisation’s overall

risk management.

Metrics and targets

Recommended Disclosures

Disclose the metrics and
targets used to assess and
manage relevant climate-
related risks and
opportunities where such
information is material.

a) Disclose the metrics used
by the organisation to assess
climate-relatedrisks and
opportunitiesinline with

its strategy and risk
management process.

b) Disclose scope 1, scope 2,
and, if appropriate, scope 3
GHG emissions,and the
related risks.

c) Describe the targets used by
the organisationto manage
climate-relatedrisks and
opportunities and performance
against targets.
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Appendix 1. Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD’) continued

1. Governance

a.Board-level oversight

The Board fully supports the recommendations of the TCFD. The Board Chair has overall responsibility
for the management of climate-related issues at BlueNord, and the Board is responsible for ensuring that
climate-related targets are defined and addressed as part of Company strategy.

The Board receives regular updates from management, and will ensure that our risk management and
internal control systems are adequate inrelation to the regulations governing the business.

The Board reviews the Group’s mainrisk areas and internal control systems annually. This includes the
Group's values, Code of Conduct and corporate responsibility policy. The Board reports annually on
climate impacts and any risks that the Company faces.

b. Management-level oversight

Executive management s responsible for identifying risks and opportunities, and forimplementing
effective processes and mitigation efforts. This includes climate-related issues, risks and opportunities
withinthe managers' respective areas of responsibility.

The Chief Corporate Affairs Officer has responsibility for ESG strategy, and reports directly to the CEO. In
2020, an ESG Committee was established to support BlueNord's commitment to ESG and to evolve our
contributionto the energy transition.

Climate risks are also assessed as part of BlueNord's risk management process. For more information
on BlueNord'’s risk management processes, including the assessment of climate-related risks, see the
relevant sections of thisreport.

See Governance Framework onpage 53.

2. Strategy

a.and b. Identified climate-related risks and opportunities

Inline with the recommmendations laid out in the TCFD framework, BlueNord has conducted a process to
assess how, and to what extent, the Company is exposed to climate risk. Management representatives
for Finance and Corporate Affairs participatedin a workshop to identify significant physical risk, transition
risk, and opportunities created by climate change.

144 BlueNord
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In the workshop, risks and opportunities were assessed in a strategic and financial context, against three
different time horizons and four different climate scenarios. This assessment was reviewed againin
January 2024.

The following time horizons were used:
Short term-2023-25.
Medium term—2025-30.
Longterm-2030-50.

These four International Energy Agency (1IEA) climate scenarios were used:
Net Zero Emissions by 2050 scenario (NZE).
Stated Policies scenario (STEPS).
Sustainable Development scenario (SDS’).
Announced Pledges scenario (APS)).

For BlueNord itisimportant to identify the most significant climate-related risks and opportunities
we face, as this can help us to make informed decisions about how to mitigate, or take advantage of,
these factors.

Toidentify the most critical risk factors, the management representatives assessed factors that could
potentially impact the operations negatively and the probability of occurrence.

Toidentify the opportunities with the highest potential, the management representatives assessed how
the factors could potentially impact the Company positively, and the degree of difficulty posed by taking
advantage of any opportunity.

Risk factor defined as most critical:
1. High/increased CO, tax.

Opportunities defined with greatest potential:

1. Resource efficiency.

2. Evolution of financial markets.

3. Relatively flexible BlueNord investments.

4. Sector already strictly regulated and well-prepared for harsh weather conditions.
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Appendix 1. Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD’) continued

Acute physical risk

Financial Report

Through our acute physical risk identification process, we identified extreme weather due to increased frequency and intensity of strong wind, storms, and hurricanes as most significant to BlueNord. Such events
may impact BlueNord's direct operations, or cause disruptions in the supply chain. Any events delaying production have a financial implication.

Identified Description Potential Potential financial The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation
risk of risk impacts impacts therisk is most relevant horizon strategy
Increased frequency and Climate change and temperature Inability to have people Reducedrevenue andincreased BlueNord sees the greatest Longterm. BlueNord is constantly working to

intensity of strong wind,
storms, and hurricanes

increases may lead tomore
extreme weather. The wind speed
isexpectedtoincrease, and the air
will contain more moisture. This will
lead toincreased occurrences of
strong winds, storms, and
hurricanesinthe future.

safely Offshore.
Inability to transport people
and equipment, as thisis done

by helicopter and supply ships.

Weakened production
capacities due toshortage
of supplies,employees
and possible damage to
the equipment.

costsassociated with asset repair
and additionallabour. Potential
impact on production.

consequencesin STEPS, butthe
negative effects may be more
relevant for the supply chain at
anearlier stage.

strengthen our work onhumanrights
and decent working conditions, by
reviewing and revising our Corporate
Social Responsibility Guidelines.

This helps us establish governance
documents, routines and instructions
related to due diligence processes and
our supply chainto ensure that we
apply to the highest standards of
professional and ethical standardsin
the conduct of our business affairs. In
addition, Total Energies hasin 2023
provided aletter of comfort related to
their compliance program, with this the
main part of the companies supply

chainhasbeenassessed.

Chronic physical risk

Chronic physicalrisks refer to longer-term shifts in climate patterns, such as sustained higher temperatures that may cause sea level rise or chronic heat waves.

Identified Description Potential Potential financial The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation

risk of risk impacts impacts therisk is most relevant horizon strategy

Rising sealevels Sealevels may rise due to Highwaves which hitthe Increased cost due to Mostrelevantin STEPS. Longterm. The platforms have already been
expanding ocean volumes from infrastructure on the platform adaption of platformsin order reconstructed or assessed to meet the
temperatureincreases and from causing damage. tohandlerising sealevel. risk of sinking seabeds. This has

melting glaciers andice sheets.

prepared them more for extreme
weather events andrising sealevels.

Transitionrisk - Policy and Legal
Transitioning to a lower-carbon economy may entail extensive policy and legal changes to address mitigation and adaptation requirements related to climate change. We have identified the following policy actions
and climate-related litigation claims as the most significant for BlueNord.

Identified
risk

Description
of risk

Potential
impacts

Potential financial
impacts

The climate scenario in which
therisk is most relevant

Time
horizon

Mitigation
strategy

Uncertainty related to the EU
Taxonomy and how this will
impact BlueNord

Increasing need to demonstrate
thateconomic activities are
environmentally sustainable.

More difficultand more
expensive toraise support
froma capital market
perspective and debts
perspective.

Limited access to capital.
Increased cost of capital.

Mostrelevantin NZE/SDS.

Mediumand longterm.

Focus onhavingaclose dialogue
withinvestors.

Transparency is crucial whenit
comes to climate risk. BlueNord
focuses onbeing as transparent
as possible towards investors
and other stakeholders.
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In this report Appendix 1. Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD’) continued

Transition risk — Policy and Legal continued
Transitioning to alower-carbon economy may entail extensive policy and legal changes to address mitigation and adaptation requirements related to climate change. We have identified the following policy actions
and climate-related litigation claims as the most significant for BlueNord.

O ®DL

Increased carbon Carbon taxisaninstrument Low emissions and being part + Increase cost of the business MostrelevantinNZE/SDS. Short, mediumand long term. Reducing emissions as much
pricing and taxes for cost-effective cutsin of the energy transition will and shortenlife of assets, as possible on currentand
GHG emissions. play abigger partinthe licence andincrease likelihood of future operations.
tooperate. stranded assets.
Other extraordinary taxes or
measures to affect the operations
72-154 of high-emission sectors could
Consolidated Statements alsobe putinplace as solidarity
measures.
Consolidated Statement (@))
¢ - . =
of Comprehensive Income Transition risk - Technology s
Cﬁ;l_solidatfg St_?_tement Technologicalimprovements or innovations that support the transition to a lower-carbon, energy-efficient economic system can have a significant impact on organisations. g
of Financial Position o}
Consolidated Statement Identified Description Potential Potential financial The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation %
of Changes in Equity risk of risk impacts impacts therisk is most relevant horizon strategy 0]
- o
Consolidated Statement Transition to lower Gas hasarole and opportunity Changesindemand due to: Decreaseinrevenue, due to MostrelevantinNZE. Mediumand long term. CCSprojects, both onshore Q
of Cash Flows . . o o . —
emission technology inthe transition. Inthe long run, + Declining costonrenewables. reduced oiland gas demand and offshore to support hard
Notes the needfor oiland gas will Electrification of industries Technology for monitoring toabate emissions.

Statutory Accounts
Income Statement
Balance Sheet
CashFlow

Notes

change/decrease.

Technology alsorepresentsan
opportunity inidentifying,
addressing, and reducing risks.

and transportation.
Advanced technology, which
makesit possible to monitor
and detect possible spills
and reduce impact,and
consequently, identify and
reduce emissions.

will provide more precise
measures, ability torespond
immediately and potentially
reduce financialimpact.

Independent Auditor’s Report . .
P i Transition risk - Market

While the ways in which markets could be affected by climate change are varied and complex, one of the major ways is through shifts in supply and demand for certain commodities, products, and services as
climate-related risks and opportunities are increasingly taken into account.
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Supplementary oil and gas information N
(unaudited) Identified

The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation
therisk is mostrelevant horizon strategy

Description Potential Potential financial
risk of risk impacts impacts

Appendices

Information about BlueNo!

The transitionto a zero-emissions
society is expected to decrease
the demand for gasin thelongrun.
The speed of transitionis
uncertain.

Changesingasdemand

The current geopolitical situation
hasincreased the focus onenergy
security where gas plays a part,
butalso where the transition to
renewables hasincreased in pace.

Decliningdemandbased on

new technology. Forinstance,

electric vehicles, heat pumps,
anincreasingly circular
economy andless use

of plastic.

Decreasedrevenues.

Mostrelevantin NZE.

Mediumand long term.

BlueNord focusesongasas
the transition fuel to decrease
carbonintensity.
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Appendix 1. Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD’) continued

Inthisreport

Transition risk - Reputation

Identified Description Potential Potential financial The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation
risk of risk impacts impacts therisk is most relevant horizon strategy
Reputationriskin the Fossil fuelis notarenewable Oiland gas producers Reducedrevenue from Mostrelevantin NZE, SDS. Mediumand longterm. Presenting a balanced view of both our
eraof ESG energy source andleavesalarge generally have a poor decreased demand for production activities and energy
carbon footprint. Still, gas will play reputationin the field of ESG. goods/services. transitioninitiatives and projects, for
72-154 arolein the future energy mix. BlueNord needs to Reductionin capital availability example Carbon Cuts CCS project.
) demonstrate the required and higher cost of capital.
Consolidated Statements Abandonment of infrastructure accountability and Increased cost related to BlueNordis working diligently torecycle
Consolidated Statement needs tobe doneinasafeand responsibility to maintain its abandonment/recycling. materials. The Companyis also (@))
of Comprehensive Income sustainable manner thus sociallicence to operate. assessing sustainable 5
Consolidated Statement contributing to circularity of Increased requirements for decommissioning strategies which T
of Financial Position these materials. sustainable abandonment. leave infrastructure on the seabed Q.
Consolidate_d Stat_ement based onvalue to sealife. %
of Changesin Equity .. [0)
Resource efficiency o
Consolidated Statement Thereis growing evidence that it ible f isations tored t tsbyi ing effici ductionand distributi buildi hinery/appli ©
of Cash Flows growing evidence thatltis possible Tor organisations 1o reaquce operating Costs Dy IMproving erficiency across proauction anda distrioution pProcesses, bulldings, macninery/appliances, 3
o and transport/mobility.
Statutory Accounts Identified Description Potential Potential financial The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation
risk of risk impacts impacts therisk is most relevant horizon strategy
Income Statement
Balance Sheet Efforts toincrease More efficient operations can Increased operational Increased interest All. Short,medium,andlongterm.  Reducing emissions from our facilities in

CashFlow

Notes
Independent Auditor’s Report
Statement of Compliance
Alternative Performance Measures

Supplementary oil and gas information

Climate change has beenidentified as a potential source of reputational risk tied to changing customer or community perceptions of an organisation's contribution to or detraction from the transition

toalower-carboneconomy.

resource efficiency

lower costand reduce emissions
intensity. Good for both business
and the environment.

productivity leads toincreased

revenue and reduced
unitcosts.

frominvestors.
Easieraccessto capital.
Increasedrevenue.

collaboration with the Operator. We
work actively toreduce flaringand to
improve production optimisation to
reduce emissions and energy (fuel) use.

Energy sources

The trend toward decentralised clean energy sources, rapidly declining costs, improved storage capabilities, and subsequent global adoption of these technologies is significant. Organisations that shift their
energy usage toward low-emission energy sources could potentially save on annual energy costs.

(unaudited)
N Identified Description Potential Potential financial The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation
Appendices . . . . s .
risk of risk impacts impacts therisk is most relevant horizon strategy
Information about BlueNo!
Use of alternative energy The worldis switching to Emissions reduction. Easieraccess to capital. Mostrelevantin NZE. Mediumand longterm. Dialogue with the Operator on

in operations

renewable energy and electrical
operating solutions that reduce
theemission of CO,,.

BlueNords platforms are gas-fired
orfired by diesel generators.
Thereis apotential to develop

the approach to alternative
energy sources.

alternative energy sources and potential
electrification of facilities remains an
opportunity ifeconomictodo so.
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Appendix 1. Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD’) continued

Products and services
Organisations that innovate and develop new low-emission products and services may improve their competitive position and capitalise on shifting consumer and producer preferences.

Identified Description Potential Potential financial The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation
risk of risk impacts impacts therisk is most relevant horizon strategy
New products Toreach the climate targets and - CCSrepresents abenefit for - Increasedinterest fromnew MostrelevantinNZE. Mediumand longterm. Two CCS projects: Project Bifrost and
reduce carbonemissions the climate which does not investors and easier access CarbonCuts.
internationally, CCS technologies involve the sacrifice of crucial to capital.
needtobe deployedonalarge energy sources.
scale and willbeincreasingly
important.

Markets

Organisations that proactively seek opportunities innew markets or types of assets may be able to diversify their activities and better position themselves for the transition to alower-carbon economy. In particular,
opportunities exist for organisations to access new markets through collaborating with governments, development banks, small-scale local entrepreneurs, and community groups in developed and developing
countries as they work to shift to alower-carbon economy. BlueNord has addressed the following opportunity.

Identified Description Potential Potential financial The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation

risk of risk impacts impacts therisk is most relevant horizon strategy

Financial markets evolvement ESGandclimateriskis Shift from the typical funding - Forthose notaddressing this Relevantinall scenarios. Short,mediumandlong term. Various measures to be more suited for
increasingly seenas animportant sources tomore targeted —higher risk and costs. achanged financial market.
risk in the financial markets. structures. Changedinterestrate market.

Resilience

The concept of climate resilience involves organisations developing adaptive capacity to respond to climate change to better manage the associated risks and seize opportunities, including the ability to respond to
transition risks and physical risks. Opportunities related to resilience may be especially relevant for organisations with long-lived fixed assets or extensive supply or distribution networks; those that depend critically
onutility and infrastructure networks or natural resources in their value chain; and those that may require longer-term financing and investment.

The climate scenario in which Time Mitigation
therisk is mostrelevant horizon strategy

Identified Description Potential Potential financial
risk of risk impacts impacts

Alternative Performance Measures

Supplementary oil and gas information

(unaudited)
Appendices

Information about BlueNo!

Strictly regulated sector Theenergy transition will resultin

stricter regulations.

Changesinregulations, CO, taxes.

Forthose thatare already in
line with the regulationsit can
decrease the demand for
mitigation and adjustment

of strategy.

Mostrelevantin STEPS.

Short,medium, and long term.

BlueNordis already part of a strictly
regulated sector that operatesin
harshweather conditions. Many
precautions and adaptations are
therefore already in place and could
be acompetitive advantage.

Flexible future investments Future market developments will
greatly affectthereturnon
investmentsin fossil fuels.

Increase in future profits by
being dynamic and adjusting
investment strategy.

Lessrisk of beinglockedin
outdated solutionsand
demand scenarios; flexibility to
diversify andincrease
profitability.

Mostrelevantin STEPS.

Short, medium, and long term.

BlueNord can choose toinvestinmore
gas-weighted projectsor CCS
depending onhow the market is
evolving. Currently, the market for gas
remains attractive and continues to

be avalue fuelalong with oil.
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Appendix 1. Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (‘TCFD’) continued

c. Scenario analysis
Inline with the recommendations laid out by the TCFD, BlueNord conducted a qualitative scenario analysis in 2023 of allidentified risks and opportunities as part of the climate risk assessment.

The Net Zero Emissions by Limiting the global temperaturerise to 1.5°C without a temperature overshoot (with a 50 percent probability). The NZE is anormative scenario, meaningit starts with a defined goal to achieve net-zero CO, emissions by 2050, and shows
2050 Scenario (‘NZE’) anexample of a pathway that could get the world to that target.

Inthis scenario, demand for oil falls by more than 2 mbpd per year between 2020 and 2050. Demand for natural gas grows to 2025, drops after 2025 and falls well below 2020 levels by 2030.

The Sustainable |IEA's Sustainable Development Scenario (‘'SDS’) is compatible with the Paris Agreement’s less ambitious ‘well-below 2°C’ goall. It assumes all energy-related SDGs and all current net-zero pledges are achieved, with advanced
Development Scenario economies reaching net-zero emissions by 2050, China by 2060 and all others by 2070 at the latest.
(‘sbs’)

Ithas a 50 percent probability of limiting global temperature rise to 1.65°C, assuming no extensive net negative emissions. With some net negative emissions after 2070, temperature rise could be reduced to 1.5°C

by 2100.
The Announced Pledges This scenario appears for the first time in the World Economic Outlook 2021. It assumes that all climate commitments made by governments around the world, including Nationally Determined Contributions and longer-term net-zero
Scenario (‘APS’) targets as of mid-2021, willbe metin fulland on time.

Inthe APS, global oil demand peaks soon after 2025 and then falls by around 1mbpd per year to 2050. Demand for natural gas also reaches its maximum level soon after 2025 and then declines slowly.

The Stated Policies Rather than assuming that governments will reach allannounced goals, this scenario reflects a sector-by-sector assessment of the specific policies that have been putin place, as well as those that have been announced by
Scenario (‘STEPS’) governments around the world.

This scenario provides amore conservative benchmark for the future. In the STEPS, global oil demand exceeds 2019 levels by 2023 before peaking in the mid-2030s and then declining very gradually
t02050. Demand for natural gas continues to rise after 2025 andis around 15 percent higher in 2030 thanin 2020.

3.a.,b.,and c. Risk management
Theidentification, assessment and management of climate-related risks and opportunitiesis an integral part of BlueNord's multidisciplinary risk and opportunity management. The BlueNord Board and management will
conduct regular reviews of the Group's activities for identifying, assessing, and responding to climate-related risks and opportunities. The risk management process will be reviewed onan annual basis.

2023 was the first year of implementation of the climate-risk management process recommended by TCFD. A material risk and opportunity matrix system developed by Tavier AS was used as a foundation for this
process. The identification and assessment processes were conducted through a workshop with EVP Finance and EVP Investor Relations, and ESG representatives from different organisational levels and
functions, providing a balanced picture of the risks and opportunities faced by BlueNord.

Inthe matrix, the impact (large, relatively large, relatively easy, easy) and likelihood (high/low) of each risk and opportunity are determined. Based on each risk’s categorisation, BlueNord will develop, review, and
implement response plans to mitigate risks and maximise opportunities.

4.a.,b.,and c. Metrics and targets
BlueNord works to reduce our carbon footprint while contributing to energy security. Our commitment is to a 50 percent reduction in emissions by 2027, and to achieving 80 percent power from renewables by
2029. BlueNord will also focus oninvesting in suitable and earlier-stage CCS projects.

As anon-operator, BlueNord will work to protect the environment to the greatest possible extent, bothin its own operations and through the Company's partnership in the DUC. The data reported on climate and
nature have been supplied by the Operator Total Energies for the DUC. BlueNord will monitor and report on performance year-on-year as part of our sustainability strategy, which will be established later this year.
BlueNord is committed toindependently verifying its direct and indirect emissions in 2024. The following metrics are used to assess climate-related risks and opportunities: CO, emissions, fuel consumption, flaring,
fugitive emissions, nitrogen oxides ((NOx’) and sulphur oxides (‘SOx’) emissions, GHG emissions, and GHG intensity related to DUC operations.
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Appendix 2. UN Sustainable Development Goals

Inthisreport

UN Sustainable Development Goals

72-154

Consolidated Statements People BlueNord promotes the welfare and e I R Ensure safe operations along with DUC operator.

Consolidated Statement rights of employees, communities, i a Promote healthy and safe working environment. %)
of Comprehensive Income and other stakeholders. I!!” g \ = ’ Respect Human and Labour Rights. é"
Consolidated Statement Foster Diversity and Inclusion (D&). o
of Financial Position Deliver continuous professional development for our employees. %
Consolidated Statement Create awareness and provide training in HSE, D&l and Feedback culture. 5y)
of Changesin Equity [0)
Consolidated Statement Climate and sustainable energy BlueNordidentifies and investsin 0t 13 e Reduce GHG emissions (reduce and eliminate flaring, detect and reduce methane). 8
of CashFlows initiatives that reduce emissions and Improve energy efficiency at DUC operations with pressure loss reductions and ~
Notes ensure secure access tolocally & @ increased uptime.

Statutory Accounts produced energy. Continue investing in CarbonCuts to contribute to Denmark’s CCS ambitionand (@)
Income Statement net-zerotarget. ) %
Balance Sheet Ensure access tolocally produced, affordable, reliable, and secure energy for EU. é
CashFlow Environment BlueNordidentifies and investsin Support DUC's ambitionto locally recycle obsolete infrastructure (similarly to Tyra). 8
Notes initiatives that reduce environmental Assess water biodiversity by evaluating cod populations around @

Independent Auditor’s Report impact and promote sustainability. Offshoreinfrastructures. §

" Reduce DUC operations’ atmospheric emissions by 40 percentin 2030 compared o

Statement of Compliance o

t02015. i

GUEIEC B R e LB 0 Minimise chemicals and hydrocarbons from produced water discharged to seain

Supplementary oil and gasinformation strict adherence with discharge permits and environmental regulations.

(unaudited) m

Appendices Responsible and ethical business BlueNord's Board of directors and oo [ 40w | 6 e Promote Board diversity and independence. 3

Information about BlueNord executives are expected to demonstrate A o Demonstrate ethical leadership. 3

integrity, honesty, and accountability in ) = ¢ i: Maintain transparency in market communication and disclosures. )
their decision-making. Comply with local legislations, reporting requirements and standards. o
Create shared economic value. %
(=)
Partnerships BlueNord collaborates withDUC's o[ 7 s Engage with local communities. -~
partners, governmental bodies, civil Build partnerships.
society, businesses, academia, and @ Cultivate technology and innovation within DUC and via funding of DOTC.

The United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (‘'SDGs') provide a blueprint for achieving a better and more sustainable future for all by addressing global challenges such as poverty, inequality, climate change,
environmental degradation, peace, and justice. BlueNord continues to identify our best solutions to contribute to the SDGs as we aim to address various environmental, social and economic challenges facing our
world today. Examples of our actions, programmes and the SDGs to which they relate are demonstrated here and throughout this report.

NGOs to address challenges effectively.

BlueNord's contribution to the UN's 2030 sustainable development agenda.
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Consolidated Statement
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Consolidated Statement
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Notes
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Income Statement
Balance Sheet
Cash Flow
Notes
Independent Auditor’s Report

Statement of Compliance
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(unaudited)
Appendices
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Appendix 3. Environment-Climate

Performance status 2023: Atmospheric emissions

TOPIC DESCRIPTION

co, Main CO, source is the fuel gas for production. Figure also includes flaring and other

emissions fuels contribution.

Fuel Fuelis consumed primarily by single cycle gas turbine powering generators, gas

consumption  compressors,and pumps. Diesel generators are being used when power cannot be
generated with fuel gas. Thisis typically the case on drilling rigs, during production
shutdown or on platforms without processing capacities and without power supply from
adjacent platforms.

Flaring Flaring of natural gas is occurring on all hubs when required to allow safe operation
during production upsets and non-routine operation.

Fugitive Venting of gas from production facilities is to ensure safe operation. Venting is primarily

emissions relevant for systems operating at atmospheric pressure, but it also occurs during
facilities maintenance.

Table 1.

151 BlueNord
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TOPIC DESCRIPTION

NOxandSOx  Theoperation of gas turbine drives and diesel engines offshore causes emissions of

emissions nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides.

CH4 CH4 andnon-methane volatile organic compounds (nmVOC’) come directly fromour gas.
They can originate fromunburned parts of our fuel gas or flare gas (they do not burnat 100
percent efficiency) or fromreleases, i.e. process vents or tiny leaks that are below threshold
limits of our safety detection systems.

nmVOC CH4 and nmVOC come directly from our gas. They can originate from unburned
parts of our fuel gas or flare gas (they do not burn at 100 percent efficiency) or from
releases, i.e. process vents or minor leaks that are below threshold limits of our safety
detection systems.

GHG Greenhouse gases that are released to the atmosphere as a result of the operations.

emissions Green house gases are gases that trap heat in the atmosphere and are responsible

for global warming. The following gases are considered GHG: Carbon dioxide

(CO,), Methane (CH4), Nitrous Oxide (N20), Perfluorocarbons (PFCs), Sulphur
hexafluoride (SF6), Hydrofluorocarbons (HCFs), Chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs),

nitrogen oxides (NOX).

GHG intensity

GHGintensity corresponds to total GHG emissions in CO, equivalent over total
production expressed in barrel of oil equivalent.

ETS reporting
perimeter

DUC offshore fixed installations are subject to the EU Emissions Trading System.
The emissionsincludedin the systemare currently limited to CO,,, whichis emitted
as aresult of fuel combustion (gas and diesel) and flaring.
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In this report Appendix 3. continued. Environment-Nature

Performance status 2023: Discharge to sea

O ®DL

TOPIC DESCRIPTION TOPIC DESCRIPTION
Discharge Water is produced from the fields together with the hydrocarbons. For the fields Chemical Chemicals are used for various purposes in the oiland gas industry. They are used to
tosea Dan and Halfdan, the produced water is discharged to the sea after separationand usage drill, complete, stimulate and operate wells, as well as to enhance oil recovery. Some of
cleaning. Inthe fields Gorm and Skjold, the water is reinjected. The water produced the chemicals help protect the production equipment and pipelines from corrosion,
is partly formation water and partly injected sea water. In 2023, 25.1 percent of the scaling, souring etc.
72-154 produced water was reinjected. Oil is discharged to sea as part of the produced
O water and the efficiency of oil/water separation is a key factor for the oilin water Each chemicalis categorised with a colour according to OSPAR representing how
: concentration. The increase in concentration of oilin water and the higher discharge harmful the chemicals are to the environment.
CEa e from 2022 to 2023 is mainly due to separator issues on Dan. The level of discharge ) _ o ) ) L
: is within the legallimit. Chemical Some chemicals will be discharged to sea with the discharged produced water after §_
Consolidated Statement discharge separation or unintentionally through spills. The discharge of chemicals is highly @
of Financial Position . A . q for " . f : Q
- Spills Spills from closed systems and from handling of various liquids are reportedin regulated through discharge permits and operators must follow regulation and best 9]
gfgﬁ:::ggt;g g;autﬁ;’e"t accordance with environmental regulation. In 2023, 15 oil and diesel spills and 20 practices to minimise the environmental impact. Py
- chemical spills were reported, compared with 6 oil and diesel spills and 32 chemical o
Consolidated Statement o ) L . o
of Cash Flows spillsin 2022. Ongoing efforts are made to minimise the number and level of spills 3
that occur.

Notes

Statutory Accounts Table 2.

Income Statement
Balance Sheet
Cash Flow
Notes
Independent Auditor’s Report

Statement of Compliance
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Appendix 4. BlueNord | Transparency Act Report

Account of the due diligence assessment

BlueNord ASA (‘BlueNord’) is committed to respecting fundamental human and labour rights, both in
operations andin relations with business partners. At BlueNord, we comply with all applicable laws and
regulations, including the Norwegian Transparency Act, entered into force on1July 2022. The Act's

intentionis to promote companies’ respect for fundamental human rights and decent working conditions.

We recognise that our activities can cause, contribute, or be linked to negative human rights and other
socialimpacts. BlueNord operates in alow-risk environment regarding human rights abuse, as all our
operations are in Denmark. Furthermore, most of our vendors are based in Denmark or other low-risk
countries. However, we are aware of potential human and labour rights risks that may occur in our
operations or further up or downin our supply chain.

Incases where BlueNord operations might have caused or contributed to adverse human rights impact,
we will provide or cooperate in providing appropriate remediation to affected stakeholders.

Organisation

BlueNordis a materialindependent E&P company with a ‘see to it’ duty, meaning an obligation to ensure
that the operator carries out its work in accordance with the regulatory requirements while reducing risks
and environmentalimpact to a minimum.

The executive management s responsible for overall risk management with the Chief Corporate Affairs
Officer responsible for the work carried out regarding the Transparency Act. This work isincludedin
BlueNord's ESG work.In 2020, an ESG Committee was established to support BlueNord's commitment
to ESG and to evolve its contributionin the energy transition.

Guidelines and routines

BlueNord has developed guidelines to prevent violations of human rights, indecent working conditions,
damage to the environment, and involvement with corruption. The relevant guidelines are described in
Corporate Social Responsibility Guidelines, including the Code of Conduct as well as HSE policy,
approved by the Board of Directors.

InOctober 2022, BlueNord conducted an overall due diligence assessment in accordance with the
requirements of the Transparency Act based on a methodology including ISO Standard 31000 for
managing risks. The due diligence is an on going risk management process to identify, assess, prevent,
and mitigate human rights risks across the entire value chain of the business. This process applies to
BlueNord's operation including subsidiaries, where BlueNord has operational control, associated

activities within the value chain, and relevant stakeholders e.g., employees, suppliers, and subcontractors.

The Company is committed to perform an annual review of the due diligence assessments on
these topics to monitor and manage actual and potential adverse impacts on humanrights and
working conditions.

153 BlueNord
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Findings as of 2023
BlueNord performed an overall strategic risk assessment including risks associated with its operator.
The Company only holdsinterestinthe DUC, whichis operated by TotalEnergies.

Inthe risk assessment, BlueNord focused on the following five categories and related activities in their
business value chain: exploration, appraisal, development, production, and abandonment. Business
partners who provide the Company with goods and services that are not a direct part of the value chain
were also part of the assessment. These non-negligible expenditures are related to acquisition of seismic
data, IT and digitalisation services, office services, such as cleaning and canteen services, and
professional services, such asinsurance, accounting, legal and other commercial or technical advisers
and hire of in-house technical specialists.

No negative consequences were discovered during the recent due diligence assessment, given that
BlueNord has limited activity in the various categories and operates within strong sector regulations.
When prioritising risks while identifying uncertainties, BlueNord highlighted yard activities, input factors
used in construction, and dismantling and managing steel and waste disposal when brought to shore, as
the most severe risks that may occur.

Measures

Concrete measures and initiatives have been identified to manage the identified severe risks that may
occur. Therefore, BlueNord approves all contractors proposed by the operator with a contract value
above DKK 100 million. If the contractor is based outside the EEA or the UK, the operator shall
demonstrate the contractor adheres to human rights and working conditions prior to such approval. In
addition, BlueNord shall visit the relevant yards when applicable. For the time being, BlueNord is not
involved inany activities which was highlighted during the due diligence assessment. In the case of new
activities or projects within one of these categories, there will be a need for assessing risks of human
rights and decent working conditions.

Results

BlueNordis constantly working to strengthen our work on human rights and decent working conditions.
We aimto review and revise our Corporate Social Responsibility Guidelines in accordance with OECD’s
guidelines and clarify our expectations to business partners. Furthermore, the measures will help us
establish governance documents, routines and instructions related to due diligence processes and our
supply chainto ensure that we apply the highest standards of professional and ethical standards in

the conduct of our business affairs. In addition, Total Energies has in 2023 provided a letter of comfort
related to their compliance programme. The main part of the Company’s supply chain has been
assessed with this.

The operator did not enter any major contracts, i.e.above 100 MDKK, with contractors outside EEA
orUKin2023.
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In this report Appendix 4. BlueNord | Transparency Act Report continued

The overview below indicates where to find more relevant information to cover the reporting Oslo
requirements according to Section 5 of the Act in the Sustainability. 11 April 2024
Requirement Pagereference
A general description of the enterprise’s structure Riulf Karsten Rustad Marianne Lie
andarea of operations. 6-8 Executive Chair Board member
Guidelines and procedures for handling actual and
potential adverse impacts on fundamental human
72154 rights and decent working conditions. 39-43 G c
a } . . Robert J. McGuire Peter Coleman
Consolidated Statements Ir}for_manon.regardmg actu_al adverse impacts and Board member Board member
c idated Stat. : significant risks of adverse impacts that the %
of0 c':'ﬁ%'praeﬁensi?eﬁ?,’fé'me enterprise has identified throughits due diligence. 35 =
: : : )
Consolidated Statement Information regarding measures the enterprise has ol
of Financial Position implemented or plans toimplement to cease actual Tone Kristin Omsted Colette Cohen %
Consolidated Statement adverse impacts or mitigate significant risks of Board member Board member 5y)
of Changes in Equity adverseimpacts, and the results or expected results =
Consolidated Statement of these measures. 4,43 %

of Cash Flows

Notes
Statutory Accounts

Income Statement

Balance Sheet

CashFlow

Notes
Independent Auditor’s Report
Statement of Compliance
Alternative Performance Measures

Supplementary oil and gas information
(unaudited)
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Information about BlueNord

ESEF information:

Name of reporting entity or other means of identification
Explanation of change inname of reporting entity or other means of
identification from end of preceding reporting period

Domicile of entity

Legalform of entity

Country of incorporation

Address of entity's registered office

Principal place of business

Description of nature of entity's operations and principal activities
Name of parent entity

Name of ultimate parent of group

Head Office BlueNord
Headquarter

Telephone

Internet

Organisation number

Financial Calendar 2024
14 May

07 May

10 July

310ctober

Board of Directors
Riulf Rustad
Marianne Lie

Tone Kristin Omsted
Colette Cohen
Robert J.McGuire
JanLernout

Peter Colman

155 BlueNord

BlueNord Group

NA

Norway

ASA

Norway, UK, Denmark

Nedre Vollgate 1,0158 Oslo, Norway
Oslo

Oilandgas

BlueNord ASA

BlueNord ASA

Nedre Vollgate 1,0158 Oslo, Norway
+4722336000
www.bluenord.com

NO 987989297 MVA

Annual General Meeting
Q12024 Report
Q22024 Report
Q32024 Report

Chair

Financial Report

Management

Euan Shirlaw Chief Executive Officer
Jacqueline Lindmark Boye Chief Financial Officer
Marianne Eide Chief Operating Officer
Cathrine Torgersen Chief Corporate Affairs Officer

Investor Relations

Phone +4722336000
E-mail investorrelations@bluenord.com

Annual Reports
Annualreports for BlueNord are available on www.bluenord.com

Quarterly publications

Quarterly reports and supplementary information for investors and analysts
are available on www.bluenord.com. The publications can be ordered by
e-mailing investorrelations@bluenord.com.

Newsreleases
Inorder to receive news releases from BlueNord, please register
onwww.bluenord.com or e-mail investorrelations@bluenord.com.

BlueNord
Org.number: 987 989 297
LEICode:5967007LIEEXZXGE3C16

Photographs provided courtesy of TotalEnergies, Helena Lopes and Tom Jersg'
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